AFFIDAVIT

I. Edward Arcuri, being duly sworn affirm that the following is true to the best of
my knowledge and belief.

1.—Since May of 2000, | have been the Administrator of the Labor Standards
Unit, Colorado Depariment of Labor and Employment (DOLE) andam an
attorney familiar with the Colorado Wage Act. ; —

9 The Labor Standards Unit receives complaints from employees who are
owed wages under the Colorado Wage Act.

3. As part of my duties as Administrator, | have reviewed DOLE's file

concerning Bradley Petroleum, Inc and Sav-0O-Mat, Inc. (collectively,
Bradiey).

4 The Labor Standards Unit has received wage complaints from many
former employees of Bradley. Those complaints indicate a pattern of
terminating employees without payment of the final paycheck. Where
theft reports have been made to the local police, payment has been
withheld pending the outcome of the police investigation.

5 Pursuant to the Colorado Wage Act, payment of the final paycheck
becomes due if no charges are filed or upon acquittal. According to DOLE
files, no charges have been filed in any of the complaints that were lodged
with DOLE. Yet, Bradley has continued withholding the wages due to the
former employees.

6. In 1996-97, after investigation of numerous complaints alleging failure to
pay final paychecks, DOLE brought a compliance action against Bradley
pursuant to the Colorado Wage Act entitied In the Matter of Assessment of
Penalties against Bradley Petroleum, Inc., Sav-O-Mat, Inc., Bradley
Hobson Calkins, George William Calkins, and Kathryn Calkins, Case No.
LS 96-01.

7. The complaining employees in the 1996-97 case claimed that they had
been terminated for alleged shortages, police reports had been filed
against them and they had been denied their final paychecks at the
conclusion of the police investigation even though no charges were filed.

8 Bradley subsequently reached a settlement in March of 1997, in which the
named individuals were dismissed and the corporate defendants agreed
to pay Twenty Thousand Dollars in penalties and establish procedures 1o
abate the offending practices that gave rise (0 the penalties.
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9. Bradley Hobson Calkins, as President and authorized agent for the
corporate defendants and the then Executive Director of DOLE signed the
Settlement Agreement /n the Matter of Assessment of Penalties against
Bradley Petroleum, Inc., Sav-O-Mat, Inc., Bradley Hobson Calkins,
George William Calkins, and Kathryn Calkins Case No. LS 96-01.

10. DOLE's records reveal that approximately six months following the1997

— Settlement Agreement complaints filed with DOLE against Bradley
resumed, with similar allegafions. Complaints against Bradley have~

continued to be filed with this office.

11.Since March 1997, DOLE has received more than 200 complaints from
former Bradley employees that allege the same behavior that Bradley
agreed {0 abate under the terms of the Settlement Agreement.

T
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Edward Arcuri, Adminfstrator

FURTHER Affiant sayeth not.

S

Subscribed gnd sworn 10 before me in the County ofL[ )__gh v2{ _, State of
Colorado, this £ 27 day of greve &, 2002
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Denver County, Colorado, District Court
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720.865.8301 —
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behalf of all others similarly
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The Plaintiffs, by and through their attorney, LEE E. CHRISTIAN, P.C., respectfully allege as

follows: ] ——r

INTRODUCTION, CLASS ALLEGATIONS, PARTIES, JURISDICTION & VENUE

1. This is a class action for damages and declaratory relief against Bradley Petroleum,
Inc.. Sav-O-Mat, Inc., Bradley H. Calkins and George Calkins for nonpayment of wages and
unlawful discharge. Plaintiffs claim that Defendants acted willfully and wantonly.

2. Plaintiff Amy Okamoto is a resident of the County of Morgan, State of Colorado.

L

Plaintiff Angela Davis is a resident of the County of Arapahoe, State of Colorado.
4. Plaintiff Stanley Schaefer is a resident of the County of Yuma, State of Colorado.
5. Plaintiff Valerie June is a resident of the County of Broomfield, State of Colorado.

6. Plaintiff Christopher Rhoades is a resident of the County of Logan, State of Colorado.

7. Plaintiff Bernadette Valdez is a resident of the County of Denver, State of Colorado.
8. Plaintiff Ruby Lowe is currently a resident of Indianapolis, Indiana.
0. Plaintiff Barbara Jackson is a resident of the County of Summit, State of Colorado.

10.  Plaintiff Jeffrey Johnston is a resident of the County of Denver, State of Colorado.
11.  Plaintiff John Allinder is a resident of the County of Weld, State of Colorado.

12. Plaintiff Brian Mandigo is a resident of the County of Denver, State of Colorado.
13. Plaintiff Melinda Lopez is a resident of the County of Adams, State of Colorado.

14.  Plaintiff Joe Aguero is a resident of the County of Weld, State of Colorado.

[y
N

Plaintiff Pearl Jasso is a resident of the County of Weld, State of Colorado.




16.  Plaintiff Darla Ortega is a resident of the County of Weld, State of Colorado.

17. Plaintiff JoAna—Huffman is a resident of the County of Clear Creek, State of
Colorado.

18.  Plaintiff Crystal Corley is a resident of the County of Weld, State of Colorado.

19 Plaintiff Dorene Lopez is a resident of the City of Covina, State of California.

20.  Plaintiff James Vincent Green is a resident of the County of Natrona, State of
Wyoming.

21. Plaintiff Jessica Thompson is a resident of the County of Boulder, State of Colorado.

22.  Plaintiff Floyd Earl, Jr. is a resident of the County of Arapahoe, State of Colorado.

)
()

Plaintiff Channell Ashley is a resident of the City of Glendale, State of Arizona.
24, Plaintiff David Taylor is a resident of the County of Evans, State of Colorado.
25. Plaintiff Pamela Taylor is a resident of the County of Evans, State of Colorado.
26. At all times referenced herein, Plaintiff Amy Okamoto was employed by Sav-O-Mat
inits Forf Morgan service station. Plaintiff Okamoto is, and was at all pertinent times, a resident of
the City of Brush, Colorado.
27 Atall times referenced herein, Plaintiff Angela Davis was employed by Sav-O-Mat
in its Fort Morgan service station. Plaintiff Davis is currently a resident of the City of Aurora,

Colorado.




49,  Atall times referenced herein, Plaintiff Pamela Taylor was employed by Sav-O-Mat
inEService station #6 in Greeley, Colorado. Ms. Taylor is currently a resident of Evans, Colorado.

50.  The Plaintiffs are a class of individuals who were ,employed“at Defendants’ gas
stations who had deductions from their pay for shortages of cash or product, for customer drive-offs,
for robberies, for check stop-payment fees and/or for lock changes. Many in the class had a report
filed against them in bad faith with a law enforcement agency i1 connection with accusations of
theft; however, either (a) no criminal charges were filed against the accused person within ninety
days of the filing of the report; (b) charges were brought and subsequently dismissed; or (c) the
accused person was found not guilty.

51.  Amy Okamoto is a member of a class of persons who were terminated from the
Defendants for complaining about matters of public concern, for expressing public duties, rights
and/or privileges and/or for refusing to commit illegal acts including, but not limited to, complaints
about the wage treatnient of workers, the safety of buildings, gasoline price and quality manipulation.
The class of persons were then denied lawfully earned wages because of false accusations of theft.

59 This is hardly the first time such allegations have been made against Defendants. The
Colorado Department of Labor and Employment, Labor Standards Unit (hereafter DOLE) has
received hundreds of complaints from former employees of the Defendants. The head of Colorado’s
wage enforcement division states the complaints against Defendants indicate a pattern of terminating
emplovees without payment of the final paycheck.

53 In1996-97, DOLE took the extraordinary step of filing a compliance action against.
the Defendants’ for their practice of terminating employees for alleged shortages, filing police
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reports against the employees, and denying employees final paychecks even though charges were not
filed. Defendants paid $20,000.00 in penalties for the illegal practice in March, 1997.

) 54, Nevertheless, DOLE has receivﬁe‘d‘more than 200 complaints from former Brédley
employees that allege the same behavior that Bradley agreed to abate under the terms of the
Settlement Agreement.

55 The State of New Mexico Department of Labor, Labor and Industrial Division
(NMDOL) is faced with the same repetitious outrageous conduct. NMDOL has logged 31 cases of
failure to pay final wages in just two counties since August 1995.

56. Several cases were filed against Defendants with administrative agencies in Colorado
and New Mexico even affer this lawsuit was filed.

57.  The Defendants’ have a pattern and practice of refusing to pay final paychecks based
on aﬂeged shortages. The practice bean in the early 1990s. The Defendants have a policy to deduct
shortages from paychecks and/or terminate employees for shortages and/or refuse to issue final
paychecks based on shortages.

58, Although numerous claims exist, the potential class is composed of persons
demanding final paychecks for hourly work of $6-$9/hour, usually under $1,000 per person.

59.  Defendants Bradley Petroleum, Inc. and Sav-O-Mat, Inc. are Colorado Corporations
maintaining a principal place of business at 105 South Cherokee Street, Denver, Colorado. Atall
times relevant in this Complaint, the Defendants were the employer of the Plaintiffs and others

similarly situated.




60.  Defendants Bradley H. Calkins and George Calkins, as the owners/officers of the

corporations, are liable for unpaid wages.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

61 Plaintiff Okamoto brings this action pursuant to Rule 23 of the Colorado Rules of
Civil Procedure, on behalf of herself and as a representative of a class consisting of:

All individuals who were employed with Defendants’ from October
25, 1998 to present who had deductions from their pay for
mathematical errors, shortages of cash or product, for customer drive-
offs, for robberies and burglaries, for losses assisted by an employee’s
violation of rules or procedures, for incorrectly processed credit card
charges, for bad checks from customers, for check stop-payment fees
and/or for lock changes. The individuals were either not paid their
wages at all or not paid wages with interest and/or penalties as
required by applicable law. Many in the class of individuals may
have had a report filed against them in bad faith with a law
enforcement agency in connection with accusations of theft; however,
either (a) no criminal charges were filed against the accused person
within ninety days of the filing of the report; (b) charges were brought
and subsequently dismissed; or (¢) the accused person was found not
guilty.

62.  Plaintiff Okamoto brings this action pursuant o Rule 23 of the Colorado Rules of

Civil Procedure, on behalf of herself and as a representative of a class consisting of:

All individuals who were terminated from the Defendants for
complaining about matters of public concern, for expressing public
duties, rights and/or privileges and/or for refusing to commit illegal
acts including, but not limited to, complaints about the wage
treatment of workers, the safety of buildings, gasoline price and
quality manipulation. The class of persons were then denied lawfully
earned wages because of false accusations of theft.




63. Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class, brings this action for compensatory
damages pursuant té Colorado Rule of Civil Procedure 3. The Class members have suffered
personal injury as a direct and proximate result of Defendargs’ actions for which an award of
damages is appropriate.

64.  Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the Class, brings this action for other relief
pursuant to Colorado Rule of Civil Procedure 23 asking for a declaration that the Defendants’ acts
are illegal, enjoining Defendants from continuing them.

65. The members of the class are so numerous that their individual joinder herein is
impracticable. On information and belief, there are several hundred class members. The precise
number of class members and their addresses are unknown to Plaintiff.

66.  There are questions of fact and law common to all members of the Class including,
but not limited to:

a. Whether Defendants made deduction from paychecks for shortages of
product or cash, for reimbursement for customer drive-offs, for robberies, for
stop-payment fees, or for changing locks.

b. Whether Defendants filed reports against them in bad faith with a law
enforcement agency in connection with accusations of theft, wherein either
(a) no criminal charges were filed against the accused person within ninety
days of the filing of the report; (b) charges were brought and subsequently

dismissed; or (c) the accused person was found not guilty.
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c. Whether the action caused Plaintiffs’ personal injuries including pain and
suffering and emotional damages.

d. Whether deductions madgby Defendants are illegal under the Coiorezic; Wage
Act and/or the Fair Labor Standards Act.

67.  These and other questions of law and of fact are common to the Class and
predominate over any questions affecting only individual class members.

68.  The claims of Plaintiff Okamoto and the other Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of
the class she seeks to represent.

69.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interest of the Class she
seeks to represent. Plaintiff has obtained counsel competent and experienced in wage/hour and
employment litigation to represent her and the class. Ms. Okamoto is well-suited to address the
policies Defendants have pursued for years. She is a stable, married, 50-year resident of Colorado.
She is a fraud investigator for the Morgan County of Department Social Services. She has diligently
searched for potential class members. She attests to the difficulty she had in getting counsel for this
case and the apprehension that potential plaintiffs have had in joining the litigation.

70.  Certification of the Class is appropriate pursuant to Colorado Rule of Civil Procedure
23 because the questions of law and fact common to the Class predominate over any questions
affecting only individual members. This class action is superior to other available remedies for the
fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy. Individualized litigation presents a potential for
inconsistent or contradictory judgments. Individualized litigation increases the delay and expense

to all parties and the court system presented by the complex legal and factual issues of the case. By
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contrast, the class action device presents far fewer management difficulties, and provides the benefits
of a single adjudication, economy of scale and comprehensive supervision by a single court.

71. ZXH plaintiffs will cite identical clear, long held Colorado and Federal law prohibiting
such conduct.

77, Alternatively, the prosecution of separate actions by or against individuals members
of the class would create a risk of adjudications with respect to individual members of the class
which would as a practical matter be dispositive of the interests of the other members not parties to

the adjudications or substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interest.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: AMY OKAMOTO

73, Ms. Okamoto was employed at Sav-O-Mat, a service station operated by Bradley
Petroleum, in Fort Morgan from August, 1998 - December, 1999.

74.  During the tenure of her employment, Ms. Okamoto was required to work several
hours of overtime each week, yet she did not receive time-and-a-half amounts as required by the Fair
Labor Standards Act.

75, Electrical and wiring problems within the store caused constant cash register failures,
resulting in false cash shortages. Ms. Okamoto consistently reimbursed the till for these shortages
out of fear of losing her job. This caused unjust enrichment to her employver.

76.  Ms. Okamoto’s final paycheck was wrongfully withheld. Defendants alleged that Ms.
Okamoto had stolen from them. The Defendants filed charges of theft with the local law

enforcement authorities. Even when she was cleared of all wrongdoing, her check was not released
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to her. Yet she received a W-2 that included these wages. Wages were finally sent t0 undersigned
cgunsel in July, 2001, fully 18 rmenths post-termination. No interest, penalties or attorneys fees were
wpaid.

77.  The Defendants have a patterm and practice of terminations and similar failure to pay
wages. The Colorado Department of Labor heavily the Defendant or Defendants for similar
practices 1n 1997. Numerous complaints with governmental labor departments and several lawsuits
have alleged actions similar to those taken against Ms. Okamoto.

78.  Ms. Okamoto was terminated after months of complaints regarding matters of public
concern including overtime, wages, safety issues and legal violations.

79.  Inaddition, Plaintiff observed and regularly complained about fueling practices which

were in violation of State and/or Federal law, about safety issues within the Sav-O-Mat and about

her wages, hours and nonpayment of overtime.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: ANGELA DAVIS
80. Ms. Davis was employed at Say-O-Mat, a service station operated by Bradley
Petroleum, in Fort Morgan from April 27, 1999 - December 29, 1999.
81.  Ms. Davis was terminated by Defendants for alleged theft. However, no police report
was ever filed. When Ms. Davis presented at the store on January 10, 2000 to pick up her final

paycheck, Defendants’ had her arrested and charged with trespassing.
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82. Ms. Davis contacted the Colorado Department of Labor and on January 14, 2000, Ms.

Davis sent a Formal Demand for Payment of Wages via certified mail. Defendants did not, and to

date, have not, responded.

83.  Ms. Davis is owed approximately $300.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

4.  Despite the fact that Defendants did not tender Ms. Davis her final paycheck, these
wages were reflected on her W2 statement as wages earned.

5. In addition, Ms. Davis observed fueling practices which were in violation of State
and/or Federal law, cash register malfunctions resulting in false shortages, safety issues within the
Qav-O-Mat and about her wages, hours and nonpayment of overtime.

86.  Ms. Davis observed Plaintiff Okamoto’s complaints regarding fueling practices which
were in violation of State and/or Federal law, cash register malfunctions resulting in false shortages,
safety issues within the Sav-O-Mat and about her wages, hours and nonpayment of overtime.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: STANLEY SCHAEFER

87.  Mr. Schaefer was employed at Sav-O-Mat, a service station operated by Bradley
Petroleum, in Fort Morgan from February, 1999 - December, 1999.

88.  Mr. Schaefer was aware of cash register malfunctions and believes they existed for
four or five years.

89. Mr. Schaefer had to call a cash register company to come in and repair the machine.
A new machine was placed in the store for approximately 2-3 weeks, during which time there were

virtually no shortages. When the old machine was returned, the shortages resumed.
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90.  During the tenure of his employment, he was aware of company representatives from

the Denver office coming into the store and making deposits to clear up shortages.

91.  Mr. Schaefer was terminated by Defendants for alleged theft. However, no police
report was éver filed. Further, Defendants threatened to sue Mr. Schaefer for alleged shortages.

92.  Defendants wrongfully withheld Mr. Schaefer’s final paycheck in contravention of
State law. Mr. Schaefer is owed approximately $438.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

93.  In addition, Mr. Schaefer observed unsafe conditions within the store. Complaints
regarding these conditions were not acted upon by Defendants.

94, Despite the fact that Defendants did not tender Mr. Schaefer his final paycheck, these

wages were reflected on his W2 statement as wages earned.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: VALERIE JUNE

95. Ms. June was employed at Sav-O-Mat, a service station operated by Bradley
Petroleum, at 104™ and Washington in Thornton for three weeks commencing January 11, 2002.

96.  When Ms. June began her employment, the store had been closed for one week due
to the resignation of the pﬂor manager.

97.  Ms. June contacted the Thornton Fire Department and requested an inspection, as
there was no emergency gasoline shut-off in the store.

98 Ms. June was to receive $1,700.00 per month. However. her first payroll check

reflected year-to-date gross income of $2,300.00. She only netted $616. The second payroll check
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reflected year-to-date gross income of $2,860.00‘ Ms. June complained to the payroll personnel
about this discrepancy, yet it has never been corrected.

99.  Prior to working for Sav-0-Mat, Ms. June was employed by 7-11 and Texaco.
[ndustry standard did not dictate the termination of employees when customers filled their cars with
gasoline and left without paying. However, one of Ms. June’s employees, Tom Holzi, was
terminated when a drive-off occurred.

100. Ms. June requested that she be permitted to post “pre-pay” signs on the gas pumps
in an effort to stem drive-offs. Defendant Bradley Calkins refused this request.

101.  Ms. June was afraid to answer the telephone at the store when working due to the
barrage of verbal abuse she received from Defendant Bradley Calkins.

102, Ms. June was terminated by Defendants for alleged theft. However, no police report
was ever filed. Additionally, Defendants wrongfully deducted $91.94 from her final paycheck for
“shortages.”

103, Ms. June is owed approximately $91.94 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: CHRISTOPHER RHEOADES

104. Mr. Rhoades was employed at Sav-O-Mat, a service station operated by Bradley
Petroleum in Castlerock, Colorado from February, 1999 - December, 1999.
105.  Mr. Rhoades replaced the cash register in the store on two separate occasions in an

attempt to remedy shortages caused by malfunctions in the register and/or pump meter.
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106. Mr. Rhoades consistently reimbursed the till for these shortages out of fear of losing
—Hisjob. This caused unjust enrichment to his employer.

107. M1 Rhoades was constructively discharged from his emplc;ymem with Defendants
due allegations of theft. Defendants contacted the Castle Rock police department, which pursued
an investigation against Mr. Rhoades. No criminal charges were ever filed.

108.  Although Mr. Rhoades was cleared of any wrongdoing, he has never received his final
paycheck. Mr. Rhoades traveled to the corporate office in Denver on several occasions and
demanded payment. To date, he has still not been paid.

109. Despite the fact that Defendants did not tender Mr. Rhoades his final paycheck, these
wages were reflected on his W2 statement as wages earned.

110. Mr. Rhoades is owed approximately $588.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys
fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: BERNADETTE YVALDEZ

111.  Ms. Valdez was employed at the Bradley Petroleum service station located at 10" and
Sheridan in Denver, Colorado for two weeks in June, 2001.

112.  Ms. Valdez worked 12 hours per day for 12 days straight and has never received any
wages from Defendants.

113.  Ms. Valdez requested that she be permitted to post “pre-pay”’ signs on the gas pumps

in an effort to stem drive-offs. Defendant Bradley Calkins refused this request.




114. Defendants accused Ms. Valdez of theft (which she denies). After being accused of
theft, Ms. Valdez requested that Defendants produce a copy of the videotape from the camera in the
mstore, which would show she had not S’(Ol;l Aany money. Defendants advised that the cameras do not
actually work, thus no tapes were available.
115. In addition, Defendants filed a police report regarding this incident; however, Ms.
Valdez was cleared of all wrongdoing. The police investigating the claim advised Ms. Valdez that
" Defendants should release her pay within three months.
116. Despite the fact that Defendants never tendered Ms. Valdez any wages, they sent her
2 W-2 form reflecting wages paid.

117. Ms. Valdez is owed approximately $783.64 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: RyuBy LOWE

118. Ms. Lowe was employed at the Sav-O-Mat service station in Castlerock, Colorado
from August, 2001 - November 23, 2001.

119. Despite the fact that Ms. Lowe was employed as a manager and was promised
manager’s wages, she only received clerk’s wages ($7.50/hour).

120. During the tenure of her employment, Ms. Lowe regularly reimbursed shortages to
the cash register out of her own pocket because Defendant Brad Calkins threatened to fire her and/or
withhold money from her paycheck to cover shortages.

121. Ms. Lowe never received her final paycheck. She filed a claim with the Colorado

Department of Labor in an attempt to secure her wages. Defendants provided the Colorado
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Department of Labor with a photocopy of check aumber 159290 payable to Ms. Lowe, yet never
actually sent the check to Ms. Lowe. —_—

122, Ms. Lowe is owed approximately $626.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: BARBARA JACKSON

123.  Ms. Jackson was employed as a manager at the Sav-O-Mat service station in
Silverthorne, Colorado from 1992 - October, 1999.

124. Defendants instructed Ms. Jackson to fire other store managers for shortages.
Defendant Brad Calkins further instructed Ms. Jackson to file police feports regarding shortages.

125. Defendant Brad Calkins was verbally abusive to Ms. Jackson. With respect to
shortages, he threatened, “it’s your job or their job” if shortages were not covered.

126. At Defendant Brad Calkins instructions, Ms. Jackson terminated approximately 12
employees due to shortages. He also instructed her to file police reports in each instance.

127. Ms. Jackson regularly reimbursed shortages out of her own pocket.

128.  The shortages were attributable to tape errors, drive-offs and shoplifting.

129, After tendering her resignation and giving two weeks’ notice, Defendants alleged that
Ms. Jackson was responsible for shortages. This, despite the fact that Ms. Jackson’s store had
undergone two audits prior to her resignation with no shortages appearing.

130.  Defendants filed a theft report against Ms. Jackson. Despite the fact that Ms. Jackson

was cleared of those charges, Defendants withheld her final paycheck.
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131.  Ms. Jackson did not receive her final paycheck. Defendant Brad Calkins advised Ms.
Jackson that it was company policy not to send final paychecks to people fired for shortages.

132.  Even though Ms. Jackson did not receive;ler final check, the amount of pay was
reflected on her W-2 statement as earned income.

133.  Ms. Jackson is owed approximately $1,000.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys
fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JEFFREY JOHNSTON

134.  Mr. Johnston was employed at the Bradley Petroleum station located at Mississippi
and Wadsworth in Lakewood for one day - October 22, 2001.

135, Mr. Johnston was accused of stealing money (which he denies).

136. Defendants would not permit Mr. Johnston to take a break during his 12-hour shift.

137. The station where Mr. Johnston worked did not have a restroom and to use the
restroom he had to go next door to a bowling‘aﬂey.

138.  After his first day of employment, Mr. Johnston called the corporate office and
advised that if he had to work 12 hours, he would like to take a break. Defendants advised that he
could not take a break and that if he did not like the way they operated he should not work there.
He agreed and resigned.

139. At the end of November/early December, Mr. Johnston called inquiring as to the
status of his paycheck. At that time, Defendants advised that there was a shortage the day he worked

and he would not be paid until the money was found.
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140. In an attempt to secure his wages, Mr. Johnston filed a claim with the Colorado
Department of Labor. Defendants finally issued a check in the amount of $9.00.

141. Despite the fact Defendants: only tendered payment in the amount of $9 :00, the sent
Mr. Johnston a W-2 form reflecting wages in the amount of $86.25.

142.  Mr. Johnston is owed approximately $90.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JOHN ALLINDER

143.  Mr. Allinder worked in the Sav-O-Mat store located at 26™ Street and 11" Avenue
in Greeley from December, 2001 until the store was closed in February, 2002.

144. Defendants’ summarily reduced one of Mr. Allinder’s paychecks by 22 3/4 hours.
Additionally, they over-withheld taxes on his paychecks.

145. Defendants’ stopped payment on Mr. Allinder’s final paycheck.

146. Mr. Allinder is owed approximately $675.00 plus interest, penalties and attorneys
fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: BRIAN MANDIGO

147. Mr. Mandigo worked in the Sav-O-Mat store Jocated in Castlerock from
approximately Januafy, 2001 - August, 2001, initially as a clerk and then as a manager.

148,  Mr, Mandigo complained regularly about the condition of the store, as it was
unsuitable to work in due to flea/mite infestation.

149.  When he complained, Defendant Bradley Calkins “cussed him out” for three hours

stating that he did not “care what the customers needed.”
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150. Mr. Mandigo threatened to call the State Health Department due to unhealthy fumes
venting into the building from the fuel vaper-vent. The fumes were so bad at times that a prior
manageryzaura; actually passed out due to inhalation and the fire department was called to revive
her.

151.  Due to the poor condition of the store, Mr. Mandigo resigned his employment.

152. Defendant George Calkins contacted Mr. Mandigo and requested that he return to the
store. Mr. Mandigo agreed to come back only if Defendants cleaned the store and cured the flea
problem.

153. Upon his return, it was obvious to Mr. Mandigo that the store was still infested. He,
therefore, bought bug bombs with his own money in an attempt to sanitize the store. Following this,
he resigned his employment once again and took the keys to the store to Al Lemke in Denver.

154. Following his resignation, Mr. Mandigo never received his final paycheck. He filed
a complaint with the Department of Labor, yet Defendants refused to pay.

155. Mr. Mandigo called Defendants’ corporate office on a daily basis to inquire as to the
status of his paycheck. Eventually, Defendants advised that he was suspected of stealing 458 packs
of cigarettes and thus would not be paid.

156. Defendants then filed a charge of theft with the Douglas County Sheriff, who
investigated Mr. Mandigo and cleared him of all wrongdoing.

157.  Mr. Mandigo believes the Defendants withheld his final paycheck and had him

investigated for theft because of his threats to contact the State Health Department.
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158. Mr. Mandigo is owed approximately $675.00 plus interest, penalties and attorney
fees. e

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: MreLinpA LOPEZ

159. Ms. Lopez worked at the Sav-O-Mat store located on 79" Avenue in Commerce City
on two separate occasions: January, 2000 - March, 2000 and again in September 2000.

160. Ms. Lopez was placed in the position of manager, though she received no training.

161. The cash register malfunctioned on a regular basis and shortages were a regular
occurrence. Defendants advised that if Ms. Lopez did not reimburse shortages, they would be
deducted from her paycheck.

162. At times, Ms. Lopez could not operate the station because the cash register drawer
would not open. Ms. Lopez Jearned that Faton Metal, who usually serviced the cash register, would
no longer provide their services due to Defendants’ non-payment of their invoices.

163. Ms. Lopez often reimbursed shm'tages out of her own pocket. On one occasion, she
deposited her entire paycheck (approximately $600.00) into the cash register to cover shortages.

164. Following her termination in March, 2000, Defendants withheld Ms. Lopez’ final
paycheck.

165. When Ms. Lopez was rehired in September, 2000, she was forced to write a letter
stating she would pay Defendants $500.00 to cover previous shortages. Defendants procéeded to

withhold this sum from her paychecks.




166. Following her termination in October, 2000, Defendants withheld Ms. Lopez’ final
paycheck.

167. Ms. Lopez“is owed approximately $400.00 in ;r;paid wages, $600.00 in
reimbursements to the register, and $500.00 in improper deductions from her paychecks plus interest,

penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JOE AGUERQO

168. Mr. Aguero worked in the Sav-O-Mat store located on 9™ Street in Greeley from
September, 2001 - March, 2002.

169. Mr. Aguero complained regularly about malfunctions with the gas pumps, i.e., the
money would move but no gasoline would be dispensed.

170. Mr. Aguero complained regularly about false advertising - that the price on the sign
would be lower than the price set on the gas pumps.

171. M. Aguero complained regulaﬂy about Defendants’ practice of deducting money for
alleged shortages from his paychecks.

172. Defendants terminated Mr. Aguero due to alleged shortages. Following his
termination, Defendants refused to pay him his final paycheck.

173.  Mr. Aguero is owed approximately $400.00 plus interest, penalties and attorney fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: PEARL JASSO

W

174.  Ms. Jasso worked as a manager in the Sav-O-Mat store located on 9" Street in

Greeley from June, 2001 - March, 2002.
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175. Ms. Jasso was instructed by Defendants to terminate a clerk for a shortage. Ms. Jasso
refused and paid the shortage out of her own pocket.

17; Ms. Jasso regularly reimbursed shorta:ges out of her own pocket.

177. In an effort to stem drive-offs, Ms. Jasso requested permission to post “pre-pay”
signs. Defendant Bradley Calkins verbally berated her for this request.

178.  Ms. Jasso was instructed by Defendants to deduct money from Ranelle Navarette’s
paychecks because Ms. Navarette had three drive-offs over the course of one shift.

179. Ms. Jasso complained because the bathroom is the main office in the store.

180.  Ms. Jasso resigned her employment with Defendants following a robbery. Defendant
Bradley Calkins called Ms. Jasso at the store and asked “why didn’t Vanessa [the clerk who was
robbed] take a bullet” instead of handing over the money and that he “doesn’t care about anybody’s
life, I only care about my money.”

181. Following her resignation, Defendants stopped payment on Ms. Jasso’s final
paycheck. Ms. Jasso, who had cashed the check at a local grocery store, has subsequently been
harassed by a collection company attempting to recover the funds for the grocery store.

182.  Defendants further harassed Ms. Jasso following her resignation by calling her
residence every 10 nﬁnutes from one Friday night through Sunday night accusing her of stealing

$4.000.00 (which she had deposited into Defendants bank account).

183. Ms. Jasso is owed her final paycheck plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.




FACTUAL BACKGROUND: DARLA ORTEGA

184—Ms. Ortega worked in the Sav-O-Mat store number 5 in Greeley, Colorado for three
days in 2001. B

185. Ms. Ortega was terminated by Karen Roberts.

186. Ms. Ortega was advised by Bobbie Vigil in the corporate office that she would not
be paid as she was accused of theft. A police report was filed with the Greeley Police Department.

187. Ms. Ortega denies stealing any money.

188. The case against Ms. Ortega was dismissed by the Weld County District Attorney.

189. Ms. Ortega is owed wages for three days’ work plus interest, penalties and attorneys

fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JoANN HUFEMAN

190. Ms. Huffman worked as a manager in Bradley Petroleum store number 71 located in
Denver, Colorado for five years.

191.  Ms. Huffman was working when the station was robbed. This reason was cited for
her termination.

192, Ms. Huffman’s July, 2001 paycheck had a miscellaneous deduction in the amount of
$285.00 for alleged theft.

193. Ms. Huffiman was advised by Defendants’ that if there were ever any shortages, she

(and potentially her clerks) would be terminated.




194. Brad Calkins called Ms. Huffman “stupid” and stated that he hoped she “would get
hit by a car.”

195.  Ms. Huffman is owed unpaid wages plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: CRYSTAL CORLEY

196. Ms. Corley worked in the Sav-O-Mat store located on 9™ Street in Greeley for just
over one week in June, 2002.

197. Ms. Corley was accused of theft (which she denies) and was subsequently terminated.

198. Defendants’ filed a report with the Greeley Police Department, who then cleared Ms.
Corley of all wrongdoing.

199. Defendants’ have refused to issue Ms. Corley her paycheck. Ms. Corely is owed
approximately $500.00 plus interest, attorneys fees and costs.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: DORENE LOPEZ,

200. Ms. Lopez worked as a manager in the Bradley Petroleum store located at Alameda
and Clay in Denver on two separate occasions: from September, 2000 - December, 2000 and from
January, 2001 - March, 2001.

201. Ms. Lopez was directed by the corporate office to terminate employees if they had
any shortages on their shifts. Ms. Lopez did fire two employees due to shortages, but did not file a
police report in either instance.

202.  Ms. Lopez complained regularly about malfunctions with the gas pumps. Defendants’

stated they would send someone out to fix the problem, but never did.




203. Ms. Lopez was terminated from her employment in December, 2000 because she
closed the store on Christmas day. She was subsequently rehired the following month.

204. Ms. Lopez was again te;minated in March, 2001 following a robbery at the store. Ms.
Lopez never received her final paycheck.

205. Ms. Lopez filed a complaint with the Colorado Department of Labor regarding

payment of her wages.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JAMES VINCENT GREEN

206. Mr. Green worked in the Bradley Petroleum store located in Casper, Wyoming from
March, 2001 - July, 2001.

207. Mr. Green regularly complained regarding a gas leak at the station. Bradley Calkins
responded by accusing Mr. Green of gasoline theft.

208. During the tenure of his employment, only one other employee worked in the store
with him. These two employees were expected to keep the store open 24 hours/day, 7 days/week and
did not receive a day off.

209. The pumps at the station were very old. Mr. Green regularly complained about
shortages caused by register and pump malfunctions. Following his separation from employment
the store was closed for a month and then new pumps were installed.

710. Mr. Green was constructively discharged from his employment due to the manner in

which he was treated by Bradley Calkins.




711. Defendants’ wrongfully withheld monies from Mr. Green’s final paycheck. Mr. Green

is owed wages plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees—

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: JESSICA THONMPSON

212. Ms. Tompson worked in the Qav-O-Mat store located on Main Street in Longmont,
Colorado.

213. Ms. Thompson was not properly trained by Defendants.

214, Ms. Thompson was accused of theft, which she denies.

215. Following her termination, Defendants advised Ms. Thompson that a police report
had been filed. When Ms. Thompson contacted the police to discuss the case, she learned no case
had been filed.

216. Defeﬁdants refused to issue Ms. Johnson her final paycheck. When Ms. Johnson
called Defendants’ corporate office to inquire as to payment, she was hung up on.

217. Ms. Thompson is owed her final wages, interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: FLOYD EARL, JR.

918. Mr. Earl was employed by Defendants for one week in December, 2001 in their
service station located at 13700 East Quincy Avenue, Aurora, Colorado.
919.  Mr. Earl was accused of theft (which he denies) and terminated. Defendants filed a

report with the Aurora Police Department.




220. Mr. Earl filed a complaint with the Colorado Department of Labor. On February 5,
2002, in responding to the Department of Labor’s request for information, Defendant representative
Jerome Joiner advised the DOL that Mr. Earl’s “ched:would be released if no charges are filed.” ‘

221.  On May 21, 2002, Aurora Police Detective Elizabeth Hudson advised Defendant
representative Al Lemke that no charges were being filed against Mr. Earl and Defendants should
release his paycheck to him.

797, Defendants have refused to pay Mr. Earl. Mr. Earl is owed approximately $400.00

plus interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: CHANNELL ASHLEY

223. Ms. Ashley worked in the Bradley Petroleum store located in Silverthorne, Colorado
for a three week period in December, 1999 - January, 2000.

924,  Ms. Ashley was accused of a shortage (which she denies). Defendants’ filed a police
report accusing Ms. Ashley of theft.

225. Despite the fact that no criminal charges were ever brought against Ms. Ashley,
Defendants have refused to pay her wages owed for three weeks” work.

226. Ms. Ashley filed a Complaint with the Colorado Department of Labor and made a
formal demand for payment of wages.

227.  Ms. Ashley is owed approximately $1,570.00 plus interest, attorneys fees and

penalties.
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FACTUAL BACKGROUND: DAVID TAYLOR

728. Mr. Taylor worked in at Sav-O-Mat #6 located in Greeley, Colorado as a manager
from July - August, 2001 : -

229, Mr. Taylor was terminated due to an alleged shortage, and did not receive his final
paycheck.

730. Defendants’ filed a police report against M. Taylor. No criminal charges, however,
were ever filed.

231.  Mr. Taylor was told by Karen Roberts that Brad Calkins would rather pay his attorney
“thousands of dollars” than to pay anyone with a shortage.

232.  Mr. Taylor received a W2 that reflected income he never received.

233.  Mr. Taylor is owed two weeks’ wages, interest, penalties and attorneys fees.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND: PAMELA TAYLOR

234. Ms. Taylor worked in at Sav-O-Mat #6 located in Greeley, Colorado from July -
August, 2001.

235.  Ms. Taylor was terminated following her husband, David’s, termination for an alleged
shortage. Ms. Taylor did not receive any wages while employed by Defendants.

236. Defendants’ filed a police report against Ms. Taylor. No criminal charges, however,

were ever filed.
237.  Ms. Taylor received a W2 that reflected income he never received.

238. Ms. Taylor is owed unpaid wages, interest, penalties and attorneys fees.




FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(WAGE ENTITLEMENT UNDER THE COLORADO WAGE ACT)
(ALL PLAINTIFFS AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

239,  Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 238 of this Fourth Amended
Complaint as though fully realleged herein.

240. Plaintiffs are owed reimbursement for cash register reimbursements, wages and
penalties for the wrongful retention of their final paychecks. The wages are due and payable.

241. The Defendants, without good faith legal justification refused to pay such wages, and
are therefore subject to a 50% penalty of wages under Colorado law.

742. The Defendants acted without good faith in filing reports with law enforcement
agencies and therefore the accused employee Plaintiffs are entitled to an amount not to exceed treble
the amount wrongfully withheld, attorneys fees and court costs.

743. Defendant Bradley Calkins, as an officer of the Defendant Bradley Petroleum, Inc.,
and Defendant George Calkins, as an officer of the Defendant Sav-O-Mat, Inc., are individually
liable for unpaid compensation as set forth in this claim for relief.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(UNJUST ENRICHMENT-CASH REIMBURSEMENTS PAID Into TILL)
(PLAINTIFFS OKAMOTO, RHOADES, JACKSON, LOPEZ AND JASSO
AGAINST DEFENDANTS BRADLEY PETROLEUM AND SAV-0-MAT)

244, Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 243 of this Fourth Amended

Complaint as though fully realleged herein.
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745. Defendants engaged the services of Plaintiffs Okamoto, Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and
Jasso and Plaintiffs Okameto, Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and Jasso diligently performed said services.

746. Plaintiffs Okamoto, Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and Jasso reimbursed the company for
apparent cash shortages that may not have been real due to machine error.

247. Plaintiffs Okamoto, Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and Jasso rendered services with the
reasonable expectation that they would be paid the reasonable value of such services by the
Defendants.

248. Defendants accepted such reimbursements and knew or should have known that
Plaintiffs Okamoto, Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and Jasso made several reimbursements.

249. Defendants were unjustly enriched in that they had the benefit of Plaintiffs Okamoto,
Rhoades, Jackson, Lopez and Jasso’s work and reimbursements.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(BREACH OF CONTRACT)
(ALL PLAINTIFFS AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)
250. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 249 of this Fourth Amended
Complaint as though fully realleged herein.
751 Plaintiffs and Defendants entered into an agreement for the payment of Plaintiffs for
work performed.

252, Plaintiffs provided services to the Defendants.

753. Defendants have refused to pay wages owed.
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FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(WRONGFUL DISCHARGE IN VIOLATION oF PUBLIC POLICY)

(PLAINTIFFS OKAMOTO AND MANDIGO AGAINST R

DEFENDANTS BRADLEY PETROLEUM AND SAV-0-MAT)

754,  Plaintiffs hereby incorporates paragraph 1 through 253 of this Fourth Amended
Complaint as though fully restated herein.

755. Defendants prohibited Plaintiffs Okamoto and Mandigo from performing of a public
duty or exercising an important job-related right or privilege.

256. The acﬁon of Defendants violate a specific statute relating to the public health, safety
or welfare and would undermine a clearly expressed public policy relating to the Plaintiffs’ basic
responsibility as a citizen or the Plaintiffs’ rights or privileges as workers.

257. The Defendants were aware, Or reasonably should have been aware, that the Plaintiffs
complaints were based on their reasonable belief that the actions of the Defendant was illegal,
contrary to clearly expressed statutory policy rdaﬁng to the Plaintiffs’ duties as citizens and violative
of their legal rights or privileges as workers.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(FLSA)
(ALL PLAINTIFFS AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

758.  Plaintiffs hereby incorporates paragraphs 1 through 257 of this Third Amended

Complaint as through fully realleged herein.
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259. At the times hereinafter mentioned, Defendants Bradley Petroleum, Inc. and Sav-O-

Mat, Inc. were the employer of the Plaintiffs within the meaning of §3 (d) of the Fair Labor
Standards Act, 29 USC 261, et seq. -

760. Plaintiffs were employees of the Defendants within the meaning of §3 (e) of the Act.

261. At all times herein Defendants and Plaintiffs were engaged in commerce and
Plaintiffs were employed by an enterprise engaged in commerce throughout the period of their
employment by Defendants.

262. Defendants employed Plaintiffs for work weeks longer than forty hours and failed and
refused to compensate Plaintiffs for such work in excess of forty hours at rates not less than one-and-
one-half times the regular rates at which they were employed, contrary to thé provisions of §7 (a) of
the Act.

263. Defendants’ failure to pay Plaintiffs’ wages equates to the Plaintiffs not being paid
a minimum wages as required by the Act.

764. Defendants Bradley Petroleum, Inc. and Sav-O-Mat, Inc. willfully violated the Act.
Defendants’ refusal to pay overtime or minimum wage was without good faith or reasonable ground
to believe that the Defendants were in compliance with the Act, mandating an award of liquidated
damages under the Act.

265. Defendants Bradley Petroleum, Inc. and Sav-O-Mat, Inc. have failed to pay

compensation contrary to §7 (a) of the Act.




766. Plaintiffs are owed wages in an amount to be established at trial. Plaintiffs are also
entitled to recover an additional equal amount as liquidated damages under the Act, plus attorneys
fees, interest, costs and such other relief as appropriate and allowed by law.

767. Defendants Bradley Calkins and George Calkins, as officers of the corporate
Defendants, are individually liable for unpaid compensation as set forth in this claim for relief.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(OUTRAGEOUS CONDUCT)
(ALL PLAINTIFFS AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

258,  Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 257 of this Fourth Amended
Complaint as though fully restated herein.

759, The Defendants engaged in extreme and outrageous conduct by attempting to have
Plaintiffs charged with a crime, threatened unsupported civil and/or criminal charges or otherwise
conspired to deprive Plaintiffs of lawful wages.

260. The Defendants engaged in the conduct recklessly or with the intent of causing the
Plaintiff severe emotional distress.

261. The Plaintiffs incurred severe emotional distress which was caused by the

Defendants’ conduct.
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SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(DEFAMATION)
“(PLAINTIFFS OKAMOTO, RHOADES, VALDEZ, JACKSON, MANDIGO, ORTEGA
CORLEY, LOPEZ, ASHLEY, EARL, TAYLOR AND TAYLOR —
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

262. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 261 of this Third Amended
Complaint as though fully restated herein.

763. Defendants published or caused to be published a statement that the Plaintiffs were
terminated for theft from the Defendants.

764. The statement caused Plaintiffs actual damages.

765. The substance or gist of the statement was false at the time it was published.

FIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(ABUSE OF PROCESS)
(PLAINTIFFS OKAMOTO, RUOADES, VALDEZ, JACKSON, MANDIGO, ORTEGA
CORLEY, LOPEZ, ASHLEY, EARL, TAYLOR AND TAYLOR
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

266. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 265 of this Fourth Amended
Complaint as though fully restated herein.

267. The Defendants intentionally caused police investigations to be conducted against
Plaintiffs Okamoto, Rhoades and Valdez.

268. The principal reason for Defendants’ action was other than to recover monies
allegedly stolen by Plaintiffs. Rather, Defendants engaged in this action in order to withhold

Plaintiffs’ wages.
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969. The action of the Defendants caused the Plaintiffs actual damages.

NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
- (MALICIOUS PROSECUTION)
(PLAINTIFFS OKAMOTO, RHOADES, VALDEZ, JACKSON, MANDIGO, ORTEGA
CORLEY, LOPEZ, ASHLEY, EARL, TAYLOR AND TAYLOR
AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

270. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate paragraphs 1 through 269 of this Fourth Amended

Complaint as though fully restated herein.

971. Defendants caused criminal cases to commence against the Plaintiffs.

972. The criminal cases were commenced by a complaint made by the Defendants.
973, The criminal cases ended in favor of the Plaintiffs.

274.  The Defendants’ complaints against the Plaintiffs were without probable cause.

275, The Defendants’ complaints against the Plaintiffs were motivated by malice towards

the Plaintiffs.

276, As aresult of the criminal prosecution, the Plaintiffs incurred damages.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully requests that this Court enter judgment in their favor

and against the Defendants, and grant:

(a) Declaratory and other injunctive and/or equitable relief;

(b) Compensatory damages on all claims allowed by law in an amount to be determined
at trial;

©) Back pay and front pay on all claims allowed by law, including lost benefits, bonuses,
promotions, seniority and other employment compensations;
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(d)

()

(g)
(i)

{1)

Punitive damages on ail claims allowed by law and in an amount 0 be determined
af trial; I

Damages for emﬂﬁunﬁ distress, loss of repufation, humiliation, and other pain and
suffering;

Attorneys tees and the cosls of this action, including expert witness fees, on all
claims allowed by law;

Pre- and post-judgment interest al ithe lawful rate;

Reinstatement: and

Any further relief that this court deems just and proper. and any other relief as

allowed by law.

PLAINTIFFS REQUEST A JURY ON ALL MATTERS SO TRIABLE.

DATED this 317 day of October, 2002.

Y¥TTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFES
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
[ hereby certify that on OctoberQL, 2002, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing
FOURTH AMENDED COMPLAINT by placing-same in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid;
addressed to the following:

Otto K. Hilbert, 11, Esq.

ROBINSON WATERS & D’ORISIO, PC
1099 18" Street, Suite 2600

Denver CO 80202-1926
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EMENT Amemeni”) is entered into as of March
s 2003 by and between BRADLEY ?ETROLEUM, INC.,, & Colorado corporation
(“Bradley™), SAV-0-MAT, INC,, a Colorado corporation, BRADLEY H, CALKINS,
incividually, GRORGE CALKINS, individually (collectively “Bradley” or the “Defendants™
AMY OKAMOTO, ANGELA DAVIS, STANLEY SCHAEFER, VALERIE YUNE,
CHRISTOPHER RHOADS, BERNADETTE VALDEZ, RUBY, LOWE, BARBARA
JACKSON, JEFFREY JOHNSTON, JORN ALLINDER, ERJAIN MANDIGO, MELINI
LOPEZ, JOB AG‘UER@ PBARIL, JASSO, DARLA ORTEGA, OANISI HUFFMAN CRYSTAE.; '
CCRELY, DORENE e LOPBZ, JAMES VINCENT GREEN, JESSICA THOB\@SON FLOYD
EARL TR, CHANNELL ASHLEY, PAMELA TAYLOR, DAVID TAYLOR, KEVIN WARD

ang LEANNA. MILLER, individually and on behalf of all aths:% similarly sitsated (collectively
the “Employes Clags™).

4. Bradley operutes gasoline siations in Coloradn, New Mexico aod Wyoming.

B.  The Employee Class consists of individuals who }m amployed by Bradley from
October 25, 1998 throngh Pebruacy 13,2003, - !

c, A dispute has arigen between Bradley and the loyee Class with respect to the
payment of wages upon teymination, A Complaint was filed by Amy Okamoto, individually end
on hehalf of & purported Employee Class of persons, on or about| October 22, 2001 in the District
Court for the City and County of Deaver, Colorado, Case No. 01-CV-5947 (hereinafter teferred
to agthe "Action"). The Action alleged claims for (1) wage entxﬁlgment under the Colorade
Wage Act, (2) unjust eprichment, (3) wrongful discharge, (4) Fa*r Labor Standards Act, (5} good
faithiand faie dealing, (6) outrageous conduct, and (7) defamation,

D, Bradley denios that they have committed any violptions of law or engaged in any
wrorigful acts alleged, or which could have been alleged, in this or auy sinsilar action.
Nevertheless, the parties hereby agree that in consideration of thé undertakings, promises and
payments set forth in this Agreement and conditioned upon the entry of an Order approving the
settl=ment and directing the implementation of the texms snd conditions of this Agreement, the
claims asserted or that could have been esserted in the Action shall be settled and compromised
upoir the terms and conditions set forth below.

i
1
1. “Action” means the lawsnlt fled on October 22, %001 in the District Court for the
City and County of Denver, Colorado, Case No. 01-CV-§947. [

2.  “Agreement” or “Seitlement Agreemment” means this Settlement Agrecment.

i
i
i

|
l




|

- 3 “Proployee Class” means (1) all individuals who arc not Plaintiffs who were
emigloyed by Bradley or Sav-O-Mat from October 25, 1998 through February 13, 2003 who had
deductions from thelr wages for mathematical errors, shortages of cash or product, customer
drive-offs, robberies, burglaries, logses caused by an employee’s vislation of company ,
procedures (exoept edmitted, documented and agreed upon theft by or loan to an employes),
incorrestly proceased credit card charges, bad checks from customers, stop-payment foes due to
lost or destroyed employee paychecks and/or for stose lock changes, and (2) all terminated :
individuals who weze either (8) not paid wages & all upon their ferm ination or (b) nol peid wages
upon thedt termination with penaltics as required by applicable law.

3

4. “Employee Class Counsel™ means Plaintiffs' counsel of record.

5. “Bmployes Class Member™ means 2 person who ‘éﬁ'ts within the definition of
Pamgraph 3, supra. ]
. i
6. “Patrness Hearing” means the settlement approval hearing to be conduoted by the
Court in. conssction with the final determination of the good faith, fairness, adequacy and
reggonableness of thiz Agreement. !

H

7. “Partieg” means Plalatiffs, BEmployee Clase members and Defendants.
8. “Plaintiffs” means the named Plaintiffy as set forth sbove.

9, “Releaged Claims” means any and all claims, rights (including xights to
reimbursemant or restitution), dernands, actions, causes of action, suits, matiers, 1agues, delts,
liens, damages, attomeys’ fees, obligations, contracts, Liabilities, agreements, costs, expenses ot
loges of any nature; whether known or unknown, direct or indirgct
contingent or absolute, existing or potential, suspected or unsusgecte d, equitable or legel, and
whether under federal statutory law, federal common law or federal segulation, or the stabubes,
sonstitutions, regulations, ordinanees, common law, or any othet law of any and sll states or
subifivisions, perishes or municipalities, which arc alleged or which could or might have been
alleged in the Actlon or in any other action by any Employee Class Member, arising out of or
related in any way to the allegations, factual aysertions, events, tyansactions, acts, OCCIDTENOSS,
staements, representations, omissions, or any ather matier, em by, involved or set forth in,
of otherwige related to the Action. |

10.  “Released Parties” means Bradley and Sav-O-Mat, and each of their predecessors,
sucovssors, parenty and affiliated entities, and each of their past gnd present officers, divectors,
employees, agents, servants, aftoineys, acoountants, advigors, sharebolders, insurers,
repycsentatives, partners and assigns. “eleased Parties” also ingludes Bradley H. Calkins and
George Callins individually and in their capacity as officers andlemployees of Bradley and Sav-
O-Mat, The term “Released Parties” also means any other person againgt whotn aay Employes
Cless Membet has, had, or may have a claim arising out of or otherwiss relsted (o acts,
repuosentations, staternents or omissions of any of the parties described in this paragraph.




 NOW, THEREFORE, in considetation of the mutua] covenants and conditions herein,
ard for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficlency of which is hersby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: :

1. No Admisslon of Lisbility. This Agreement is fdr settlement purposes only, and
tor-the fullest extent permitted by law neither the fact of, nor anyprovision contained in this
Agreement or its attachments, nor auy action taken hereunder shall constitute, be construed as, or
be admissible in evidence as any admission of the valldity of any claim or any fact alleged by
Plalntiffs in the Action or in any other pending or subsequently filed action, or of any
wrengdoing, fault, violation of law, or Hability of any kind on the part of any Releaged Party or
admission by any Releaged Party, of the validity or lack thereof bf any claim, allegation or
defense asserted in this Action of in any other Action, Defendants maintain that they have
consistently acted in sccordance with governing laws at all timed and deny that they have
comymitted any violations of law or engaged in any wrongful actd slleged in the Action or
otlisrwige. :

2. Contingent Certification of Employee Class Claishs. Defondants agree to
certification of the Employee Class, for settlement purposes only, under Rule 23(b)(2) and (3) of
theColorado Rules of Civil Procedure. Defendants do not consent to the certification of an
Employee Class for any purpose other than to effectuste the se t of the Action. Inthe
event the Agrecment is terminated pussnant to its tezms or for any reason the settlement get forth
in this Agreement is not effectuated, the certificgtion of the Employee Class shall be vecated and
the Action shall proceed as though the Employes Class had nevel been certified.

3. Non-monetary Relief, The parties agres that:

A)  This Court shall retain contlnning jurisdiction over this action for purposes

of hearing fisture claims, if any, to ensure {hat Bradley complics with the
termg of this Apreement, and cease making dednctions from wages for
mathematical errors, shortages of cashior grod\zct, customer drive-offs,
tobberies, burglaries, losses cansed by an employee's violation of
company procedures, incorrestly processed credit card charges; bad
checks from customers, stop-payment feed dus to lost or destroyed
employee paychecks, and/or for stors look changes, Bradley will ensure
full compliance with the Colorado Wage Claim Act and will not make
miscellaneous deductions or withhold an gmployee’s paycheck upon
tormination except a8 permitted by C.R.8.18-4-101(7.5).

B)  Bradley will eliminate the acknowledgment patagraph following the
references section in the application form, enttled "READ AND
UNDERSTAND BEFORE SIGNING BELOW" and extending to the




o

|

bottom of the page where signature lines ave provided fo the extsnt it
damands any walver of rights under the %ei@raéa Wage Act.

Bradley will ensure that Fair Labor Standards Act and Colorado Wage
Claim Aect pogters are posted at esch Ofﬂ‘}g stores,

Monetary Relief. The parties apree that: i

A)

E)

Cy

D)

E)

The total sum of $65,000 will be paid to the Plaintiffs as identified in the
Fifth Amended Comnplaint no later than 15 days after the setflement has
been approved by the Cowrt. Non-Plaintiff Employee Class Members will
e paid as specified later in paragraph 4. '

| .

The total sum of $70,000 will be paid to $mpmyee Class Covmsel for
payment of aitorueys' feos and costs i iny this matter for work up to
and {nclhuding December 5, 2002. This suwm will be paid within 15 days of
the approval of the seftlement by the Couit.

Bradley agrees to pay Lindecrantz and : piatas, 217 Bast 7th Avenus,
Denver, Colorado a reasonable amount (cplevlated at the investigator’s
normal rates) not to exceed $10,000 to investigate and attempt to locate
additional Employee Clags Members. The investigator will be paid within
a reesonable amount of time of submitﬁn% periodic bills to the office of
the Defendants' atiotneys.

for amounts owed to these Emplayee Clas
to as Employee Class Members) as defiued in definitional paragraphs 3,
and 8 of this Agreement . This is not s tofal sum or cap on amounts to be
paid to the unidentified class members. Defendants agree as a part of this
setleinent that all Broployee Class Members who are located and who :
meet the definition of an Emiployes Class Member will be compengated
within 15 days of being located by the invpstigator, approved by the
parties, and/or ordered by the arbitrator. .

The parties agree to submit any disputes rl;garding? grmoumts dus io
edditional Employee Class Members who are not currently named to 2
neutral arbitrator, Mr. Carlos Leal, Vates gnd Leal, LLP, 700'17th St.,
20th Floor, Denver, Colorado 80202. Bratiley agrees to pay the
reasonsble expenses associated with such arbitrator not to exceed the total
sum of $10,000, The procedures for arbitration will be determined by the
arbitretor at a later date. All parties agree to be bound by the decision of
the arbitrator,




s
|

1

F) ~'The pérties iiree to create a list of all potential Bmployee Clasa Members
whioch will indicate for each potential Employes Class Member (1)
whether they recelved a final payocheck termination, (2) if they
received a fipal paycheck and the date uppn which they received such
checle, (3) whether any miscellaneous deductions were taken out of the
paycheck, and (4) what smount, if any, isowed to that individual bass
upon the terms of this Agresment. Disagreements as to participagts or
members on this list will be submitied to the atbifrator.

G)  Employes Class Members who are contained on the joint parties’ list, and
who are located, and submit a claim orally or In writing to the investigator
pursusnt to the torms of this Agreement shall receive compensation as
follows: '

H A NensPiaiuﬁﬁ' Employee Class Metnber who had & miscellansous
deduction taken from thelr paycheck will be reimbursed the
amoumt of the deduction plus a fifly percent penalty;

(2) A Not-Plaintiff Bmployes Class Member who never recelved a
final payoheck will be reimbursedithe amount due 2 a final
 peycheck plus & one hundred percent penalty; -

i
(3) A Noo-Plaintiff Employes Class NMember who received a final
paycheck more then 180 days aftet their termination will receive
fifty percent of the total amoumt of the final paycheck as
compepsation. ; ~
i

H)  All Employee Class Merabers must subinit their claims pussuant 1o
paragraph 4(G) no later then December 31, 2003, Ifan Bmployes Class -
Mexmber is not located by Decamber 31, 2003, Bradley agrees to calculate
fifty percent of the amownt due and owing to each remaining Emplovee
Class Member and pay such emount to the trist account of Robinson
Waters & O'Doristo, P.C. Such amounts will be paid from the trust
account into a charitable account set up fof the purposes of legal aid in
civil rights cases through the University of Deaver School of Law.
Employes Clags Counsel will receive an atcownting of the calenlations,
transactions, trust deposits and digburseménts, Any disagreements as to
the calendation will be submitted to the aﬂ{im.

5. Attorneys® Fees and Costs. The Employec Class'counsel agrees to meke, and
Bradley agress not to appose, an application to the Court for attojmeys” fees and costs in the
ampunt of $70,000 for work performed through the date of the tentative setflement, December 5,
2002, The Employee Class’ eonnsel further agrees to maks, and Bradley sgroes not to oppose,
an spplication to the Coust for attorneys’ fees in the amount of 3&5,900 for fivkure work in the
matter inoe December 5, 2002 including attempts to idsntify additional Employee Class




i

sers and subinit thefr claims to Bradley, No othér request for attorneys’ fees and costa from
inst Bradley will be made in this Action or otherwise, ‘i

6. Notlee to the Setilement Bmployee Class, N@d@é of this Settlement Agreement
hes ocousred in 8 form agreed to by the parties and approved by the Court. The parties provi
Netice by an ed in the local newspapers in the cities in Coloradd, New Mexico and Wyoming
wheve Brudley operates, which has already been published on thres sepesate occagions. Bradley
also agrees that it will submit a notice with mutually agreed wpop langusge meiled to the last
keiovwn address of all identified Rmployee Class Metbers in paragraph 4(F). Bradley will bear
thie costs of the notices. o '

7. Right Te Be Excluded From The Employee Class. Any person who otherwise
would be an Employee Clags Metgber may request exclusion from the Employes Class up 1o and
including two weeks after the Faimess Hearing of February 13, 2003. To exercise the exclusion
right set forth in this section, the person must fimely camplets, sign and reforn a request for
exdlusion before the Opt Out Deadline, Employee Class Counsgl designated to receive all Opt
Out requests shall provide copies of all Opt Out requests to Defendants no later than 10 business
days after the opt Out deadline. Except for thoss persons who timely and properly request
exclusion, all persons within the definition of the Etnployee Class are deemed Employee Class
Members for all purposes under this Agreement. - -

'8, Reloases. Ths settlement set forth in this Agreemient shall be the sole and
exelusive remedy for any and all Released Claims against the R%le&seé Parties. Each Employee
Class Membet shall be barred from initiating, ssserting, or proseputing Released Claims or any
olaimms that are otherwise released by operation of this Agreement. The Ermployee Class and
their respective agents, successors, helrs, assigns or any other 1 who can clajim by or
through them in any mepner shall be deemed to have, and by operation of this Agreement, shall
have folly, finally, and forever irrevooably released, teﬁnqmshﬁ and discharged with prejudice
all Released Claims against the Released Parties. i -

9. Consummation of Setflemnent. Should this Settlement Agreement not receive final
Cort approval for any reason, or if this Setflement Agreement ig cancelled or terminated, this
Setflement Agréement shall be noll and void, ab initip, and of no force and effect, and nothing
hersin ghall be deemed to prejudice the position of any of the parftics with respect to this Action
or otherwise, and neither the existence of this Settlement Agre nor its contents shall be
adrzissible in evidence, refered, o for any purpose in the Actionlor in any othet litigation or
proceeding, or be deemed a presuaption, conesssion of admizeidn by Bradley of any frule,
Hability or wrongdoing. ‘

10.  Dismissal of Civil Action. Upon approval by the [Cout and within 15 days of the
payments provided for in paragraphs 4(A)(B), Plaintiffs will diszaiss the Action with prejudice
subject to the Court’s continuing jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Agresment,

11.  Amendment; Complete Agreement. All amendments and Qapplemeﬁis to this
Agreement must be in wiiting and executed by ell of the partes hereto. This Agreement

eonfning the eftive agrecment and understanding batereen the merties hersts conoerning the
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JOE AGUERO

DARLA ORTEGA

CRYSTAL CORLEY

JAMES VINCENT GREEN

FLOYD EARL, JR.

' REUTN WARD

DAYID TAYLOR
AFPROVED AS TO FORM:

ROBINSON WATERS & O'DORISIO, P.C.

By

- DORENF L OPEZ

- Otio X, Hilbert, I
Counzel for Defendants

WLWA%iO?EZ

PEARL JATSO

!
JESSICA THOMPSON

{

CHANNULASHLEY

TEATNA MOLLER

1

PAMELA TAYLOR

\

LEE, E. CHRISTIAN, P.C.
¥

By:

|
Lee B. Cluistian
Counsel for Plaintiffs

H .

]

By:

Dam}‘.d W. Killmer
Comjsel for Plaintiffs




72685 Tucsén Way Centennial, Colorado 80112-3290 {303) 733-4627 Feix (303) 7779052

Date.

L, AL AR ALIA

Wihe ataount of SL,,_L‘iiq- [ acknowledge and agree that the

from my paycheck!

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property 1t bk from Bradley Petroleum, Inc. )

Aionl dake a olime

el
o

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

AL

m
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i
7268 5 Tucson Way Cemtennial, Colorado 8§0112-3290 (303) 7;33-4&27 Fex (303) 777-9062
Date. ’5{/ s L{/ 0 %
i
: V7,
f ' ) ';/\\i_% g

i\
| _ | %
LN T r Mé@dﬁi agree that Bradley Petroleunt, Inc. may withhold

from my paycheck the amount of $__&-Q . 5%_ 1 ac:knowl%dge: and agree that the
i

amourtt heing withheld from my paycheck js a deduction fora g@god or equipment or

property 1 took from Bradley Petroleum, Ine.




. o . |
i ({/g e part Lf";’Z?i‘"* » that Bradley Petroleum, Inc, may withhold
¥

agre
2 &
wof § 2] ! 06 . Tacknowledge and agree that the

from my 1‘3@3 check the amoun

arngnt bﬁng withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

E

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

. i
& 5}’ . ¥ [ oy 2
L

, /ey 4
£ ) "xﬁﬁxf P

7 /‘ x.w*""i:

A 5,
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(303) 733-4627 Fax (303) 777-9062

7268 S Tucson Way

Date: 7@:?_ Og I

Centennial, Colerado 80112-3290

i e 30

Jﬂﬂr\&:\x LAAS, agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc, may withhold

from my paycheck the amount of §_ Z 5 g o1 acknowledge and agree that the

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment ot

property [4eek from Bradley Petroleum, Ine. -+
cLisnrt +aKL e Aogeatinry

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

v .




7268 S Tucson Way Centennial, Colorado 80112-3290 (303) 733-4627 Fax (303) 777-9052

ff 7 £} &) D
Date: ;’{/;’)f? 22 e 5 ()cf;f{

o # + 2

I, 25,;; f{éﬁj,ﬁgj/;/; , agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

. I acknowledge and agree that the

from my paycheck the amount of §

from Bradley Petroleum, Inc.

B e e e A s Ol / B LL A
Employee’s Signature

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

g

: T AT :q T o
By: vf«’f’ S L AL
- ~F
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7268 STucson Way  Centennial, Colorado 80112-3290 (303) 733-4627  Fax (303) 777-9052

1 [ales
1 1

Date:

I, Kﬁ& 7Le MM@J&V*M , agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold

from my paycheck the amount of § (50 . I acknowledge and agree that the
amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property Iteekfrom Bradley Petroleum, Inc.

\WAS A
jj R\W&

e T “W"\‘
e
OF g
I Employee’s Signature
NOTE Y |
W A

TRE

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.
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7268 S Tucson Waoy Centennial, Colorado

Soked? g

Date: [ (3 /2¢// 6&

G7AS SA ékf/%f%%e*/‘ O /@s/;g//{’,/.)%

I, Sf\ Li A A,@&ﬂxoﬂm@agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold

from my paycheck the amount of $ JA (7, 0O . Tacknowledge and agree that the

amount being withheld from my payéheck 1s a deduction for a good or equipment or

property I took from Bradley Petroleum, Inc.

A

Lfer ’/://

Emplo; ee’s Signature

&

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

" ’/) h
s SRSV
B /1 An QM/KM
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7268 5Tucson Way  Centennial, Coloracdo 80112-3290 (303) 733-4627  Fax (303) 77750852

Date: 7;/ r;? // 0 8/

ﬁf}/ ,4 n) / {EJ f£ ( / agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold
Y

from my paycheck the ami:sunt of § v #){ ) . 1acknowledge and agree that the

amount being mthhe}d from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

| property I took from Bradiczfitzeum Ine m) é? / j /f) {37 ﬂ’j ?

fold A
e
Ry @,;.//7

Empioycc 8 Szgnamre

A BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.
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501 IV £7

106 Be, Cherokes P.0. Box 2384 Plions 744-1711

Benvar, Colorady 80209
ENTERED
Datiﬁw_jé/@"[ /(j ig_f {“? 3 § zégg
. 4 f S

I, %a‘@w\ g;:zug't) » agroe that Sav-0-Mal, Inc. may withhold from my

paycheck the amount of §_ 8L ef<™ L acknowledge and agree that the amount

being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipraent or property |

took from Sav-O-Mat, Ine.

SAVO-MAT, Inc

WD CA G s e
G0

Wad +E:LE S@BZolz_lo0
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APR-T-PPBE  B7:26A FROM:SOM & 4 1-978-522-6684 ' 10 18005536205

¥
105 So. Cherokee P.0. Box 9354 Phone 744-1711

Denver, Colorado 80209

IWW&@;WC that Sav-0O-Mat, Inc. Tmay withhold from my

that the amount

. o .
paycheck the amount of § \O*-”~ . 1 acknowledge and agrec

ent or property |

being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipm

took from Sav-O-Mat, Inc. \Drmg @4@?

.1
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4

105 So. Cherokee p.0. Box 9354 Phone 744-1711

Denver, Colorado 80209

Qﬂaﬂ‘ (1)

, agree that Sav-O-Mat, Inc. may withhold from my

paycheck the amount of' §__¢& s 1 acknowledge and agree that the amount

being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or property 1

took from Sav-O-Mat, Inc.

ﬁyfz@/;w

/Employee’s Signature ';

R

SAV-O-MAT, Inc.

By;j’




Fod

105 So. Cherokee p.0.Box 9354

Denver, Colorado 80208

1, @%Mgrce that Sav-O-Mat

T}
&

paycheck the amount of §

i
'phone 744-1711

Inc. may withhold from my

.1 acknowledge and agree that the amount

being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a godd or equipment or property 1

took from Sav-O-Mat, Inc. (_D{. ; Je. OF#

fgmmcfdwd

mm‘m’ﬁﬁfﬂf

) Ondpwarn

e s Employee’s Bignature\'
|
SAV-O-MAT, Inc. ”
%
r ?
ol g
| By ( X A,

£E29CSERRaT (0L PR99-225-8L6-1

b o# WOS:MOMd bebiop  8BEa-T-T0L0
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105 So. Cherokee P.0O.Box 8354 Phonae 7441711

Denver, Colorado 80209

I, Tesr) Owtlopces ., agree that Sav-O-Mat, Inc. may withhold from my

paycheck the amountof $___3 (, @é . T acknowledge and agree that the amount

B

being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or property 1

took from Sav-O-Mat, Inc.

\}\ﬂx A; Q&QQ@

Ll AT Employee’s Signature

SAV-O-MAT, Inc.

By

08/18/2008 MON 08:28 [TX/RX NO 6898] [4009
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7268 STucson Way  Cenfennidl, Colo'rado 80112-3290 (303) 733-4627  Fax (303) 7779052

Date: _ 3—-|9-0%F

1, ?@u&\&; M&‘Lwﬂ}i ., agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold

from my paycheck the amount of 5 9.09 1 acknowledge and agree that the

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property I took from Bradley Petroleum, Inc.

Erh @“’ﬁb Leod O ’ K;&A‘%/&;’Mﬂ

Igmployae’s Signature

M BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.
- | T : .
v arlﬁ) : EMQ__W \«.»BM
By: : ‘ @)
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7268 S Tucson Way Centennial, Colorade 80112-3290 (303) 733-4627 Fax (30%) 777-9082

Date: é///,é
77

L Doemves  [Lesves
Release $  7.2.50 from my paycheck from Bradley Petroleum to

reimburse {or cash and/or inventory shortages that | took.

Cash Shortage Amount; s 27,58

Inventory Shortage Amount:  §

ﬁ,,&:‘ﬁf‘

"

émﬁj?ignature "7 )
‘ M /é/ —

Bradley Rep;y?'én‘fat' e

,SJVA/T‘ S)/%%y/x@,g, O P ﬁ( 4500 on ,,Z/zg%g f /)ﬂ;_s"? 97,/ o

T
hocl an ZHZHOT

IR A

0471072008 THU 11:51 [TK/RA MO 80121 [g 007
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Datje:_/}“?ilwoq - #c;[%

I,“ CM Bohnke

W 7268 Tucson Way: . Centennlal, Colorado 80112-3290 *  (303) 733-4627  Fox (303) 7779052 -

4597 1

3

Release§ __ | A9 from my paycheck from Bradley Petrolour to
reimburse for cash and/or inventory shortages that I took and/or

unauthorized overtime owed to Bradley Petroleum.

w) Sl

S5pk> 7

] 8

1 ]
;,‘.‘ / R .- . _..-":1‘ ‘ ;/ /x‘ .
LA T o frr A
Employee Signature ' -

ENTERED

235 pacd.
| : |

!
!

N i 20 2007

Bradley Representative

Yol Y W

Yol1-07 Shovtaef o 5'




7268 5 Tucson Way " Centennial, Colorado 80112.0290 : (303 7384627 Fﬁx (303) ?7?@@52

4?/577 /‘7

e 1207 #y

L Clhura Behnke
Release § |4 N9 from my paycheck from Bradley Pétroleum to
reimburse for cash and/or i mventory shortages that I took and/or

unauthorized overtime owed to Bradley Petroleum.
| Sh a«j/a")(
s (15 '
: Gpks
. éﬁ 2 35 Lacl.
_ ;U‘///l (i/ /.f} (//M :;f / ‘ Lo .
Employee, Signature ~ ENT ERE D '
J amw &Mﬂf 20 2007

Bradley Representative .

)l -071 %W%zt?é oy ,.
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7268 5TucsonWoy  Centennial, Colorado 80112-3290 (303) 7334627 Fax (303)777-9052

o s .

SEP ﬁ 3 g7 !

I, U&M _, agree that B:adiey Petroleum, Inc. may withhol

from my paycheck the amount of $ A? 33 acknowledge and agree that

T

5

RPN

ne

2. a,«.Wuﬁmm: i

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment o

property I took from Bradiey Petroleum, Inc.

W = olvaen

Cém?t@yes’s Signature

e 10U AL T T S Do

iz

R SR

.
T

R A R

" BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inic.

RS T N N 3 1 2 S Rt SR S UL R

()2,
Byj &fiwmxg;4i§*ﬂ“”

S S AT TS S B s

awz
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Jesse  Muzz-,

7268 5 Tucson Way ~ Centennlal, Coloradt 80112-3290 (303) 733~4627  Fax (303) 7779052

Date: H Z a% )C)%’/

I, \ EQS‘Q;G ﬂq Lz >/ , agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold
from my paycheck the amount of $ EQ . iJC\) . T acknowledge and agree that the

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property I took from Bradley Petroleum, Inc.

o @O@*&aﬂ oL QR% JaXeoo on H)E"?)C?Ey

@mplayee $ Signature

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

1172872008 FRI 06:15 [TK/RX HO 5801) [goo2




7268 S Tucson Way — Centennidil, Colorado 80112-3290

_elale

(@({ fiAsz b{»ff/(/ %i;;i/; Lf’ffg/)

.
I, L &’i\j , agree that Bradley Petroleum, Inc. may withhold
£y el
from my paycheck the amount of § _ " 5——; ‘ . T acknowledge and agree that the

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property I took from Bradiey Petroleum, Tnc.

[
] o
oy g liof L
o, N R S
;53. j d Vf ({; ¢ () ‘/‘/?Jg E\O Employeg s Signature

("a.{ {O% - BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.

L




7268 S Tucson Way  Centennicl, Colorado 80112-3200 (303) 733-4627  Fax (303) 7779052

Date: ?/Q/ D%/

I ﬂ(b(‘l?\ %Clwﬂ \MC’W , agree that Bradl:-;y Péirdlédﬁ Inc. may withhold
o9

. L acknowledge and agree that the

from my paycheck the amount of §_|(E*

amount being withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good or equipment or

property 1 took hi xmm Bradk y Peim}eum Inc. . | .
Oaopeed a8kt Aoudn Owd miss Gounted; Wi

moede. 19t A FF St O o D T

e Gt R

P Employee’s Sig?sé

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, Inc.
r :




DISTRICT COURT
CITY AND COUNTY OF DENVER, COLORADO

1437 Bannock Street
Denver, CO 80202

Plaintiff: 4. COURTUSEONLY &
AMY OKAMOTO, et al. Case Number:
Defendant: 01 CV 5947

BRADLEY PETROLEUM, INC., et al.
Courtroom 5§

For Plaintiff:
Lee E. Christian, Reg. No. 18743
Lee E. Christian, P.C.
415 Mason Court, Building 2
Fort Collins, CO 80524
Phone: 970.484.0300
Fax: 970.484.1606
Ichristian@frii.com

For Defendant:
Otto K. Hilbert, Reg. No. 18363
Robinson Waters & O'Dorisio PC
1099 18th Street, Ste. 2600
Denver, CO 80202
Phone: 303.2972600
Fax: 303.297.2750
ohilbert@rwolaw.com

The matter came on for hearing on Tuesday, April 7, 2009,
before the HONORABLE ROBERT L. MCGAHEY. JR., Judge of the
District Court, and the following proceedings were had.

The above-captioned parties appear in person.

This 1s a complete transcript of the proceedings held on
this date in this matter.

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400-+16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




STATUS CONFERENCE:

PAGE

Court's Findings and Orders:

CoUTL's OrderS v v e v v ineeeneseneess e o e e e e e ee e s . 19

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 le6th Street, Suite 400
benver, CO 80202
303.292.9400
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DENVER, COLORADO; TUESDAY, APRIL 7, 2009

-000=

(Call to Order of the Court at 1:13 p.m.)

THE COURT: Calling 01 CV 5947, Qkamoto versus Bradley
Petroleum. Could I have entries of appearance, please?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Lee
Christian appearing for the putative Plaintiffs, Amy Okamoto, et
al.

MR. HILBERT: Good afternoon, Your Honor. Otto
Hilbert on behalf of the Defendants.

THE COURT: This matter comes on today for a status
conference. The parties at —-- parties were I believe back in
November. At that time I ordered that oversight continue.

I —- there were some additional complaints brought to
the attention of the Defendants by Plaintiffs' counsel. I asked
that the Defendant give me a status report by today, well by the
time of the conference.

There were also some issues concerning turning over
audit records, records for audit. As a result of a del -- of
the time it took it to get those, through nobody's fault, we
continued the January 21lst status conference to today.

I have reviewed the materials submitted by -- I've
reviewed the Defendant's response concerning the additional

complaints and I presume that the things with the binder clips
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are the audits, Mr. Hilbert; is that correct?

MR. HILBERT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. All right. Let's figure out
where we're -- okay, Mister --

MR. HILBERT: Can I just give you the status report?

THE COURT: That's what I was about to ask. Bring me
up to speed, Mr. Hilbert, please.

MR. HILBERT: Thank you, Your Honor. Just a brief
synopsis of how this case has transpired.

Defendants’ contention from the beginning of this suit
was that given the systems in place at its stations, the only
logically explanation for a shortage or a drive-off without a
license plate or a shortage of cigarettes or lottery tickets, or
pop, or anything else could only be logically explained by
employee theft. What this case has brought to my client's
attention is that they, you know, improperly papered that.

So what we tried to do, you know, during the pendency
of the settlement, is accurately reflect when monies were
missing, or cigarettes were missing or drive-offs were missing,
what happened. If there is a police report filed, if there is
no charges that come then after 90 days the paycheck is released
and we've tried to comply with that.

That wasn't quite enough. So as part of the settlement
-— and Mr. Christian doesn't recall approving the form --

Bradley and Save-O-Mat put together a form, that I believe
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complies with the statute, Your Honor. And it's a very simple
form, copies of which I have for you if care to see them, but I
could just relay to you it's just a one sentence or two sentence
form.

Tt says: Date, I, blank, the employee agree that
Bradley Petroleum may withhold from my paycheck the amount of,
$50 or whatever it is. I acknowledge and agree the amount being
withheld from my paycheck is a deduction for a good, or
equipment or property, I took from Bradley Petroleum. Signed by
the employee. So there were no deductions unless this sign,
unless this form was signed.

Now in, -- in, in a couple of instances, in a number
of ihstances we've not been able to locate all of these forms
where a deduction has taken place but we are finding them. What
you have before you though, is the complete audit of 2007 and it
says "2007" at the top.

THE COURT: I see it.

MR. HILBERT: And 2008, and it says "2008" at the top.
These are complete audit of every deduction made Bradley and
Save-0-Mat during 2007 and 2008 in compliance with the Court's
order.

To go further however, Bradley has taken those
shortages through 2008 beginning in December, and working
backwards on the third packet with the bigger horse clip. And

it shows what documents Bradley's been able unearth with respect

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

to each of these alleged shortages.

And in most cases you'll see new doc, on the first
page for instance, that indicates that the employee signed the
form that said, in that case it's a uniform, it says that we are
going to make a deduction for the uniform. If you give the
uniform back we give you your money back and if they don't then
they don't. And if there's a shortage, you'll see that there's
a doc or a no-doc question mark. The no dark —-- doc question
marks are ones that we are still researching.

THE COURT: But what if says no doc with no question
mark? That means you just haven't got anything?

MR. HILBERT: If it's not no doc with no question mark
it means that that is still in investigation too.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HILBERT: We, we -=- and the problem as I'm sure
you can ascertain, with having stores all over a multi-state
region is tracking all these documents to each of these files.
But we are in process of doing that but the audit that the Court
requesting indicating all shortages and deductions is before the
Court.

But I have some happy news. We feel and we've been
scratching our heads trying to figure out a better way to get
this done that the reflexive employee position on these "I took"
shortage memos, if they are ex-employees of Bradley, will

obviously be that I was forced to sign it under some kind of

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

duress.

In many cases that's been the case and in those cases,
those are the ones that we've had to resolve with Amanda Neal
and the Department of Labor. In most cases they don't come back
on us. But the new policy and I think this will obviate any
further oversight by the Court beyond, you know, the completion
of what we are doing here is this, Your Honor.

The new policy is 1if there is a shortage of $10 or
more in anything, lottery tickets, gas, cigarettes, cash, the
employee is immediately suspended for ten days during an
investigation, an internal investigation of the shortage. If
the shortage is not properly explained or verified not to have
been the employee's wrongdoing, the employee is summarily
terminated.

That policy is articulated to the employee at the time
of hire. It is posted -- we are in the process of posting it,
each station and each district manager and each manager are
informed to remind the employees on a regular interval basis
that that is the policy. That it's zero tolerance. So then we
don't have the issue, Your Honor, of coming before you and
saying, you know, it's duress or it's not duress or there's a
paper or there isn't a paper and that sort of thing.

So I think going forward, for purposes of complying
with the terms of the settlement, this new policy will take care

of the problem and to the thesis that we've articulated since
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the beginning of this case, that the only logical explanation
for any such shortage is employee misconduct. Since institution
of this policy we've had nominal shortages and we have no
pending cases with the Colorado Department of Labor. And we're
keeping much more meticulous and discrete files for each
employee.

Such that any questions by Amanda Neal or anyone at
the Department of Labor we are able to immediately address at
intake so that it doesn't become a formal complaint and again if
we're wrong, we're wrong, and we pay the check. If we are
right, we're right and Amanda Neal says so. And in each of
those files we have a letter from her saying you've satisfied,
you've satisfied, you've satisfied.

So I think this new policy is going to us in perfect
compliance and I think the papers before you demonstrate the
Herculean efforts made by Defendants to try and comply with the
Court's order and with the settlement agreement in this case.

And, and I've got Brad Packens (ph) here, who is the
Chairman of Bradley and the President of Save-O-Mat. I have
Buzz Hawkins here who is the President of Bradley. I have Mark
Schluder here who's the Director of HR, and I have Anna Secora
(ph) who's the Vice President of Operations of the two entities,
in case the Court has any questions, and just to make sure that
you understand the moving parts.

But to walk you through briefly the Bradley 2008
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deductions explained, as I said on the first page the uniform
smock, there's a document and the document says that the
employee returns the smock or the debosit for the smock is
retained by Bradley and we have such a document. With respect
to the $19 shortage under Lucy Acosta (ph) we're still searching
for that document.

And so it was, let's see, August of 2008, we believe
the document exists and we are looking for it. So all the
uniform ones, there's a uniform form that says exactly what we
just said. You'll be deducted the deposit for your uniform and
when you return the uniform you get the uniform (sic).

On the second page, for instance the shortages under
Fallon Alexander, we don't -- we have not found a doc yet for
the January 18, 25 and March 14 shortages. We do have signed
documents for the May, June, July and December shortages.

I'm also pleased to report that through this audit,
Your Honor, we have ascertained and -- again I will have
specific percentage for you, but these issues only arise in
bétween three and four percent of all Bradley's employees.

Bradley 1is obviously a major employer and as I've
mentioned to you before in this courtroom, has significant
turnover as an -—- as a result of the nature of its business.
However, it is importantvl think to understand that these issues
relate to less than five percent of all of Bradley and Save-0O-

Mat's employees.
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And we are doing everything we can to fix this problem
in a way that takes this out of your courtroom, takes us out of
the Colorado of Department of Labor and treats these employees
fairly, which has been Bradley's and Defendants' goal from the
get—-go.

So I appreciate that Your Honor. If you have any
questions?

THE COURT: Just one. . I think I understand. Did you
say that what you're deing then when you are issuing a new
employee a uniform, or a hat or a shirt, that they're required
to wear, that that's in essence say =-- it's like a deposit?

MR. HILBERT: Exactly.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. HILBERT: If, if I may a@proach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. HILBERT: What I handed Mr. Christian earlier and
I hadn't made a copy for you because I figured you'd get enough
paper. This is that figure and it's a $22 deposit for the
smock, a $2 deposit for the nametag, a $24 total deposit. Upon
return of the shirt and the name tag you get the $24 back.

THE COURT: That's what I understood you to be telling
me. I just wanted to make sure that what -- that I understood
with the entry meant on the form. Thank you, Mr. Hilbert.

Mr. Christian?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you, Your Honor.
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There are few times as a lawyer in 20 years that I've
not been more outraged, Your Honor. They may have said that
this is all good and fine but it's the same thing that I've been
dealing with for 2001, and the same thing that the Government
has tried to stop them from doing for 20 year now, Judge, 20
years.

It may sound logical and he made a decent argument at
—-— about it but it's not what the law is and it's not what these
guys have been told what the law is over and over again and it's
why we had you supervise this thing and why we had you bring
this audit together, which is not in compliance with your order.

They argued first that the only logical explanation
for disappearances of ten, 15, $20 is because it's a shortage
and because it's theft. Most of the times, at least as I look
through these documents, Judge, which I got half an hour ago and
I got the 2008 explanation this morning, is a drive-off. How is
a drive-off when Guido takes gas away and just drives off, how
is that the employee's theft -- is ridiculous.

These —-- the argument that the only logical
explanation for this shortage is theft is ridiculous and the law
presumes otherwise.

These people are mostly, many are immigrants. Most
don't have a high school education. They can't add or subtract
in a lot of ways, Judge. 2And so a shortage is most often going

to be due to neglect. It could be do to theft of a co-employee.
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It could be an accident. It could be stupidity. It might be
drive-off. It might be -- I give you three packs of cigarettes
instead of two, and because of that the law requires when they

say it's theft, the Colorado Wage Act is very specific. If you

‘are going to make a deduction for theft. and this is the way

it's always been.

If you make a deduction for theft you must call the
cops. You can withhold it and then the cops do an
investigation, because presumably they are not as biased as the
employer and they can get to the bottom of it. And once the
police make the determination whether you are -- have taken the
money or not, then you are either charged and you don't have to
~— and convicted and then you, as the employee or the former
employee, don't get your money back or there is a payment of
money made to the employee with interest. That's what the law
says.

Now Mr. Hilbert says that for some reason I agreed --
and I'm looking back at my correspondence as we speak -- I
agreed to this new document that is going to be signed by the
employee where they say I agree that I took this.

THE COURT: The confession. Go ahead.

MR. CHRISTIAN: The confession, the written confession
if you will, if that's really what it what it is, but on most of
these confessions, at least the ones that I have, the guy says

this was a drive-off or it wasn't due to my shortage. And more
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than likely they're signing these things to stay away from the
cops or they are signing them to keep their keep there jobs or
they are signing them because of the intimidation by their
supervisor. And that's what we found out, this was going on ten
years ago.

And now they are doing the same thing and have done it
hundreds of times, tens of thousands of dollars. The only
people that are stealing are Bradley Petroleum and Save-0~Mat
and they are stealing from their employees again.

Judge, I =-- my —-- I would ask that this case be set
over for a hearing for an order to show cause why this employer
should be held in contempt and =--

THE COURT: Well, if you want to do that, file a
motion.,

MR. CHRISTIAN: And my request is going to be, Judge,
that we go back to square one. We are going to have to find
these people. They are going to have -- because even if there
i1s a confession, Your Honor, and you find as matter of law that
is somehow binding on the employee, which there won't be. If
you look through the explanations of 2008, they don't even have
the confession.

Which means these people who this money has been taken
from need to be paid, and they need to be paid pursuant the
settlement agreement, which is pay plus 50 percent, and if we

can't find them, and most of them we aren't going to be able to
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pay, we're are going to have to do another SIPRA (ph) fund and

that SIPRA fund is not going to go to Mr. Hilbert's CU box this

time. It's going to go to a Department of Labor or employee
organization.

I just -- I can't believe it. I really can't believe
that they're continuing to do this, Your Honor. I have to look

through these documents.

THE COURT: Well, you're not really prepared to

respond.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm not prepared -~-

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I -- well, I can say no matter what
he's --

THE COURT: Now part of that -- shush. Part of that
is, without making -- passing judgment on anything, is that I =--

my orders required that those materials be provided no later

than the date of the hearing and that is -- Mr. Sil -- Mr.
Hilbert's not —-- there's no -- there's nothing being played fast
and loose. He complied to that order to that extent.

But I can also understand that you haven't had a
chance to review them, counselor, given that the way my order
was framed.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge, and I have two —-

THE COURT: So —-

MR. CHRISTIAN: ~-- orders. I have one that's dated
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the 3rd of December and I've one that's dated November -—-

THE COURT: Yeah. I noticed that.

MR. CHRISTIAN: -- 26th. And the November 26th one
says. the report shall detail the name, the address, the
telephone number, the current status of the deduction, attaching
pay stubs, disciplinary notices, all correspondence.

THE COURT: Those -- some =- one I think the first
order was the one that I signed. There was a second order that
somebody sent in that I may have entered that one inadvertently.
I'm not going to get too excited about that.

I understapd your concerns. Your concerns are most
substantive than procedural anyway, Mr. Christian.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I would =--

THE COURT: Are they not?

MR. CHRISTIAN: ~- agree, Your Honor. And I think
there needs to be a rather lengthy hearing and I will file a
motion to that extent.

THE COURT: All right. It's -- I'11 wait. I'll have
to get that and then I'11 wait to see to see Mr. Hilbert's
response.

When you say -~- the -- let me -- the words that made
my neck tingle, Mr. Christian, were "lengthy hearing". Aall
right, define that for me that for me. And I'm not holding your
feet to the fire. I just ==

MR. CHRISTIAN: Well, it depends on the burden. I
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suspect that the burden -- I don't know who the burden is going
to be on. I would want to --

THE COURT: Well, if you are asking that they be held
in contempt ==

MR. CHRISTIAN: I would probably want to examine or
cross—examine the -- well, I'm thinking out loud, Judge. I
think --

THE COURT: I know I'm not --

MR. CHRISTIAN: =-- a couple of --

THE COURT: Let me tell you why I ask that. I have a

disastrous trial schedule for the remainder of this calendar

year. I have a five -- one five-week and one six-week jury
trial set between now and Christmas. If either of those --
either or both -- if both of those go, nothing's happening in

this courtroom. And I am likely to be in a different courtroom
by next winter, next January.

If you are going to file the motion, let's get it
filed. Let's get a response, Mr. Hilbert. When we'll -- then
what I'm suggest —-- what I will probably do is have a status
conference with counsel only to see what we need to do with
regard to setting. It's just going to be hard to do.

T almost -- I had to a -- give you an example I was --
I had to hear the case for the 11 fired Denver sheriffs last
week, and initially because it was going to be during a jury

trial, I was going to hear it every afternoon between noon and
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1:00, during a jury trial.

And I don't want to have to do that with a case like
this, but I'm just warning you. I want to be upfront with you,
depending on when we try to set this hearing, there may not be -
- when you say lengthy, I -- that always presumes a day, more
than a day to me and that's going to be hard to find but we'll
do, we'll do our best.

MR. CHRISTIAN: And I'll --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CHRISTIAN: You know, I ~--

THE COURT: And —-

MR. CHRISTIAN: =-- don't know it will take. I don't
know what I've here.

THE COURT: Well and because you =-

MR. CHRISTIAN: I just know it's --

THE COURT: ~-- and, and the point, and the point's
also going be, counselor --

MR. CHRISTIAN: —~’the same sStory.

THE COURT: ~-- you don't know whether you are
going to want to do discovery before that. And you've got
-- I mean, I'm not -~ and I'm not saying I'm going to allow
you to do discovery before that. What you need to do is
file your motion. Mr. Hilbert needs to file a response.

Then the three of us need to sit down and talk

about what the parameters are of what we're -~ of how we're
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going to deal with this. You can come in and tell me "I
need to take depositions.” Mr. Hilbert can raise his hands
to the sky and say "How long, Lord, how long?" And I'll
make a determination of what we're going to do.

One thing I do want make clear is I'm going to
make sure, and I'm not making judgments when I say this,
I'm going to make sure before I let go of this case that
that the law is being complied with. And I'm going to be
satisfied that it's being complied with, and that I'm going
to be able to sleep when I go home tonight that I say that.

And that, if I find -- and it doesn't necessarily
mean that I'm going to be thinking that anybody's venal if
there's not strict compliance with the law at this point.
There may be good faith efforts that aren't up to, up to
the mark. I don't know. I understand what the -- what the
Defendants say they've done. They've obviously done a lot
of work. Whether it's enough work or the right work, T
don't know that. All right.

And certainly I'm not going to ask you, Mr.
Christian, to listen to testify -- testimony of the
corporate officers of Bradley Petroleum today without the
ability to do -- intelligently and effectively -- cross-
examine them. That wouldn't be consistent with due process
of law.

So if you think you've got a contempt -- you read
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the -- review that stuff. If you are going to file a
contempt citation -- why don't I put it =-- can I put a
parameter on that, and give you ten days to decide to
whether to file it or not?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Why don't you give me 20, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: Why don't I give you 157

MR. CHRISTIAN: Compromise,l

THE COURT: All right.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Is that --

THE COURT: Hey, 1it's what =--

MR. CHRISTIAN: -- and that's business days?

THE COURT: -- lawyers do.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Fifteen days.

THE COURT: Fifteen days from today's date. If
you are going to file one it's got to be filed with that.

Mr. Hilbert, I presume you can file a response
within ten days, thereafter; can you do that?

MR. HILBERT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. And after we get that you
can presume that you'll -- we'll be down talk -- having a
status conference deciding what happens next.

THE COURT: All right?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I appreciate counsel's candor and I'1l1
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wait to see what comes in next.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. HILBERT: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. We'll be
recess.

(Proceedings concluded at 1:37 p.m.)
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AFFIDAVIT OF PETER WINGATE, PH.D,

I, My name is Peter Wingate, Ph.D. | am the Deputy Director of the Colosado Division
of Labor. 1 have been employed by the Division since 2003, and held this position, or an equivalent
position, since 2005, | am familiar with the provisions of the Colorado Wage Aet. The Division of
Labor receives complaints from employees who are owed wages under the Colomdo Wags Act.

2. | am familiar with numerous complainis filed with the Department of Labor and
Employment, Division of Labor {(“Division of Labor™) by numerous former employees of Bradicy
Petroleum, Inc. and Sav-0-Mat, Inc. (the Defendants). | am sware of many instances where the
Division has notified the Defendants, both verbally and in writing, that their practices were a
violation of the Colorsdo Wage Act.




3 1 am aware that Defendants continue to make deductions from employees” wages for the
following reasons:

shortages of cash or product;
customer drive-offs;
robberies:

burglaries;

alleged theft

B ® ® & ®

During my tenure as Deputy Dicector, the Division has advised the Defendants that these
actions are in violation of the Colorado Wage Act,

4, Division records reflect that in 1996-1997, the Colorado Division of Labor sought to
ensure compliance with the Colorado Wage Act afler nemerous complaints against Defendants
alleging failure to pay finel paychecks. The employees alleged that they were terminated for
shortages, refused final pay checks, had police repons filed against them, and then not paid when
charges were not filed. | am aware that Bradley Petroleum and Sav-0-Mat subsequently signed a
Setlement Agreement in March, 1997, “In the Matter of Assessment of Penalties against Bradley
Petroleur, Ine., Sav-O-Mat, Inc., Bradley Hobson Calkins, George William Calkins, and Kathryn V.
Caliins”, Case No. LS 96-01.

5 1 am aware of the class action lawsuit filed by Mr. Christian and Mr, Killmer against
the Defendants. Furiher, | have knowledge that since that settlement of that case in March 2003
there have been numerous instances of complaints against the Defendants for unlawful deductions of
wages in violation of the Colorado Wage Act.

6. Although the Defendants have argued that they are entitled to withhold wages for
alleged theft and/or other shortages, this is not allowed under the provisions of the Colorado Wage
Act. Ifacriminal charge is not filed within 90 days, the Respondents are required by the Wage Act
and the Settlement Agreement to pay those wages with interest, Treble damages are provided for in
the Wage Act if the filing of a police report was made without good faith.

7. | am aware of the Defendants position that is permissible for them to make deductions
from paychecks given the written consent of the eraployee. During my tenure as Deputy Director,
the Division has repeatedly advised the Defendants that these actions are in violation of the
Colorado Wage Act.
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DENVER, COLORADO; FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2009

-o00o0~-

(Call to Order of the Court at 9:05 a.m.)

THE COURT: 01 CB 5947, Okamoto and others versus
Bradley Petroleum and others.

Entries of appearance please?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Good morning, Your Honor. Lee
Christian and Darold Killmer for the Plaintiffs.

MR. RAPSON: Good morning, Your Honor. William
Rapson, for the Defendants in this case. I'm with the law firm
of Welborn Sullivan Meck & Tooley.

THE COURT: Thank you.

This matter is here today for a hearing on continued -
- on issues raised by the need for continue -- apparent need for
continued enforcement of a previously entered settlement
agreement.

I'm going to ask counsel to give me any preliminary
matters that they want. But before we do that I'm going to
start with one. I want both the -- all the lawyers in the room
to listen very carefully to me. When I was a little boy my
grandmother would sometime say to me "Bobby, I don't like your
tone.™

Well gentlemen, in reading over the last ~—- some of

the last batch of pleadings that have come in, in this case I
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want to tell you something: I don't like your tone. There's

way too much snarkiness; way too much personal venom being

directed from counsel to counsel and that will stop right now.
For example in the Plaintiff's hearing brief on page 5

"the Defendant's new attorney has concocted a theory" referring

to the rule -- the written -- prohibition as "frivolous" when
there has been no finding of that. I understand that you are
going to tell me that it's argument. I don't care. It doesn't

move the ball forward and it doesn’'t help.

And on your part, Mr. Rapson, your ref ~- your
reference —- your writ of prohibition seems more directed at Mr.
Christian than it does at me. This case is not about you, any

of you. This case is about your clients.

T was a trial lawyer for 25 years, I understand. Our
egos get invested, it's what we do. But you take your egos out
of this. The only -- this isn't about you. The only time in
life it's all about you is if you are a bride on her wedding day
and none of you are that. Don't put anything in a pleading you
give me that doesn't move the ball forward. You want to say
something snarky about your opponent, say it to your office
staff and then take it out of you pleadings. I don't want to
hear it.

Now having said that, anything preliminarily from the
Plaintiff before we get started?

MR. CHRISTIAN: I do apologize, Your Honor. The
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motion has gotten out --

THE COURT: You don't owe me an apology, counselor.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Your Honor, I'll ask for some guidance
from you because I -- I'm not certain a we need a evidentiary
hearing. I think as a matter of law given, the pleadings that
you've received today, that you could make a ruling that the
Defendants have violated the law. They violated the settlement
agreement. They violated the court order that you issued in
November of 2008. They produced an audit that indicated that
they are making deductions in violation of the law —--

THE COURT: Which by the way, just so you understand,
I haven't seen the audit. All right? So that piece of evidence
I need to at least see and consider, so I think we are going to
have to at least do that piece. But go ahead.

MR. CHRISTIAN: So I'm looking for guidance from you.
I mean today Judge, my -- what I had anticipated was calling my
witness from the Department of Labor to show some of the
correspondence back and forth between the Defendants and the
Department of Labor to show that they knew as early as the
middle of 2007 that what they were doing was against the law, at
least according to the Department of Labor.

I would call a couple of the Defendants' witnesses to
lay the foundation for the audit, the signature on the
settlement agreement. And then I'm not certain that the Court

needs to hear from every person who's had a deduction made. T
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wanted to give you maybe a little bit of a flavor of this
through the witnesses but I'm not sure that it 1s necessary.

I think as a matter of law the deductions that have
been made don't need to be analyzed on a case-by-case basis and
that we can move to the issue of how to remedy what has been
done to them.

THE COURT: Here's what I want, I want to see some
evidence, all right? First place, I think, due process of law
makes me feel better about that i1f there's some process.

T think that Defense -- Defendants have a right to
present their side of the story if they have one. They have
the right to cross-examine witnesses and attempt and show either
directly or by inference that evidence doesn't stand for what
you show it -- say that it stand for.

The -- but, but I am not adverse nor do I think it's
inappropriate to use representative witnesses when we have a
large group of people. particularly if, and I haven't seen the
evidence, if the documentary evidence is supportive of
violations and, and if it's deemed an admission then that's what
it is. But I haven't seen it, haven't heard it and haven't
heard the arguments about that, so I do want evidence in that
regard.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm prepared to move forward with
that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Rapson, anything before we
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start?

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor. Just briefly.

THE COURT: And I just want to make sure everybody
understands. When I made the comments, Mr. Rapson, about your
writ of prohibition, I don't think it was necessarily frivolous.
I think if some -- you know, I'm not offended by your filing it.
If you think I made a mistake ~-— you have to represent your
clients zealously and in an appropriate manner. I wasn't
offended by the filing of the writ of prohibition. I also
wasn't surprised that the Court turned it down but that's -~ I
never got one granted in 25 years. So ~--

MR. RAPSON: I don't know. It was pretty unusual to
have them granted.

THE COURT: So ==

MR. RAPSON: But --

THE COURT: But I just want to make sure everybody
understands. I did not take any offense at that being done.

MR, RAPSON: I didn't think Your Honor, would. I
thought it was worth laying out our position as clearly =--

THE COURT:‘ And I understand, I understand. It was =-=-

MR. RAPSON: =--— as (indiscernible).

THE COURT: =~ the language that you used that upset
me not the filing of the motion filed -- per the filing of the
motion.

MR. RAPSON: I ==
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THE COURT: So --—

MR. RAPSON: I understand the Court's point. The, the
-— what I was trying to do, well, by what I did and, and I
understand that the Court doesn't like, doesn't appreciate it,
doesn't want to hear it again. But I was trying to emphasize
the fact that there aren't any Plaintiffs in this case -- there
aren't any claimants in this case, and --

THE COURT: Well I think, I think I've already dealt
with that in my last order that this is a matter of ongoing
supervision of an ongoing settlement agreement which I don't
believe relates only to the four or five people that were
originally Plaintiffs in this case. And I don't think that the
agreement reads that way now.

If I'm wrong some appellate court can tell me that I'm
wrong but I think there's the -- frankly I think the fact that
there's a -- there's inclusion of a need for ongoing supervision
in the settlement agreement itself is indicative that it's going
to have a broader scope than the -- simply the four people that
were originally class members. So -- but that's an argument you
guys can deal with when this case goes up. And notice I didn't
say "if". So --

MR. RAPSON: And I Jjust want to make sure, Your Honor,
for the record that the, that the arguments and positions that I
asserted in the petition of --

THE COURT: And you're not and by part -- that's what
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I wanted to say to you, Mr. Rapson. Your participation in this
hearing today whatever -- to whatever extent is not a waiver of
any of those arguments or any of those pleadings. Your, your
point right now is that I have no jurisdiction to do what we're
doing this morning and I understand that argument and I want it
made clear that your participation on behalf of your clients in
the hearing, as much as you want to participate is not any way,
shape or form a wailver of the argument that I am without
jurisdiction to conduct this hearing or any other arguments
related -- that you have advanced in your pleadings of late.

‘MR. RAPSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right?

MR. RAPSON: And the second thing I wanted to say is
that 1f this is hearing and -- I've been doing this for 40 vyears
and this is -- I consider this building my second home. If all
we are doing 1s having a hearing then I wouldn't expect the
Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure about endorsement of witnesses
and case management orders and all of those thing to apply to
just a hearing. I understand that --

THE COURT: It's not, it's not a trial. So -=-

MR. RAPSON: But, but, but I would feel that if there
were any substantive relief actually being contemplated like you
do in a trial that we would get more notice than getting a --
names of people several days ago.

And so if this is just a hearing where we here to kind
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of figure what's going on and that sort of thing that's one
thing. But if there is any kind of substantive relief sought,
then I would take —- for the record at least, make objection and
hopefully I can do it across the board on a broad base objection
and not do have to do it with respect to each witness. But just
say it's not, it's not reasonable to have to deal with these
witnesses with three or four days notice.

THE COURT: I understand. I'll give you a standing
objection with regard to any -- on top of what else you've
objected to -—- to any issues that may -- in which I may impose
substantive relief against you clients.

One thing I want to make sure everybody understands:
we're not dealing with contempt today. Okay. I'm just not.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.

THE COURT: All right? I'm not going to be finding
anybody in contempt at the end of this, at the end of this
hearing. Okay. I'm just not. But it may be the last time I
take that position. All right? I have heard enough evidence.

I haven't made any findings, haven't made any conclusions. I'm
not finding anybody in contempt. Nobody's going to jail today.
All right? 1Isn't going to happen today.

Let's go ==

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor =--

THE COURT: Let's go to work.

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor.
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I have a suggestion to make if the Court ~- I mean
it's a little bit of a different suggest but I'd be happy to
call Brad Calkins who's one of the principals with Bradley
Petroleum and also Save-0-Mat and kind of lay out sort of a
broad understanding of what they do, how they view the law and
how they administer it and it might give everybody kind of a
context within which to --

THE COURT: I think we'll do it -- the -- we'll let
the Plaintiffs go first. It's their motion and then we'll,
we'll hear from you folks.

I have to tell everybody I have a settlement
conference at one o'clock, one o'clock -- one-thirty this
afternoon. So we're going to do as much work as we can today.
If we don't get finished, we don't get finished and we'll reset
as we can.

I also have to tell you that Monday I start a three
week Jjury trial. So we'll get -= I want to be as efficient as
we can today and get as much work done as we can today. But if
we don't finish, we don't finish. And what I'm saying is I'm
not going to short—arm anybody's presentation. I'm not going to
put artificial time limitations on anybody in making sure that
they present their case. I've never thought that the due
process clause has a stop watch, so I'm going to listen to what
everybody has to say and I'll make a decision.

Counsel ==
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MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: =-- let's proceed.

MR. CHRISTIAN: T wonder, would if it be possible for
—-= at least I'd like to give a brief opening statement because I
think it would give you an overview of what we anticipate --

THE COURT: I always wonder what lawyers mean when
they say "brief". But I will have -- we can -- I'll take an
opening statement. You want to make one? You want to make an
opening statement, counselor?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Given what you've said, Your Honor,
I'm ready to charge forward.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I think --

THE COURT: Mr. Rapson, did you want to make anything
brief --

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor,

THE COURT: ~-— I emphasize, brief opening statement,
and then we'll proceed.

MR. RAPSON: Just so you know I assume that the Court
wants to take testimony and what we would do initially is to
acknowledge that we've had this wave —-- wage deduction policy
for some time. It's actually different now in 2009 but this
hearing is directed at 2007, 2008.

And what we would say is that ever since the original

2003 settlement Bradley's made every effort to limit the wage
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deductions for employees to the four statutory exceptions that
are set forth in eight -- I think 8-4.105.

The first category consists of deductions for loans,
equipment or property and these are express deduction to the
prohibition on wage deductions and we rely on that to deduct the
cost of uniforms.

The second category, the second statutory exception is
for theft and that consists of a considerable number of cases
where we refer cases to police agencies and then we're required
to return the money if they don't file a case within 90 days.
And as a matter of good faith, Bradley, if it learns in advance
of the 90 days that no case is going to be filed, returns the
money right away rather than waiting the full 90 days.

The third category and I think what is going to be at
issue in this case, refers to deductions that are authorized by
employees. That's what the statute says. The statute says if,
if deductions are authorized by employees then they are
statutorily accepted from the prohibition on wage deductions.

And Bradley relies on that to make deductions for
cigarettes, cash, gasoline and lottery tickets not burglaries,
not robberies, not the other things referred to in the pleadings
but to those four items. And they only do it where the employee
consents, after the fact, by signing a form saying I authorize
you or I consent to your deducting this from my wages.

Now these losses may be due to theft and they may be
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due to negligence. Regardless, if the employee authorizes the
deduction it's permissible by statute. And that authorization
can be oral under the statute but as a practical matter, Bradley
goes the extra step and obtains it in writing 99 times out of
100.

And before it does it, Bradley goes to great lengths
to rule out other possible answers to a problem before it
pinpoints responsibility on the employee and it does so because
the reality is, is that Bradley does everything that it can to
curry favor with it's workforce, because it's better business to
have happy employees than it is to have unhappy employees. And
because it's very expensive, upwards of $5,000 an employee to
get new employees.

So the last thing that this wage deduction corporate
policy is designed to do is either offend, alienate, or hurt
employees. It's simply a business method or policy of creating
a more productive, efficient workforce and the idea to the
extent that it's been suggested that this is a profit center for
Bradley, is simply wrong and the product of, you know, a mindset
that isn't sensitive to the reality of what's going on at
Bradley.

This third statutory exception, where as long as an
employee authorizes the deduction it's okay under the statute,
is identical to one that I've experienced as a lawyer in a law

firm. The policy of that firm was to deduct --
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THE COURT: Hold on, hold on just a second.
(Court confers with Clerk)

THE COURT: I'm sorry Mr. Rapson, go ahead.

MR. RAPSON: Yeah. It was just like what I
experienced at a law firm where the law firm deducted from the
wages of a lawyer any litigation costs advanced by the firm for
a client that didn't ultimately pay it. And as an employee who
has had that happen to him, I didn't like the policy because it
costs me money. But I effectively consented to it in lieu of
losing my job.

And that was a situation where I wasn't at fault. It
was a client who hadn't paid the cost and yet I accepted that
corporate policy because that was what the job came with and
from the law firm's perspective that wage deduction cost me --—
and that wage deduction could be upwards of five, $10,000, =--
caused me and other lawyers to be more productive when it comes
to collecting costs and accepting cases from clients.

But whether that policy was good or pleased me is
irrelevant because effectively under the statute, I had, I had
consented to it. I had authorized it and so it's permissible by
statute. And I think that that's what they are going to be
arguing about the most.

In fact you may hear Mr. Christian say, well the wage
loss —--

THE COURT: Can we not talk about -- anticipate what
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someone else is going to do?

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: An opening statement is what evidence
you're going to present.

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: And quite frankly with all due respect
this is getting awfully argumentative.

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: So if we're going to talk about evidence,
let's talk about evidence. If you want to talk about what
things mean then we'll until -- and let's do that at the end --

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: =-- when we're doing closing.

MR. RAPSON: Well my only point here Your Honor, is if
I -— this corporate policy is no different than many other
corporate policies. You've got to show up at eight o'clock in
the morning. You can't wear flip-flops. People may not like
them but they effectively agree to the them. They authorize
them. They go along with them because of the term of
employment. And whether people want to do it or not, they -— by
agreeing to do it they authorize it, and that's what we are
rely, relying on for this third exception of the statute.

Now we're not saying that every so often some slippage
can't occur. We've got between Save-0-Mat and Bradley, 400

employees at any one time and it's conceivable that over the
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course of a year there may be one or two or three or four
instances where a wage deduction is taken that doesn't come
within the four exceptions. For example no written consent or
oral consent to the deduction is obtained. And that's just
something that necessarily happens just because of the size of
the two companies.

But everything is done, everything is put in place by
Bradley and Save-O-Mat to make sure that that doesn't happen.
They go to great lengths to make sure that that kind of slippage
doesn't take place.

The reality is, 1is that Bradley acts in good faith in
all these cases. The one example being the one I pointed out
before, where they remit money when they learn that a case isn't
going to be filed even if the 90 days hasn't, hasn't expired.

A second example and we'll get into this with Amanda
Neal but I've written her three or four letters and she's
responded and she's been very nice about responding. But the
thrust of my letters is been: you tell me that this third
exception -- this authorization exception doesn't ailow what we
we're doing. Tell me why?

And each time the Department of Labor comes back and
says that's our policy. That's the deal. You can't do it, it's
illegal. They never ever, ever, ever, ever Once give me a
reason why that third authorization doesn't cover what we're

doing here, not once. BAnd so it's Jjust part of our good faith
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to try to resolve this with the Department of Labor and we
haven't been able to do it.

Now finally, Your Honor, and I appreciate you're
giving me a chance just to talk a little bit here -- because of
this case, this case here in this courtrcocom in 2009, the
historic practice of making deductions for losses under the
third statutory exception for authorized deductions was
terminated. And now employees who are responsible certain kinds
of unexcused, unexplained losses are terminated. They no longer
have the choice of covering the loss. They're simply
terminated.

So it's now possible for an employee to lose his job
for an $100 unexplained, unexcused absence because of this case,
where before he could keep his job by authorizing the deduction.
And I suggest to you that this lawsuit is being
counterproductive when it comes to what's in the best interests
of employees who wan to preserve their jobs and livelihoods.

The bottom line is that we don't, as you know, we don't --

That's all I wanted to say Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.

First witness?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Amanda Neal, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah, it's a maze to get up here. Raise
your right hand please? Do you solemnly swear or affirm?

MS. NEAL: I do.
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THE COURT: Be seated please. Speak into the
microphone so that we can hear you. Now there's a ~- you're
going to find the one problem; the chair doesn't move.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. So make sure -- just pull the
microphone down so that it's pointed right at your mouth --

THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: == and talk into it. The microphone
slides around on the, the witness stand so if you have tom you
can move it.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

AMANDA NEAL
a witness, called by the Plaintiff, was examined and testified

as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:
Q Ma'am, please state your name and spell your last name

for the record?

A My name is Amanda Neal. My last name is spelled N-e-
a-1.

Q And what do you do for a living?

A I'm a compliance officer for the Colorado Division of
Labor.

Q And how long have you been in that position?
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A I've been there for three years. I've been a

compliance officer for two years.

0 And do you have knowledge of the Colorado Wage Act?
A I do.

Q And where is that knowledge from?

A The knowledge comes from one, working cases. I've

worked about 1700 plus cases in the past two years. That's
knowledge of the Colorado Wage Act, in addition to the Colorado
Minimum Wage Order.

0 And do you consult with your supervisors in regards to
learning what the law 1s about?

A I do.

Q And do you consult with the Attorney General's Office
as to the law?

A Yes, the Division does.

Q All right. Are you aware of history, a history of

complaints filed by employees of Bradley Petroleum and Save-0O-

Mat?
A I am.
Q And how are you aware of that history?
A It's been my experience that -~ I've have worked 35

cases that have been filed against Bradley Petroleum and Save-O0-
Mat. Additionally the Division has received additional cases
since -- I'm aware of, since 1996, 1997.

Q Since 2008 have there been additional complaints filed
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against Bradley Petroleum?

A Yes, there have been.

Q And you said 35 cases that you've worked on?

A Correct.

0 Is that -- how does that number compare to any other

business in the State of Colorado that's not bankrupt?
A It has been my experience that absent bankruptcy or --

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I object, This is
irrelevant.

THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: Absent bankruptcy or companies failing
that I've received and worked on more complaint against Brad --
Bradley Petroleum than any other employer.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Any other employer.
And when you receive a complaint from an employee do

you send that complaint on to Bradley Petroleum?

A I do.

Q And Bradley Petroleum responds?

A They do.

Q And then to this, does Bradley Petroleum say why

they've done what they've done in that correspondence to you?

A Yes, they typically do.

Q And in your history of working with Bradley Petroleum
do vyou tell them why what they are doing is legal or illegal?

A We, we've -— I do. I give them -- mainly I name the
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statute that they may be violating and indicate how they can
remedy the situation.
Q And does Bradley Petroleum upon your advising them of

the law end up almost always paying the employee?

A Yes, they do.

¢ Okay. Do you remember the case of Tina Pope?

A I do.

Q And do you remember generally what Ms. Pope was
alleging?

A She was alleging that one =-- deductions were making a
paycheck.,

] And you sent that onto Bradley Petroleum, correct?

A Correct.

0 And what was their response?

A You know I'm not directly aware of what their actual

response was.
Q Okay.
MR. CHRISTIAN: If I might approach?
THE COURT: Yes.

Q (By Mr. Christian) After you received a letter from
Bradley -- or from Ms. Pope did you send what I'1l hand to you,
a letter of August 24th of 200772

THE COURT: Before -- if we are going to start talking
about paper let's mark 1it, shall we?

THE COURT: Here, I've got stickers.
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Do you want some Defendant sticker's, Mr. Rapson, I've
got those too?
MR. RAPSON: Thank you, Your Honor, yes.
And I guess I'd ask counsel to give me a copy of the
documents that he's =--
THE COURT: That's, that would have happened before it
was admitted anyway, Mr. Rapson.
MR. RAPSON: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: And I -- and if -- sadly, I have even more
stickers if we need them.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
Q (By Mr. Christian) That look like a letter you would
have sent to Bradley Petroleum?
A Yes, 1t does.
Q Regarding Ms. Pope on August 28th?
THE COURT: I'm sorry. Have we marked that and
identified 1t?
MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes. I'm sorry.
THE COURT: I didn't. I'd --
Q (By Mr. Christian) I'm handing to you —-- I've handed
you what's been marked Plaintiff's Exhibit.1, correct?
A Yes.
Q And that is a letter from you to Bradley in August of
2007; is that right? |

A That's correct.
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Q And in that letter you indicate that you --
MR. RAPSON: I object, Your Honor. This hasn't been
introduced into evidence.
THE COURT: Yeah. It hadn't been introduced yet.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I would ask for the entry of Exhibit

MR. RAPSON: Well --

THE COURT: Well the --

MR. RAPSON: I would object Your Honor.

THE COURT: Could I see a copy?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. RAPSON: My objection is twofold. There hasn't
been a foundation.

THE COURT: Well, wait. Wait 'til I have one.

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: I can't tell whether it's even worth
objecting to until I have a copy.

Go ahead, Mr. Rapson. Go ahead.

MR. RAPSON: I just object that there hasn't been a
foundation laid, that it's relevant to the proceedings here.

But also I don't believe, and counsel may correct me
if I'm mistaken, because I could be mistaken, but I don't think
that this is a document I've seen before. And I know that we're
kind of stretching the rules just a wee bit here with this

particular hearing in terms of endorsing people, and everybody
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else at the last minute. Where I don't have much of a chance to
find out what's going on but if I haven't seen this it makes it
even doubly difficult.
THE COURT: The objection's overruled. Exhibit 1's

admitted. Let's proceed.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 1 admitted)

Q (By Mr. Christian) Generally, what did you tell
Bradley Petroleum?

A I notified them that our office considers them to be

in violation of the Colorado Wage Law specifically Statute 8-

4.105.
Q Okay. Do you recall receiving and then a --
MR. CHRISTIAN: Well, let me mark it. It's a two page
document.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 2 marked for identification)
Q (By Mr. Christian) Do you remember receiving a

response from Bradley's attorney Otto Hilbert on September 6th,
20077

A Yes, T do,r

Q And I've marked the Plaintiff's Exhibit 2. Is that
the letter that Mr. Hilbert sent you regarding Ms. Pope?

i\ Yes, it is.

MR. CHRISTIAN: And I would ask for the entry of

Exhibit 2.

MR. RAPSON: No objection, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Now you've given me -- there -- what I've
got up here is two pages. There's a fax cover sheet and letter
which -- is the letter Exhibit 27

MR. CHRISTIAN: The letter and then the fax, correct.

THE COURT: The fax sheet is -~

MR. CHRISTIAN: There's actually (indiscernible).

THE COURT: The fax sheet, so it's actually two pages,

correct?

MR. CHRISTIAN: That's correct.

THE COURT: You've no objection to either page, Mr.
Rapson?

MR. RAPSON: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Exhibit 2 is admitted in its
entirety.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 2 admitted)
Q (By Mr. Christian) And if you could read what Mr.
Hilbert saild to you?
A "Dear Ms. Neal, thank you for your correspondence of
August 28th, 2007.
"I represent Bradley Petroleum. Attached to this
letter please find a document executed by Ms. Pope
indicating that she is not owed any further monies by
Bradley Petroleum. According to the document executed
by Ms. Pope, she took cigarettes in an amount equal to

what she now contends she is owed. If you have any
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Q

questions or concerns regarding this matter, please
contact me. Sincerely, Otto K. Hilbert, IIL."
And the document that is attached is a --

MR. CHRISTIAN: 1I'd refer to as, and Judge, we'll

refer to these I think today as an "I took" document.

Q

(By Mr. Christian) Is that a document that was signed

by Ms. Pope presumably and signed by a Bradley representative?

ORI O D © B -

A

Yes.

And did she scratch out "I took"?

Yes. It appears that she did or someone did.
All right. So did you respond to Mr. Hilbert?
I'm sure I did.

And why are you sure that you did?

Because typically it is Division's policy to respond

to additional claims when the Division feels that monies are

still owed.

Q

And you felt that even with this waiver that their

action was illegal, correct?

Correct.

And did you write Bradley Petroleum back and tell them

I'm sure I did.
All right.
MR. CHRISTIAN: TIf I might approach?

THE COURT: All right.
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MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm marking for Ms. Neal, Plaintiff's
Exhibit 3.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 3 marked for identification)

THE COURT: Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Is that the letter you wrote back?
A Yes, it is.
Q And are your part —- are you explaining to Bradley

Petroleum in very clear language why the "I took" letter is
illegal?

THE COURT: Excuse me. With all due respect, Mr.
Christian, do you think you could ask that question in a
slightly less argumentative way?

MR. CHRISTIAN: You bet.

Q (By Mr. Christian) What have you written back to them
generally or specifically in regards to the "I took" letter?

A Basically I indicated that there is a, there is a way
to deduct for theft and that that is under 8-4.105 § (1) (¢) --
or here I indicated (c¢) which is -- basically says that it's a
deduction necessary to cover the replacement cost of a shortage
due to theft by an employee, if a report has been filed with the
proper law enforcement agency.

Q All right. So it's the Department of Labor's position

THE COURT: That's it's the world's most -- you're

going to find out, counsel, that the world most inefficient
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tripod. I'm telling you right now.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm right with you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It's =-- you —-

MR. CHRISTIAN; It's slowly destructing. So --

THE COURT: And we won't talk about how times I‘ve
asked to have to have it replaced either. But it's useless.

MR. KILLMER: That is something.

Q (By Mr. Christian) The Department of Labor's position
is that if there is a deduction for shortage, what is the
employer to do?

A If they believe it's theft by the employee, that they
file a proper -~ or a police report, a report with proper the
law enforcement agency and a couple things can occur.

One, if criminal charges are not filed or 1f 920 days
go by and nothing actually occurs then the employer's required
to pay the employee the deduction. Additionally the Division of
Labor actually requires that the employee be paid at least
minimum wage as well, regardless of whether or not the
deductions for theft occurs.

Q Do you know what the result of Ms. Pope's case was?

A I do believe that they indicated that the employer
ended up paying Ms. Pope.

Q Okay. Do you remember the case of a Lisa Hughes, H~u-
g-h-e—s7?

A I do remember there was a case against --
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Q What do you ==

A —-— for a Lisa Hughes.

Q What do you recall as the complaint of Ms. Hughes?
A I do believe deductions were involved.

Q And did you again, if you recall, send a letter to

Bradley Petroleum?
A I did. It is the Division's policy to send a letter
when we receive a complaint.
MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge, I'm going to ask for the

admission of Exhibit's 1 through 3, if we haven't already done

that?

THE COURT: I think we've admitted 1 through 3. There
was an objection to 1. There was no objection to 2.

I'm sorry, did -- was there any objection to 3, Mr.
Rapson?

MR. RAPSON: ©No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right 3 is admitted.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 3 admitted)

THE COURT: 1, 2, 3 have all been admitted, 1 over
objection, 2 and 3 without objection. Go ahead.

Q (By Mr. Christian) So again with Ms. Hughes was there
correspondence back and forth in regards to whether the
deduction from her paycheck was legal or not?

A Yes, I believe there was.

Q And do you recognize that letter in October of 2007
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being your response to another deduction case?
A Yes.

THE COURT: If we -- are we identifying that as
Exhibit 4?2

MR. CHRISTIAN: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Gentlemen, I'm not trying to be
difficult with this but if we're -- seriously if were going to
throw a lot of paper around we've got to make sure the record's
clear.

MR. CHRISTIAN: And I'm sorry, Your Honor. I'm all
clear (indiscernible; off microphone). |

THE COURT: And I want to, I =-- just so everybody
knows, I'm putting the stickers on up here and I'm writing
Exhibit 1, 2, 3, 4, but next to that in parenthesis I'm putting
the date of the hearing. Because there have been other hearings
and other exhibits tendered at various times in this case.

And I want to make sure when this case gets appealed
that we understand —- that people farther up the food chain from
me understand what we are talking about.

Back to you, Mr. Christian.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Your Honor, I would ask for the
admission of Exhibit 4.

THE COURT: Any objection to 4, Mr. Rapson?

MR. RAPSON: Well, none other than the fact that I

don't believe this before. 1I've been given no notice that
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anything regarding this would be taken up at this hearing. I
don't believe, anyway.

I could be mistaken -—- possibly as part of that
documents Defense Counsel -- or Plaintiff's counsel gave me but
T don't believe it is. A&And so just to back to the, you know,
objection based on lack of due process and discovery process.

THE COURT: All right. Now, this isn't a -- this
letter was sent to your client. I don't know that there is any
debate about that. There's sufficient foundation for its
admission. Exhibit 4 is admitted. The objection's overruled.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 4 admitted)

THE COURT: Mr. Christian.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Let's talk about that briefly.
Has Mr. Rapson ever interviewed you in the last couple of weeks
in regards to what your testimony would be today?

A No.

Q You, you start to seem a little frustrated in this

letter; is that true?

A No. I'm basically stating the Division's policy.

Q And again explaining why the deduction is illegal?

A Correct.

Q And you also wrote something in all caps?

A I did.

o) And what did you write?

A If —— "This letter serves as official notice" then in
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all caps "but if such violations are occurring they must cease

immediately™.

Q And by "such violations™, what are we speaking of?

A Typically when -- this is actually a letter that's for
minimum wage violationé. It's been altered. We do have

standard letters that we do send.

o Okay. Do you -- and do you remember the results of
Ms. Hughes' case?

A They ended up paying the employee.

Q Now do you remember at some point Mr. Hilbert writing
you a letter requesting assistance from the Department of Labor,
in drafting some sort document that would be permissible by the
Department of Labor?

A I do.

0 All right.

MR. CHRISTIAN: If I might approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
0 (By Mr. Christian) I'm handing to you Exhibit 5.
What does that look like to you?
A This is a letter to me from Otto Hilbert.
Q And in that letter what is Mister --
THE COURT: Can I have a copy please?
MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes, I'm looking for one right now.
Q (By Mr. Christian) In that letter what is Mr. Hilbert

asking?
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MR. RAPSON: Wait, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I mean let's not talk about it until it's
admitted, shall we, about the content?

MR. CHRISTIAN: I ask for the entrance of Exhibit 5.

THE COURT: Any objection to 57

MR. RAPSON: I don't understand the relevance of this.
Yeah, I think we are here --

THE COURT: If the objection -- just so you
understand, Mr. Rapson, I don't permit speaking objections. I
understand your objection is relevance. Any other objection?

MR. RAPSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Overruled on relevance. You can proceed.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 5 admitted)

o) (By Mr. Christian) What is Mr. Hilbert asking from
you?

A That Bradley would appreciate our assistance in
preparing a form acceptable to the Department of Labor and
Employment for use, I'm reading directly from his letter, sorry,
"for use in circumstances where employees had admitted taking
inventory or cash".

Q Well, what is your feeling about that?

A Well one, basically employers are not allowed to
deduct from their employees' wages. 8-4.105 outlines a very
narrow area where employers may deduct employees wages. Using a

form for things such as shortages and theft, it's Division's
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perspective it's not in compliance with the Colorado Wage Act.

Q And why 1is that?
A Mainly because there is a statute that allows for it
which 1s 8-4.105(1) (¢) which specifies that a proper -- or a

police report has to be filed essentially.

Q A1l right. And did you respond back to Mr. Hilbert's
request?

A I did.

Q Would you seek assistance from your supervisors or

from the Attorney General in determining whether you were going
to do anything that Mr. Hilbert had asked in drafting the
documents?

A I did. I spoke with Mike Micardo (ph), the Director
of the Division and in addition to Peter Wingate (ph), the
Deputy Director.

Q And that's the letter you wrote back to Mr. Hilbert?

A That's correct.

MR. CHRISTIAN: And I'd ask for the entrance of
Exhibit 6.
THE COURT: Any objection to &7
MR. RAPSON:k No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: 6 is admitted.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 6 admitted)
Q (By Mr. Christian) Generally what are you telling Mr.

Hilbert about his regquest that there be a written waiver?
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A I basically told him that according to Colorado
Revised Statute 8-4-12 -- 121 that an employee cannot waive
their rights to their wages. I additionally noted that they may
deduct for theft under 8-4.105(1) (¢) which again is the
deduction that allows for theft if there is a report filed with
the proper law enforcement agency.

Q Did they’pay Ms. Lintz (ph)?

A They did.

0] What's the date of that letter?
A That is dated November 20th, 2007.
Q And have you received additional complaints about

Bradley Petroleum wage practices since that date?

A Yes, I have.

Q Okay. You have heard the initial argument this
morning that Bradley doesn't know why the "I took" letter

doesn't work, would you agree with that sentiment?

A But that he did say that that was why or --

Q Well --

A —-— that he explained that?

Q That was a bad question. Do you think Bradley

Petroleum, given the correspondence that I've presented to you
today and other correspondence, understands why the "I took™
letter does not work?

MR. RAPSON: Objection, Your Honor; it's perfectly

impermissible for this witness to try to get in the mind of
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Bradley Petroleum based on the question asked.

THE COURT: If you're ~- if the objection is
speculation --

MR. RAPSON: Yes.

THE COURT: =- then the objection is sustained.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Has Mr. Rapson corresponded with
you in regards to the same thing, whether a written document can
serve as a consent to deduct wages?

A Yes, he has sent several correspondences.

Q And have you responded to that?

A I‘have made one response to Mr. Rapson.

Q And are you aware of me sending you a letter to give

to Mr. Rapson as well?

A Yes.
Q And that was months ago?
A Correct.

MR. CHRISTIAN: If T might just have a moment, Your
Honor?

THE COURT: Certainly.

(Brief pause in proceedings)

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have nothing further.

THE COURT: Cross-examination?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Which I'd ask for the admission of
Exhibit 6, if I haven't already.

MR. KILLMER: It's admitted.
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THE COURT: Yes, I think we admitted --
MR. RAPSON: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: We admitted 6, I believe.
MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: 6 is admitted.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:

Q Good morning, Ms. Neal.
A Good morning.
Q And you're really intimately familiar with 81 -- 8-

4.105, are you not?

A I would say vyes.

Q Because you work with it on a regular basis?

A Yes.

Q And it has -- it's set -- it has a general broad

prohibition on any employer wage deductions, right?

A It's not that it has a prohibition. It's that
employers are not allowed to deduct and 8-4.105 basically
outlines the narrow span of what they are allowed to deduct.

Q Okay. It says —-- the first sentence says "no employer
shall make a deduction from the wages of compens == Or
compensation of an employee except as follows" and that's kind
of a probation, isn't it?

A I'm ——

Q You disagree that that's a prohibition?
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A It's saying that it's -~

THE COURT: You know what guys? I'm really
uncomfortable with asking the witness to interpret the law. I
mean she sent -- I under -- I see the letters that she's sending
out, all right, and I can understand that.

But asking her guestions where you're asking her -- to
tell her what statute means; that makes me uncomfortable. But
with all due respect, and I'm not trying to say this to be
egoistical, there's one person in this room who can decide what
a statute means.

MR. RAPSON: I understand, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That would be me.

MR. RAPSON: I promise you,’I promise you, Your Honor,
I'm not going to ask --

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RAPSON: ~- what the statute means.

THE COURT: All right. If it's foundation, it's
foundational I'm okay, Mr. Rapson. But I'm just -- I Jjust sort
of want to make sure everybody understands what the parameters
are here.

MR. RAPSON: Okay. I understand. I'm not going to --
I'm not interested -- well, I won't ask her that.

Q (By Mr. Rapson) But the first sentence is a
prohibition. "No employer shall make a deduction from the wages

or compensation of an employee, except”™ -- that's a prohibition,
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right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And then it has four exceptions, right?

A I believe it has five.

0 Okay. Maybe it has a fifth. The first one is
deductions mandated -- deductions for loans, advances, goods or

services, and eguipment or property —-

A That's actually =--
Q -— provided by --
A -= the second.
Q That's the second one. The first one has to do
with --
A Taxes.
Q Taxes, okay. I've been characterizing it as four but

you're right, it's five.

The third one, or what I've characterized as the
second one, is the theft situation where an employer reports to
a police agency a suspected theft and the police agency takes
the case and then decides -- investigates and decides whether to
file a theft case; 1s that right?

A Yeah. That's 8-4.105(1) (c), yes.

Q And that's the one where if no case is filed then the
employer is required to return the money within 90 days, right?

A Correct.

Q Now the fourth one, or what I refer to as the third
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one says any deduction -- and this is not listed in the prior
ones —-—- any deduction which is authorized by an employee, does
it not-?

A It does.

Q Okay. And that's one of the reasons we're today, to

talk about that and what that means. Okay?

A Okay.

Q Now I'm not going to ask what you think it means, but
isn't it true that you have taken issue with Bradley because
Bradley says, has said historically as long as an employee
consents or authorizes a deduction, then it's okay. It fits
within the statute and you've said no; isn't that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Now I wrote you —-- let me hand -~

MR. RAPSON: 1I'll have this marked for identification
as Exhibit -=-

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Seven.

MR. CHRISTIAN: DNo, A.

MR. RAPSON: A.

Now I'll hand this to the Court and then I'11 hand
this to you.

May I approach the bench, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

Q (By Mr. Rapson) Exhibit A consists of several

letters; does it not?
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A Yes, it does.
Q The first one is a letter from me to you dated June

30th; 1is that correct?

A Yes, it is.

Q And then you responded to me on July 17

A That I did.

Q And then I wrote back to you on July 15 and then again

on July 3072

A Okay. Yeah. I do have one from July 15th and July
30th. That's correct.

MR. RAPSON: I would move for admission of Exhibit A,
Your Honor.

MR, CHRISTIAN: No objection.

THE COURT: Any objection to AY

MR. CHRISTIAN: ©No, sir.

THE COURT: A's admitted.

(Defendant's Exhibit Number A admitted)

Q (By Mr. Rapson) And isn't it -- isn't it true that in
all three of my letter I tee it up by saying, I know that you
think that employees authorizing a deduction doesn't come within
the (d) part of the (d) exception under the statute and in each
one of the letters I say "why".

What is it, what law, what authority, what in the

world basis do you have for saying that if an employee expressly

authorizes a deduction that that's not legal. And isn't it
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true, and isn't that true that what I ~- the thrust of those
letters?

A Yes, it is.

Q And isn't it true that the only response you come back

with and I don't mean to, you know, take issue with you
personally, but you just -- all you said was that's our policy.
That's what it is. You never once provided a reason or a
rationale of why I'm wrong and why you're right?

A T did say what deductions are permissible.

Q Well, but my guestion, well what's wrong with (d), why
can't we under (d), if an employee consents, what's wrong with
that? That's what the statute says. And isn't it true that you
never, ever, ever provided a rationale of why I'm wrong. You
never said anything other than that's our position. That's the
way it is.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Many objections. First it's asking
for —--

THE COURT: Just why don't you start with
argumentative and we can stop it at that.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Argumentative, and conclusion, as well
as asking too many questions.

THE COURT: Iﬁ's argumentative. And also, Mr. Rapson
there were about five gquestions in there.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yeah.

THE COURT: Which one did you want her to answer?
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MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. And that's what the whole
thing argumentative --

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: =-- is that it's just a series of
statements. So one question at a time, please.

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

Q (By Mr. Rapson) Has there been any time in your
correspondence or otherwise when you provided a rationale or any
explanation for why it's the Department df Labor that (d)
doesn't allow was what Bradley does?

A No. The Division of Labor did not -- I did not
provide that response to you.

Q Okay. At no point in time orally or in writing has
the Department of Labor explained why it is that you feel that
what Bradley does, doesn't come within (d)?

A Are you asking whether or not we have anything in

writing or what's, what's the question?

Q Yeah.

A Okay.

Q Do you have anything in writing?

A No. We don't currently have anything in writing that
specifically a direct -- addressing (d) as it pertains to this

case, no.

Q Okay. And so it's your policy that it doesn't appl
ppiy
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but there is no reason or rationale for that policy?

A But there is reason and rationale.
) What's the reason and rationale?
A It is the Division's prospective that 8-4.105(1) (d) is

one, revocable, and it applies in circumstances where the
deduction actually benefits the employee such as insurance,
stock options.

Q Well, but the language here —-—- you wouldn't disagree
with me that the language says that an exception to the
prohibition is any deduction which is authorized by any -- an
employee if the authorization is revocable, right?

A I believe it does say that. I don't have it in front
of me, but yes.

Q And the revocability would come into play if the
employee, on being employed, gave the employer carte blanche to
deduct whatever wage deductions they wanted, way ahead of time.
You'd want to make sure that in order to comply with (d) that
that consent, an advance consent was revocable; that they

weren't stuck with that to make it qualify under (d), right?

A Typically {(d) is not a blank check for an employer.
It does ~— I mean, it allows for those deductions that benefit
the employee like insurance, stock options. I mean shortages

due to theft typically aren't listed or one of the examples
under 8-4.105(1) (d).

0 The revocability requirement really doesn’'t apply,
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don't you agree, once there has been an after-the-fact consent.
In other words the employee knows all of the facts, this is what
were going to deduct, you can either consent or not. I mean the
revocability requirement applies when you pre-approve it, but
not when you have all of the facts in front of you and then go
ahead and approve it. Would you agree?

A I don't know.

Q Okay. Now going back to your testimony you said that
you had some 35 cases with Bradley?

A That's correct.

Q and did you work out a resolution in those cases that
was acceptable to you and to Bradley?

A Yeah. Most of the cases were closed. It was either
paid or resolved. There were two cases that I'm aware of that
were closed as non-compliant.

Q Okay. So the bulk, with the exception of two cases,

you were able to solve by a back and forth dialogue with

Bradley?

A Correct, yes.

Q You didn't need to come through this litigation to get
that -- those cases resolved, did you?

A No, we did not.

Q Counsel refers to these documents that express the

employees' consent to wage deductions, as "I took" documents but

we referred to them as just simple authorizations from an
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employee. We're not accepting counselor's characterization of

the documents. Do you understand that?
A Yes, I can understand that.
Q Now dealing, last question -- in Exhibit 5, I think we

characterized this an effort by counsel for Bradley to work with
you to come up with a form that would be acceptable to the
Department and acceptable to Bradley, right?

A Correct.

Q And would you consider that to be a good faith effort
on the part of Bfadley to try to come up with some win/win deal
between the Department and Bradley?

A I mean they had responded to everything that we've so
far requested, with the exception of the two non-compliant
claims.

o) And that would include this November 12th, 2007, as a
good faith effort, let's get together, let's try to work
gsomething out, Jjust a win/win deal for all of us. Is that a
fair statement?

A I suppose, vyes.

0 And I understand that the Department about the --
wasn't able to do that?

A No. Actually we did respond to them, in addition to
the letter that was I think Exhibit 6, another letter was
actually sent out informing them -- I don't believe it had a

claim number on it sokI‘m not sure if I'm allowed to talk about
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it.
But it did inform them that basically what I had
indicated in previous testimony which was we determined that it

was not in compliance with the law.

Q So there wasn't any follow-up effort to that to
resolve ==

A There was.

) Oh, there was. So you did sit down and try to work

out a form?
A Not the form. We told them that a form was not in
compliance with the law to deduct for shortages for theft.
Q Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. RAPSON: No further questions.
THE COURT: Redirect?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

Q You had 35 cases in which you worked in good faith
with Bradley; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Did the Department of Labor know that there hundreds
of other deductions being made?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I object to that. There's no

evidence to that in the record at this point and I ask that that
gquestion be struck.

THE COURT: Let's see if we can rephrase the question,
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Q (By Mr. Christian) Have you received information from
me via a audit conducted by Bradley Petroleum that shows that
they've made hundreds of deductions from paychecks?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, this is all hearsay.

THE COURT: It's also beyond the scope of re ~—- cross-
examination. If you wanted to ask her that you should have
asked her that during direct.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Your Honor, it goes to the good faith.
You know, he said they're acting in good faith, Your Honor. I
don't have a copy of this, Your Honor. I'm marking it as
Plaintiff's Exhibit ~-

THE COURT: You don't have a copy?

MR. CHRISTIAN: No. It's in response to =--

THE COURT: Give it to Mr. Shay, he'll go make the
copies.

Three please, Scott.

(Brief pause in proceedings)

THE COURT: Pass them.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you.

May I approach Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

Q (By Mr. Christian) You received a packet of
correspondence from Defendant's counsel that was marked as

Exhibit A, correct?

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

51

A Yes.

Q There was a letter in this series of letters that
missing; is that right?

Well let me ask you this: Do you remember receiving a
letter from me on July 24th, 2009, in relation to this Mr.
Fairos, F=a—i-r-o-s?

A Yes.

Q And is that Plaintiff's Exhibit 7, that I've handed to
you? And it's a rather lengthy description as to why we
acknowledge an "I took" letter. It does not work it's matter of
fact of law; isn't it?

THE COURT: She's not entitled to tell me that. So

you —=
Q (By Mr. Christian) You received --
THE COURT: Don't answer that question. You can't
answer.
Q (By Mr. Christian) You received this letter from,
from me?
A I did.

Q All right.
MR. CHRISTIAN: I'd ask for the introduction of
Plaintiff's Exhibit 772
THE COURT: Any objection to 77
MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor. All it simply

represents counsel's view of the law and I think that that's
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something that's going to be at the heart of ultimate argument
here. I'm going to be taking the position the Court knows, and
counsel's going to be taking his position but I don't think
that's an evidentiary matter.

THE COURT: It's not being offered for that purpose.
It's being offered to refute testimony elicited during redirect
(sic), so I'm going to allow it for that limited purpose.

I under -- understand that it makes an argument about
the law which I'm bound to hear again before this is over, but
I'1ll admit it for this purpose.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 7 admitted)

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Recross?

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:

Q Now that this in -- show me -- first of all I had
asked you about the series of correspondence between you and me,
you and I, right?

A Correct.

Q And this i1s not part of the correspondence between the
two of us, is it?

A No, it's not.

Q All right. Show me in this letter, show me in one

place in the letter where there's a reference to the language in
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8-4.105(d),
by an employee 1is deductible?
about that language in that letter?

THE COURT: And he doesn't.

MR. RAPSON: " Okay.

We understand that.

to the effect that any deduction which is authorized

Show me any place where he talks

THE COURT:
MR. RAPSON: Okay.
THE COURT: Thank

You can step down,

Next question.

No further gquestions.
you.

Ms. Neal.

We're going to take about a ten minute recess, all

right.
MR. CHRISTIAN:
THE COURT: Thank
restroom you are welcome to
well as the ones out in the
minutes.
{Recess was taken from

THE COURT: We're

A1l right.

you. If anybody needs to use the
use the one back in the jury room as
hall. Thank you. About ten
10:06 to 10:23)

back on the record on 01 CV 5947 and

the record should reflect that counsel and the parties are

present and as are counsel.
Next witness.
MR. CHRISTIAN:

THE COURT: Mr.

Raise your right hand please?

or affirm?

Mark Schlueter,

Shooter

Your Honor.
(sic).

Do you solemnly swear
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MR. SCHLUETER: Yes, I do.
THE COURT: Make sure you speak right into the

microphone so that we can hear you.
MR. SCHLUETER: You have to speak into it?

THE COURT: Counselor.

MARK SCHLUETER
a witness, called by the Plaintiff, was examined and testified

as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

Sir, can you spell your name for the record, please?

S-¢c~h~l-u—-e~t—-e-r

Q
A .
Q And that's pronounced Schlueter?
A Schlueter, ves.

Q

And is it safe, is it safe to assume that you are the

Human Resources Coordinator for Bradley Petroleum?

A That's my title, yes.
Q And what do you do in that regard?
A I conduct, as human resources, many things. One of

which is working with Amanda Neal. I hire people. I could go

on -- the human resources department is basically what I do.
Q And how long have you been at Bradley Petroleum?
A Since September of 2006.

0] And do you deal with payroll?
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A Payroll is in my department, yes.

Q And is part of your role to make deductions from
paychecks or enter them into payroll?

A Yes, sir.

Q And was 1t your task, given the Court's order of
November of 2008 to put together an audit of payroll at Bradley
Petroleum and Save-O-Mat?

i\ Yes, sir.

Q And can you tell me the difference between Bradley
Petroleum and Save-O-Mat?

A In what manner (indiscernible)?

Q Well, you —-- when I say Bradley Petroleum, do you also
work for Save-O-Mat?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you deal with Save-0O-Mat's payroll and you dealt
with the Save-0-Mat documents, correct?

A Yes, sir.

MR. CHRISTIAN: If I may approach, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Certainly. Thank‘you.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Sir, I've tendered to you a stack
of documents, Exhibit's 8, 9, 10, and 11. Can you tell the
Court what those are?

THE COURT: And before we do that let me make sure
that I have the documents -~- the right document marked with the

number, just so that there is some identifier. Exhibit 8 would
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be the packet that has handwritten "'07 Save-0O-Mat deductions
explained”; is that correct? So that's Exhibit --

MR. KILLMER: No, there's three more beside it.

THE COURT: I understand that. That's Exhibit 8.
Exhibit 9, it says "Bradley" in the upper-left hand corner and
then has the handwritten "2007" in the middle.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Again this is just for
identification purposes. Exhibit 10 has printed at the top
"Bradley 2008 deductions explained" and 11 is "Save-0O-Mat 2000",
actually there's three zeroes, "deductions explained".

MR. CHRISTIAN: That should be 2008, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah. I'm sorry Mister =-- again I want
the record to be clear. Go ahead.
Q (By Mr. Christian) And how did you go about -- did

you put together these documents, 8, 9, 10, and 117
A Yes, I did.
MR. CHRISTIAN: I would ask for the entry of Exhibit's
8 through 117
THE COURT: Any objection?
MR. RAPSON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: ©No object -- Exhibit 8, 9, 10 and 11 are
admitted.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit Numbers 8, 9, 10, 11 admitted)

Q (By Mr. Christian) Mr. Schlueter, tell the Court how
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you went about the composing of the deductions explained in the
documents that are in front of you?

A Well, to make sure —- to make sure that I wasn't going
to miss any I printed out all the payroll records.

THE COURT: Mr. Schlueter, I can tell you right now.
In the mic -~ I know.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Tt's real problem with you not being able
to -— we've actually had witnesses -— if it's more comfortable
hold the microphone in your hands =--

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: ~- in your lap and then you can == that's

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: ~-- we've had a lot of witnesses find
that's much more comfortable. Go ahead.

THE WITNESS: Okay. To make sure I didn't miss, any I
printed out all of the payroll records. We use Paychex as our
payroll company and it's a secure accounting system,

And I printed out 2007, all departments, meaning each
store as a department and then inter -- and everybody in the
offices department. And for 2007 for both Bradley and Save-O-
Mat. And T -- then I printed out the same thing for Bradley
and Save-0-Mat for 2008.

Then I went line item by line item from the printed
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copy and any time there was a miscellaneous deduction I checked
to see whether it was uniform or a —-- from one of our authorized
sheets. And 99 percent of the time that's all there was for
those miscellaneous deductions, was either a uniform or an
authorized.

And that sometimes, very small -- once in a while I.
came upon where we've overpalid somebody one week, and then we
took it back. Like I said 99 percent was -- that's what the
miscellaneous deductions were. I was instructed by the Court to
explain all miscellaneous deductions.

Q All right. And so -- and do you establish a policy,
are you part of a -- well, do you know of Bradley and Save-0-
Mat's policy in regards to make a deduction from the paycheck's
for shortages?

A Yes, sir.

Q And the Defendants have a policy to make deductions
from paycheck for shortages due to mathematical errors, correct?

A No, not mathematical.

Q If an employee gives too much money back to a customer
and it shows a shortage at the end of the day, is that the type
of money reduced from their paycheck?

A You mean as a shortage because we gave money -- too
much money back?

Q Yes.

A If there is a shortage that we can't account for that
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would fall under that category.

Q And the end of each shift the employees reconcile
their drawers, correct?

A That's correct.

Q And if there is a shortage in the drawer, the defend -
- the Bradley and Save-0O-Mat's policy is to make that deduction
from an employee paycheck, correct?

A It's a more lengthy process. I mean, 1it's
investigated. It might take a week to decide if that's in fact
the case.

0] All right. And the Defendant's policy is to make
those deductions even 1f the employee denies that they are
responsible for the shortage or took the money, correct?

A I disagree because if they deny the -- if they don't

believe they did it then they are free to quit.

Q But the money would still be taken out of their check,
right?

A Not if they don't sign the authorization form.

Q All right. The -- is there instances in these

Exhibits 8, 9, 10, and 11 were there is no authorization form
and there is no "I took" document, yet the money has still been

taken from the employee'’s paycheck?

A Yes, I did find some.
Q Dozens, correct?
A There is an area in January of 2008 until March of
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2008 where we lost the documents.

Q All right.

A I myself was the payroll person at the time. I
entered them and when I switched over to the new payroll person
she didn't realize that they were to be (indiscernible).

Q Well, but you haven't found those persons and issued
them paychecks reimbursing them for the deduction though, have
you?

A No, sir.

Q And the far right columns show three things: no doc,
at least on Exhibit 8, it says "no doc", "old doc" and "new
doc"™. Can you explain to the Court what that is?

A - The old doc -- can you say that again, old doc, new

doc, what?

Q It says: "no doc" --

A Okay.

Q == d=o0=c, "old doc"™, d-o-c, and "new doc", d-o-c.

A Okavy.

Q And that's true as to Exhibit 8, 10, and 1l1. What are

those categories?

A "No doc" would mean I cannot produce the document.
Q "0ld doc"?
A Would mean that it's a document where we listed four

categories of which we felt came under our choices to have a

deduction ~-
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Q And --

A ~~ which means cigarettes, cash. And "new doc" what
we felt was a more clear statement that released -- that they
said that I did allow -- that the shortage occurred.

0 Are you saying that the old doc is not a clear -- is

something that's not used anymore?
A Well, neither one are used anymore.
0 All right. The -- is the -—-

THE COURT: I mean let's make sure we're talking about
—— pecause I realize we are talking about a timeline here.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Correct.

THE COURT: What you are telling me is that neither
old doc or new doc is currently, currently the policy of
Bradley? I mean you don't use either one of those documents at
the present time?

THE WITNESS: At the -- (indiscernible) February,
2009. Do you want to know the difference to what --

THE COURT: Well the --

Q (By Mr. Christian) The old doc --

THE COURT: If I do, I will. But go ahead.

Q (By Mr. Christian) The old doc is a =-- you call it an

acknowledgment that the employee signed saying that you could

take out of their paycheck —- what I -- do you recall?
A Sure.
0 What are those items?
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A Well right off the top, you can like -- well, it would
be I can't tell you —-- there was a couple versions that, that
what happened was some people kept the original body in the top,
so there has been three or four different version of that older
document. There's not just one old document but it is -- it
might say "cash". It might say "cigarettes"” and I'm not sure

what the other thing was.

Q And -~

A I'd have to look.

Q —-— drive-offs?

A I don't know if drive-offs was a part of that, that --
Q Well you would agree with me that it's the Defendant's

-—- was the Defendant's policy to make deductions from wages for
drive-offs, correct?

A No. TIt's our policy that they follow our company
policy as to how we monitor drive-offs.

Q And if the employee does not follow the company policy
as to how a drive-off is monitored that drive-off amount is
deducted from theirvpaycheck, correct?

A Only if they allow it, and -- or they can leave the
Job.

Q So you -- the Defendant's policy is sign this document
that allows the deduction to be made or be fired?

A Not correct. If you follow the policy we have -- any

pumps that we -- the cashier cannot see the license plate, we

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 1é6th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

63

make those prepay, any pump, I mean -- yeah, prepay. Anytime
that the plates are visual it's their job to write down the
license plate. If they write down the license plate before they
authorize the pump, because our pumps don't come on
automatically -- they're not, you know, you have to authorize
them. If they can't see them then wait until they come up and
pay. If you can see the license plate and you didn't write
down, you authorize it. At that point we do not charge them.

If they drive-off and they've written down the plate. That's
good faith and we have something to give to the police.

0 If I'm busy and someone drives off and I didn't get
the plate number down I am going to be asked to sign a document
that permits you take that drive-off amount out of my paycheck
or I will be fired, correct?

A Or you can quit.

Q Or I can quit.

THE COURT: Let me make sure I understand. Is that
policy still in place as we sit here today?

MR. RAPSON: Not in 2009; Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So that stopped as of February 2009
as well?

MR. RAPSON: Yes. 2And now you're not given the
choice. Before you had the choice of (indiscernible) .

THE COURT: I've got it. ©No, no, no. Don't tell me,

Mr. Rapson. Just answer my question. Thank you.
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Q (By Mr. Christian) So --

THE COURT: That helps me. Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Christian) -- since February of 2009, the
Defendant's policy is terminate the individual if there is a
shortage that is unexplained or a customer drive-off?

A That is not following the company policy, writing

license plates down --

Q Okay.
A And monitoring your job.
Q And the reason that these people are being fired

instead of being given the acknowledgment is this litigation?

A T don't think I can personally answer that.

Q All right. Has it been discussed that this, just the
shortages of customer drive-offs simply become a cost of doing
business for Bradley Petroleum and Save-0-Mat?

A I don't know if I could personally could answer that.

Q With each of these Exhibits, 8 through 11, there was
also a corresponding stack of documents, correct?

A That's correct.

Q All right. And on here is also a uniform deduction;

do you see those?

A Yes.
Q And how from these documents, would the Judge know
whether the -- well explain what a uniform deduction is first of

all.
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A Okay. When I came to work we had smocks, when I first
came to work. And the de -- the uniform deposit was $30 per
smock, 1f they returned the smock, we returned them $30.

And in the middle of 2007 we started —-- we changed and
moved, slowly moved from smocks to uniform shirts and name tags,
and the basic uniform deposit was $22 for the shirt and $2 for a
name tag. If you wanted a hat it was $6 and when returned, we
returned the money.

Q And but this =-- the "deductions explained"” document
does not show whether the person received their uniform deposit

back or not?

A It does not.

Q But you have those records though?

A I could produce those records. I don't have them with
me.

Q All right.

MR. CHRISTIAN: May I have just a moment, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes.

(Brief pause in proceedings)

) (By Mr. Christian) Sir, have you talfied up the
amounts of deductions that are shown in these documents and the
amount of money that is involved?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any reason to disagree with three hun --

1,373 deductions totaling $52,366.557?
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A I could work -- yeah. I mean, you know that would
work.

Q That's a number that you don't disagree with?

A No, I produced it.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have nothing further.
THE COURT: Cross—examination.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:
Q Now you produced Exhibits 8, 9, 10, and 117
A Yes.
o) What level of time and effort did it take to do that?
A It was exhaustive from the time that I received the
letter from Otto of Mr. Christian's request to the Court in --
THE COURT: Otto would be Mr. Hilbert.
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Yes, sir.
THE COURT: Well, that's just so the record’'s clear.
Go ahead. I knew who it was.
THE WITNESS: Okay. I spent, I usually spent one day
a week plus the weekends, so probably three, eight-hour days.
Over probably, oh shoot, it probably took me two and a half
months to get everything all together because I had to research
documents. If I couldn't find the documents I had to contact
stores to see if the document was still at the store level. It
was quite involved.

Q Okay. So —- and you are familiar with the payroll
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department because it's part of -- it reports to you as the

human resources' person --

A Correct.
Q -- 1s that correct?
And is it the policy of =- to have in hand a consent,

an authorization document before any deduction is taken always,
under all circumstances, every time, 100 percent of the time?

A That's our policy, yes, sir.

Q Okay. And so when you say that there was a period of
time from January to the end of March where you couldn't find
the documents, right?

A AI haven't found them yet.

Q Right. But that, does that mean that they don't exist
or that they weren't done?

A Actually at that point in time, we lost our payroll
clerk and I entered them in from December of —-- 20th of 2007
until Diane Heel (ph) came in, and -- at the first of April, so
I physically saw them and physically entered them in.

Q So you know that there were authorizations for those
three months as well as the rest of the time even though you
can't find the documents themselves?

A Correct. I did the work.

0 So every time you look at a deduction you've got an
authorization from the employee that they signed authorizing

that deduction, every single time?
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A Not every time.
Q Well there might be an exception here and there but =--
A Right. Yeah. But I mean we have a lot employees and

you know, and I was going to tell Mr. Christian that I've gained
on some of those "no documents" since the report that he had,
but you know --

Q But this was the policy and 99 percent of the time you

got a document, right?

A Yes. That's == I always --— that's the -- that's where
I was -- I was going for a hundred percent.
Q Now going back to the drive~offs. Apparently there

are some times when a teller is unable to read a license a
plate; is that correct? Just because of the configuration of

the gas station, right?

A Yeah. Some pumps are not =--

0 And, and --

A -- visual.

Q And where that's the case then the pumps are set so

that they are prepay, so that people have to pay before they get

the gas?
A Correct.
Q Okay. Now in other cases, they are not prepaid the

teller or the cashier is able to see the license plate of the
car that's seeking to get gas, right?

A Yes, sir. We have them binoculars.
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Q And that person cannot get gas until the employee in
the shop says okay and pushes the button, right?

A Correct.

Q And if that employee writes down the license plate on
that car, and then the car books up and takes off without
payving, do you hold the employee accountable?

A No.

Q Okay. You only hold the account -- or the employee
accountable when he doesn't follow the company policy to write
down the license plate; is that correct?

A If he approves the -- a deduction.

Q But I'm -- I mean you go to him and say, look you
know, we are going to have to take a deduction, do you want to

consent or not, or those times when he hasn't followed ==

A Correct.

Q -- the corporate policy?

A Correct.

Q And then he's given the opportunity of eithef

approving the deduction or not; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q And today, does he get the choice?

A And since =-- you mean today as in --

Q Since February 20097

A No. If it's an unexplained deduction we terminate

them. And that way --
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0 And that's because ==

A --~ and that would be -- well, or breaking company
policy, ves.

Q And that's because of this case, because of this wage

deduction case?

A I'm -~ again I'm not the person who'd make that
determination.
Q Now with respect to the uniform deduction, do you see

a lot of uniform deductions in here where you deduct the cost of
uniform from the employee's salary when they first came on
board, right?

A That's generaily -- you know, within a week or two, we
get a signed document back from when they started.

Q And once in a while you forgot and didn't actually
deduct for a uniform when it was given to an employee, right?

A Yes, sir. But I actually stamped them entered when we
actually didn't enter them.

Q Well, where this reflects that there's a uniform
deduction did, did you always, one hundred percent of the time,
without exception return that money whenever the uniform was
returned, and as long as 1t was in a destroyed or compromised
situation.

A Once again, I was always shooting for a hundred
percent. The only way they would not have got it back was if it

was it was somebody who returned their uniform, the manager
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didn't tell me and nobody requested it. But if they've ever

requested it I've gone lengthy -- I know what checks went out
and in --
Q So the answer to my --— to ask my question again --

THE COURT: Well, why don't we let the witness finish
his answer.

THE WITNESS: So you know to ans —- you know, to make
it shorter is that I have to you know, verify —-- when somebody
requests that their uniform be paid back or deposit, I should
say, I have to request -- I have to check out first if we ever
took it out, and I found out there's a couple of times that
we've never, ever taken it out. so I did not return their money
and they were disappointed and then I would send them a copy of

their payroll records in the mail to show that there no

deduction for them and -- or Amanda Neal, 1f that was a question
from her.
Q (By Mr. Rapson) Let me rephrase the question. This

calls for a yes Or no answer.

A Good.

Q Is it true in virtually all instances, almost a
hundred percent of the time, when you took a deduction from an
employee for a uniform, and they then returned it an the end in
a condition that was not destroyed or severely compromised that
you paid them back for it?

A Yes, sir.
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MR. RAPSON: ©No further questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Redirect.

REDIRECT-EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

’Q You corresponded with the Department of Labor,
correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you're aware since at least the middle of 2007

that the Department of Labor has said this authorization is

illegal?

A Okay. Not illeg == well I -- okay —-- I'm not sure.
It's that they -- they contest it, they disagree with it.

Q Yes. They say it's illegal, don't they?

A Well, I don't know if they used that term "illegal™.

0 All right.

A They might.

Q Well what they -- you've seen the correspondence back
from them. If they aren't saying that this illegal, what are

they saying?

A That they don't disagree (sic) with our policy.

Q All right.

A They don't agree with our policy.

Q Okay. And yet the Defendant has continue to make

those deductions from paychecks, correct?

A Us, ves.
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Q Did you know that this case about the Court having
continuing jurisdiction pursuant to a settlement agreement?

A Do I know about it?

Q Yes.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I objection to the question,
on the basis that that calls for a legal conclusion, in number
one, in number two it's irrelevant.

THE COURT: Let's see if we can -- the objection is
overruled on relevance.

Let's see if we can rephrase the question with regard
to the first objection.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Was it over -- I -- I'm sorry?

THE COURT: I overruled the objection with regard to
relevance but I'd like to you rephrase the gquestion with regard
to asking for a legal conclusion.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Did you know that this litigation
is in regards to vicolations of a -- alleged violations of a
settlement agreement back in 20037

A Yes.

Q Did anyone tell you that the settlement agreement in
2003 was to ensure that Bradley would cease making deductions
from wages for example, customer drive-offs?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, this is argumentative.

THE COURT: I'll sustain that objection.

MR. RAPSON: Yeah.
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Q (By Mr. Christian) Did you know that the Defendants
had agreed not make deductions for customer drive-offs?

A I knew about the agreement. I don't say -- I don't
think I could be an expert on the agreement.

Q Okay. So you knew that the Defendants had agreed not

to make deductions for customer drive—=offs?

A I don't know that.
0 All right. No one had told you that?
A Not about drive-offs, no. I always thought we were

talkiﬁg about shortages.

Q Okay. You knew that the Defendants had agreed in a
settlement agreement not to make deductions for shortages of
cash or product, correct?

MR. RAPSON: I object, Your Honor. The question is
misleading. The -- some of the documents speak for itself --

THE COURT: Mr. Rapson, no speaking objections. The
objection's overruled.

THE WITNESS: I guestioned and spoke with Otto
Hilbert, our attorney, and so I did have an idea of why we were
sending letters back and forth to Amanda Neal.

Q (By Mr. Christian) All right. Did Mr. Hilbert tell
you that there had been a settlement agreement in which his
client, Bradley Petroleum, had agreed to cease making deductions
from wages for shortages of cash or product?

A Otto Hilbert told me that you had agreed to the
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document, that == the final version of the "I took"” document and
that you had agreed to it.

Q Oh, fascinating. This isn't a —-- these authorizations
aren't vocal, are they? I can't, after you've taken the money
out of my paycheck, come back and say you know what, I don't
like that, I would like my money back.

A I've never had anybody ask me.

Q Well when someone goes to the Department of Labor and
says, you know what, they took money out of my paycheck
illegally. Did you say, seems revocable to me I'm going to give
them their money back?

A I'm not sure. Otto Hilbert handled all the times
that, that it would get to that specifically. On most of the

things that I handle with Amanda had to do with time cards.

There's a -- you know if we accidentally didn't pay somebody as
in the first witness —-— the first one you talked about Tina
Pope.

The main thrust of the twenty-one-fifty was for --
that we didn't pay her —- she worked too many hours, went -- of
overtime and when the dispute was all said and done, there was a
uniform deduction for $30. $20 was the deduction for a shortage
she agreed to and the settlement was $279 which I had to work
out. And so, I mean Otto dealt more with the shortages that I
did.

Q All right. So when —-- you knew that Ms. Pope
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disagreed with the deduction for the shortage of $20, when she
wrote the Department of Labor and said I would like my money
back, correct?

A She did.

Q Yet you and Mr. Hilbert fought the Department of Labor
on that, correct?

A Contested.

0 Contested it, right?

A Uh-huh.

Q Even though it's ;~ she seems like she's revoking it,
you still contested it, right?

A I know Otto Hilbert did contest it, yes.

0 All right. You indicated that Save-~0O-Mat and Bradley

Petroleum does not make deductions for burglaries; is that

right?
A I'm not aware that we've ever done that.
Q Okay.
MR. CHRISTIAN: If I can approach?
THE COURT: Sure.
0 (By Mr. Christian) Do you remember taking $113 out

Linda Builta's check for a burglary?
THE COURT: Can we ~-- if that's an exhibit -~
MR. CHRISTIAN: I know --
THE COURT: =- let's --

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm not making it Jjust --
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THE COQURT: -All right.

MR, CHRISTIAN: -—- asking a question (indiscernible)

THE WITNESS: Actually Mr. Christian, I do not
remember {(indiscernible) -- I'm not familiar with that document.
T mean I made copies of it but I don't know that --

0 (By Mr. Christian) Right. This, this came from you
to me, correct?

A Well there was five or six of us, so not -- I mean I
didn't see every document. We had a --

Q All right.

A -— quite a group of people.
Q Would you agree with me that this document from July
of 2009 --

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I think it's improper to
cross—examining somebody --—

THE COURT: Yeah. This is not proper impeachment.

MR. RAPSON: -~ that not in --

THE, COURT: Or any -- or use of the -- of a statement.
If we are going to talk about a document I want it marked and I
want it admitted as an exhibit.

MR. RAPSON: 1In addition, Your Honor, this goes way
beyond the scope of proper cross—examination.

THE COURT: Well I understand the -- I don't think

that it does. The objection's overruled.
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MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge, I need copies, I'm afraid.
THE COURT: To Mr. Shay.
(Brief pause in proceedings)
THE WITNESS: Can I help the (indiscernible).
THE COURT: We just sit here and twiddle our thumbs,
yes.
(Brief pause in proceedings)
Q {(By Mr. Christian) I've tendered to you Exhibit 12.
Is that a Save-0-Mat Incorporated company document that you

recognize, at least as to form?

A Oh, sure. No, I recognize, I recognize the manager
I'm not == I know the manager well, but I do not know Brenda
that well.

Q Is this old doc, new doc?

A This would be what I consider old doc. It has a cash

shortage, a credit card shortage, inventory shortage and
unauthorized overtime.

Q All right. And so this —-- whenever it appears "old
doc" on the audit, this is the document that was in place?

A No. This is one form of it. With, vyou know, new
computers, people change those three little bits. Sometimes it
didn't have the bottom one but the basic form at the top is the
same until you get you get to the part about cash shortage.

Q And this document then comes to you and you make the

deduction from the person's paycheck?
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A No. It goes to the auditors first.
Q Who are the auditors?
A Every —-- there's an auditor for every group of store,

that if there is a shortage the inside auditor is the first one
to help the manager try and find it if the manager can't find
it.

If the inside auditor, and which we have three, cannot
find it for their designated stores then Shawn Popowich (ph) is
involved, which our lead auditor. And if Shawn can't reconcile
it or we're still having problems, the controller is involved.

Q All right. Did Mr. Hilbert ever tell you or show you
written correspondence -- or talk about discussions that he had
with me where I told him that any written authorization was
illegal under the law?

MR. RAPSON: Irrelevant, Your Honor. The conversation
is between Otto Hilbert -- |

THE COURT: Mr. Rapson. Not -- I'm not telling you
again. No speaking objections. The objection's overruled.

MR. RAPSON: Also hearsay, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That I'll sustain.

THE WITNESS: Do I answer?

THE COURT: No.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Nothing further. Can I move --

THE COURT: Redirect --
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MR. CHRISTIAN: ~-- to admit =--

THE COURT: =—-- or recross. Pardon me, did you have
something else?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Admit Exhibit 12, please?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Any objection to Exhibit 127

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor. Just like every other
document I've seen so far. I've never seen them before and I
know nothing about this and I haven't a chance to investigate
it. I haven't had a chance to talk to the clients. I have no
idea what this involves and so for those reasons I would object
to its induction.

THE COURT: The objection's overruled.

It appears to be a document from Save-0O-Mat which is
part of the Bradley, Bradley Enterprises. It is -- the witness
identified it as a form of document used by the corporation and
stated that he recognized the signature of the manager on it.
It's a corporate document. It may constitute an admission
against interest. The objection's overruled.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 12 admitted)

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:
Q Now Mr. Schlueter, directing your attention to §-

4.105, it says "No employer shall make a deduction from wages or
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compensation of employee except as follows"; and then the (d)

part says "any deduction which is authorized by an emplovyee;

such deduction is revocable."™ Do you understand that language?
A Yes.
0 And have you had -- can you understand the Department

of Labor takes that the position that that means that even
though an employee authorizes a deduction that it's no good; is
that correct? That's the position they take?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And have you had Otto Hilbert and me tell you a
million times until this tell Court or somebody else with some
authority says that this statute doesn't mean what it says --

MR. CHRISTIAN: Object --

Q (By Mr. Rapson) -- that you can continue to do what

you've been doing --

MR. CHRISTIAN: Objection; hearsay.

THE WITNESS: It was listening --

MR, CHRISTIAN: I mean if I don't --

THE COURT: The objection -- the question is
argumentative in the extreme. The objection is sustained.

MR. RAPSON: Well, you were asking --

THE COURT: Are you asking -- 1s the question -- have
you been advised by your attorneys, both Mr. Rapson and Mr.
Hilbert, that the documentation that you're using complies with

the law?
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THE WITNESS: Yes. Because if I was, then I wouldn't
break the law.
THE COURT: Next question, Mr. Rapson.
MR. RAPSON: Well, I think that there is a caveat and
that unless this Court or some other court =-
THE COURT: No. I -- it doesn't --
MR. RAPSON: -- says that --
THE COURT: Yeah. But nobody has yet. I know that
and you know that. The question --
MR. RAPSON: Okay.
THE COURT: -- is has he been relying on advice of
counsel up to now and the answer was yes.
Q (By Mr. Rapson) And are you also relying on the plain
language of the statute as you read it?
A Actually I havé read it many times and I actually have

talked with Amanda on the phone and in correspondence. And I do

feel that my attorneys are -- I agree with it. I agree with the
-- the attorneys' advice to me. She has a (indiscernible)
lawyer.

Q And, and did you at one time, have, some years ago a

document that all employees signed where they gave carte blanche
authority in advance to deduct cash shortages and losses that
were thelr responsibility?

A No. I'm not that familiar with the old lawsuit. The

only things that I really knew in detail was when Otto Hilbert
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and I were working with Amanda Neal. I'm really not that
familiar with the old lawsuit.
Q But I'm just saying there were some old forms,

application forms --

A Yeah.

Q —~ right, that --

A Right.

Q -— included that language, right?
A Correct, ves.

Q And the problem with those, that the preapproval, is
that they didn't say that they were revocable?

A Correct, yes.

Q But here all of the approvals take place after the
fact, after the exact nature and amount and character and taste
and smell of the loss is made available to the employee, right?

A That's correct.

Q And if somebody came back to you and said I consented
to your taking out a $100 from my paycheck, you know, a week or
two ago, but you know, I've changed my mind and T don't want to
consent. I don't want to be with the company anymore would you
return that $1007?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Asked and answered, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Overruled.
THE WITNESS: Can you repeat that question?

Q (By Mr. Rapson) Yeah. You know, when an employee
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comes to you, either you go to the employee and you say, "Look
we've investigated everything under the sun and the only thing
we can determine that somehow or another, you were responsible
for this $100 loss. And so will you sign an authorization form
that we deduct it from your wages?" And they agree to do it.

And then a week later they said, "You know, I don't
feel comfortable with that I‘dljust as soon lose my job, will
you give my the $100 back?" Would you do that?

A I think I would do it. I =-- like I said before to Mr.

Christian, it just hasn't happened.

MR. RAPSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

I've got a question here, too.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Have you got a copy -~ find Exhibit 2 in
there, would you please?

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have it here if you want me to bring
it up there?

THE COURT: It's okay.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Okay.

THE COURT: He'll find.one up here.

Got 1it?

THE WITNESS: Got it.

THE COURT: Turn to the second page which is the form
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question,

please?

right int

Ms. Pope.
THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Is this -- would call this an old doc or a

THE WITNESS: Very old doc, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Where on that document does it tell
that she can revoke what she's signing?

THE WITNESS: I don't see that, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you. Any questions based on my
counsel? Mr. Christian?

MR. CHRISTIAN: No, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Rapson?

MR. RAPSON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. You can step down.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Surene Anderson, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Anderson. Raise your right hand

Do you solemnly swear or affirm?

MS. ANDERSON: I do, sir.

THE COURT: Be seated, please. Make sure you speak
o the microphone so that we can hear you.

THE WITNESS: I (indiscernible) the microphone. Can

you hear me?

system —-

THE COURT: It's also connected to the recording

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay.
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THE COURT: So you need to speak to it.

THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: I like to think my voice is loud enough to
carry too but if you don't speak into the microphone it doesn't
go into the record.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Counselor?

SURENE ANDERSON
a witness, called by the Plaintiff, was examined and testified

as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

Q Ma'am, can you spell both your names for the record,
please?

A Surene Anderson, S-u-r-e=-n-e, A-n-d-e-r=s=o0-n.

Q Ma'am, what do you do for a living right now?

A I'm a -- work for the Colorado Department of

Corrections as a correctional sergeant.

Q You're a sergeant at the DOC?
A That's correct, sir.
Q Have you had occasion to work for Save-0-Mat or

Bradley Petroleum?

A I have. I worked there in 2006 through 2008, on and
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off.

Q What did you do for the Defendants?

A I was a clerk. I worked my days off at the prison,
(indiscernible) clerk for them.

0 What did you -- what did you do as a cashier?

A I ran the register. I stocked the items that needed
to be stocked, took out the trash, just the general cleanness of
the store.

Q Did you have occasions to have deductions made from
your wages?

A Yes, sir.

) Generally speaking --

(Coughing)

THE COURT: Excuse me. This one please remember saw
Miss ~- saw Secretary Sebelius this morning. Thank you. Cough
into your arm; She corrected one of the Whitehouse -- one the
MVC White Correspondent for sneezing into his hand at the last
press conference.

Q (By Mr. Christian) What generally were those

deductions made for?

A Drive~offs and shortages.
Q Do you remember the number and total amount?
A T don't remember how many but there was a lot in

income, a little, little over, about $600.

Q Okay. I'm going to hand you a packet of documents
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listed as Exhibit 13. Do you see your name on the front page
there?

A I do.

Q And then take a skim through those documents and see

if you recognize them.

A Those are my --

Q Go through them all. Those —-- are those all the

deductions made from paycheck by Bradley and Bradley Petroleum

or Save-=0-Mat?

A That's correct.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'd ask for the introduction of the

packet that is Exhibit 13.

THE COURT: Any objection to 137

MR. RAPSON: You know, I wouldn't be able to do that

Your Honor, I don't have the ability to have a -- haven't been

tendered that.

THE COURT: The objection’'s overruled.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, could I, could I possibly see

the document?

THE COURT: Oh I'm sorry. I thought he'd given vyou a

copy.
MR. CHRISTIAN: Yeah.
MR. RAPSON: This?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yeah.

MR. RAPSON: This is 13 because this is the same thing
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as 8.
MR. CHRISTIAN: Well it's a part of 8 --
THE COURT: Well, no. It's, it contains documents --
MR. RAPSON: Okay.
THE COURT: =-- that are identical to exhibits found in
8 but there are -- there's highlighting --

MR. RAPSCON: Okay.

THE COURT: =-- with regard to this specific witness.

MR. CHRISTIAN: And I'm sorry Mr. Rapson, are you
saying that those were not sent to you by’my office?

MR. RAPSON: I'm not saying that at all.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Okay.

MR. RAPSON: I'm just saying I didn't know what 13
was, that's fine.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Well, what would happen in these

drive-offs?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, if I could just have a second

THE COURT: Just let Mr. Rapson take a look at them.
We haven't admitted 13 yet.

MR. RAPSON: I don't think I'm going to have a problem
but I'd like to finish them.

THE COURT: Just give him a chance to look at them.

Take your time, Mr. Rapson.

MR. RAPSON: I have no objection, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: All right. 13 is admitted.
(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 13 admitted)
THE COURT: You can proceed, Mr. Christian.
Q (By Mr. Christian) Tell the Court about the drive-
offs. What generally was happening?
A We were busy. Most of them is we were busy. We had -
- when I worked there we were a very busy store and if you have
two or three cars piled up and you are the only one there, you
are not able to see the drivers, the license plates. Sometimes
you're lucky if you see them. Sometimes you don't.
Q If you saw the license plate and got it down would

there be a deduction made from your paycheck?

A As long as we had license plate there wouldn't be a
deduction.
) But if there was no license plate seen, a deduction

was made from you paycheck?

A That's correct. To make your drawer come correct.

Q Now you signed these documents, correct?

A I did.

Q Why?

A Because it was shortage on my shift which means that I

would have to come up with it one way or another for my drawer

to come out correct. And if my -- my thought was 1f I didn't
sign the papers I might -- I probably wouldn't have a job the
next day.
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Q Were you ever —-- was 1t ever presented to you by a rep
-— by a Save-O-Mat employee you need to sign this or you'll be
fired?

A Not in those words. But by the manager, she said,

"You need to sign one of these so they can take it out of your

check.™
Q The manager said that they could do that?
A They could do that.
Q Did you gquestion the legality of this?
A T didn't think it was right, but I liked my job.
Q You wanted to keep your job?
A T wanted to keep my job. I liked that extra money

every week and so it was sign the paper and they could take it
out of my check.

Q Did this impact you in any way, them taking this money
out of your check?

A’ Tt did at the end of the week. But if you -- one way

or another you were going to have to pay for it,

Q That's what they told you?

A Yeah. Not in as many words, but that how you felt.

Q All right. What happened to those shortages that you
incurred here? We talked about the drive-offs -- so the
shortages?

A The shortages, if giving money back -- too much money

back to them, at the end of the day when your drawer wasn't --
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| came out right then you just paid it or signed a paper so they

could take it out, to make the drawers correct.

Q You've heard the discussion here today about this
being a revocable document, that you could have changed your
mind. Did you feel ma'am, that you could have changed your mind

and gotten your money back?

A No. I was never told that I could revoke that.

Q Did you steal money from the -- Bradley Petroleum?
A No, sir. I did not. I never --

Q And you never --

A -- I liked my job at the Department of Corrections.
Q Yeah. And, and -- but they never accused of theft?
A No.

MR. CHRISTIAN: May I have a moment, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Certainly.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I héve nothing further on this, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Cross?

CROSS—~EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:

Good morning, ma'am.

Good morning, sir.

And you're a correctional officer?

That is correct.

LI O I ©)

So you're pretty comfortable with the laws and the
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rules and regulations, and following procedure?

A The -- could you rephrase, could you -- I don't
understand what you mean, sir.

0O Well, within the correctional system there are a
number of rules and regulations and procedures that are required

to be followed?

A That's correct.

Q And you have to follow that?

A That's correct.

Q And the Sheriff's Department expects real compliance

because of the problems that could result if that didn't happen.

A The Department of Corrections?

Q Right.

A I work for the Department of Corrections.

Q Okay. But that would be true of the Department of
Corrections?

A That's correct.

Q And you tell me if I'm mistaken, but Mr. Calkins tells

me that the Sterling pumps are set up in such away that you can
see the license plates pretty easily?

A No if they are back-to-back, sir. The store is -- the
pump's set this way and if you are busy you're not going to be
able to see all of the pumps. You can see the pumps closest the
windows, but if there a -- two vehicles you're not going to be

able to see the pumps on the other side or the ones closest to
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the street.

Q Okay. And every day when you wake up in the morning
and go to that job, you know that you are going to have
deduction for a drive-off if you don't write down the license

plate number; isn't that true?

A That was not presented to me when I started in 2006.

) Well, as time went on it became clear that if you
didn't drive -~ write to down the license plate number on the
car and that car took off, then if -- you would be held
accountable?

A That was never told to me in the two years that I was
there.

Q But you knew that because you had these deductions for

drive-offs?

A That's correct.

Q S0 you some —-- one way or another you learned about
that policy, right?

A That's correct.

Q And once you learned about the policy, then every
single morning when you got up out of bed, and went to that
store, you knew that if you didn't write down a license plate,
and that person took off you would be held accountable?

A But if you are busy, you weren't able to write down
the license plates.

Q But you knew what the consequences were if the drive~
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off took place, right?

A That's correct.

Q And I think you said that you signed the authorization
documents because there had been a shortage and because you

liked your job at that time?

A That's correct.

Q Now do you have a second job like that now?

A No, sir. I do not.

Q Would you like one?

A No, sir. I do not.

Q So were you better off before with that job or are you

better off now?

A It's a 50/50.

Q Did you ever after signing one of these documents and
consenting to the authorization, approach anybody and say "Hey,
can I take that back? Can I ask to rescind my authorization?”

A Nothing. ©No, I did not.

Q So you don't know how the employer would have
responded had you done that, do you?

A No.

MR. RAPSON: No further questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Redirect?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

0 If you had received at the beginning of your
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employment, and during your employment a notice had posted
explaining to you the law, would that have helped you out in
this scenario?

A It would have.

Q And do you think that the burden of you being busy and
missing a drive-off should be on you or on the company?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I obiject; I think that's up
to ~- her desire one way or another is not the issue in this
case. It's a question of what's lawful and what isn't.

THE COURT: Objection sustained.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have nothing further.

THE COURT: Thank you.

You can step down ma'am, thank you.

Next witness?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Brad Calkins, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Calkins. Do you solemnly swear or
affirm?

MR. CALKINS: I do.

THE COURT: Thank you. Be seated. Make sure you
speak into the microphone so that we can hear you.

MR. CALKINS: Okay.

BRADLEY H. CALKINS
a witness, called by the Plaintiff, was examined and testified

as follows:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

Q Sir, can you state your name and spell it for the

record?

A Bradley H. Calkins.

0 Sir, what do you do for a living?

A I own and operate Bradley Petroleum and Save-O-Mat
Inc.

Q And how long have you operated Bradley Petroleum and

Save-0-Mat?
A Well, there are two different timeframes. I started
Bradley Petroleum in 1975, and I purchased 50 percent of Save-O-

Mat in the early '80s.

Q And you and I have met, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q And do you recall the litigation that started this
case?

A Yes, I do.

Q and do you remember entering into a settlement

agreement that's part of =--
A Yes. Yes, I do.
Q All right.
MR. CHRISTIANf Copies, Your Honor. And I apologize.
THE COURT: It's all right.

(Brief pause in proceedings)
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THE COURT: Thank you.
MR. CHRISTIAN: May I approach, Your Honor?
THE COURT: I'm ready.
Q (By Mr. Christian) Mr. Calkins, I've handed you
Exhibit 14. Do you recognize that document?
A Well, not without going through it.
THE COURT: Then do it. Then go through it.
(Witness reviews document)
THE WITNESS: I believe this is the original document.
Q (By Mr. Christian) All right. And is that your

signature on page 77

A One of them, yes.

Q And the one next to it is your father's, right, George
A My father, ves, sir.

o All right. And you recognize his signature?

A It looks familiar.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Okay. 1I'd ask for the introduction of
Exhibit 14, Your Honor.

MR. RAPSON: No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 14's admitted. Although I think frankly I
probably take judicial notice of it since it's already part of
the court record. But we'll admit it for purposes of this
hearing and it's admitted as 14.

(Plaintiff's Exhibit Number 14 admitted)
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Q (By Mr. Christian) Sir, you were present for the
testimony of Mr. Schlueter?

A Yes.

Q And would you agree with him -- well, do you set
policy for Bradley Petroleum?

A Many people set policy for Bradley and Save-O-Mat.

Q All right. Would you agree with Mr. Schlueter's
testimony that Bradley has a policy for making deductions from
wages or customer drive-offs if a license plate is not -- if
policy is not followed and an authorization to deduct that

amount is signed?

A Would you like me to explain the policy that we used
previously?
Q No. I would like to know whether you had the policy

before February of 2009 that permitted the deduction that I

stated?
A In some 1nstances.
Q All right. And would you agree with me that Bradley

Petroleum also, between 2003 and February of 2009, had a policy
to make deductions from wages for shortages of cash or product
if an authorization is signed?

What do you mean by product?

Cigarettes, lottery?

Cash, cigarettes, and lottery, period; nothing else.

O = e

But did you have that -- had that policy?
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A We have that policy, ves.

0 Would you agree with me that over the years on -- the
United States Department of Labor, the Colorado Department of
Labor, and me said that that policy is illegal?

A I know you have said that. I don't know that the

Department of Labor has said it's by definition illegal.

Q Okay. Have you heard the testimony -~
A I did.
0 -- today from =-- are you familiar with the testimony

from Ms. Neal? Do you have any reason to disagree that she sent
letters to your agency saying this is illegal®

yiy No, I don't disagree with that.

Q All right.

A Well, I don't =-- you know, let me take back. I don't
know what she said was illegal. She said they did not agree
with our policy as far as I can remember and I was not involved
in those letters. They were Mr. Schlueter and he handled them

with the payroll department or the attorneys.

Q The policy since February of 2009 is that a person who
has -- an employee who has a shortage will be terminated?

A Of more than $10.

Q Is the option still given to employee to repay the

shortage and keep their job?
A No.

0 So based upon this litigation Bradley Petroleum and
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shortages?
A That's right.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have nothing further.

THE COURT: Cross?

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor. I could do one of two
things. T could ask Mr. Calkins all the question I would
normally ask but just limit him to --

THE COURT: Well --

MR. RAPSON: == the direct examination -~

THE COURT: == I'm a big fan of efficiency and since
we've only go about 45 minutes left this morning, subject == I
mean, 1it's not a trial anyway. But let's remember that it -- a

judge is presumed to ignore irrelevant or inadmissible evidence
in making findings of fact and conclusions of law when the judge
is the fact finder.

So in other words I'm going to let you ahead and ask
your question =-- the questions you would otherwise ask of Mr.
Calkins rather than go through the charade of you asking your
cross—examination questions and then bringing him back on the
stand later to question him.

MR. RAPSON: I just wanted to make sure that it was
acceptable.

THE COURT: ©Not a problem. Go ahead.

/117
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:

Q Now just briefly Mr. Calkins, indicate what the nature
of Bradley Petroleum and Save-O-Mat are -- 1is?
A The two companies consist of gascline and convenience

stores that operate the majority in Colorado, the Western Slope,
majority in Denver, New Mexico and Wyoming.

Q And do those store have cash, money and cigarettes on
a regular basis that are handled by employees?

A Yes.

Q And is there, in your opinion, some temptation
occasionally for employees to either purposefully take either
the cash or cigarettes, or at least be negligent with respect to
what happens to the cash or cigarettes?

A Yes.

Q And as the result of that concern have you developed a
—= an hiséoric policy of having the employees pay for losses
experienced during their shift where they are responsible for
their losses?

A After that loss had been reported to our office, after
the manager had an opportunity to research it, after the
district manager then was brought and then after the auditérs
analyzed the shortage or loss and it was put through our
computer system, we made a determination as to whether we felt

it was innocent mistake or whether it was negligence, or
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possibly theft.

0 And -- but you go through a number of safeguards
before you go to the employee and say we think you are
responsible for the shortage and we expect you to cover it by
way of a wage deduction?

A Yes.

Q And that deals with both purposeful misconduct, as
well as negligent misconduct?

A Yes.

Q What, what was the purpose, historically, of having
that policy?

A Well, in our business with the number of gallons that
we sell in most units, the amount of cash and credit cards that
go through there, there is a tendency for people to maybe not
steal it, but borrow it until their next paycheck and been the
history of our industry. I've been involved in this industry
since I was 14 years old and this has evolved over that time.

Q Do other companies in your industry also have employee

wage deduction policies?

A Yes.

Q So you're not unique?

A No, we're not the only ones.

Q It -- is it your belief that without the policies in

place the losses you would experience would be considerably

higher?
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A Yes.

0 Is there any element of trying to punish employees in
this policy of making deductions from wages?

A No. We -- you know, the whole thing involving this is

we don't want to lose employees. It's hard enough and expensive

| enough to have to keep replacing employees, so we do everythin
Y g

in our power to make sure that isn't some innocent thing that
happened and we won't have to lose that employee.

There was a period of time in the '80s, early '90s
when the labor pool was so small we had to close 13 stores
because we didn't have employees to -— that could keep them
open. So we're not trying to punish, but wé‘re trying to have a
policy that everybody abides by and does their’best to live
with.

Q And do --~ is the workforce greatly more productive and

efficient because of this policy than it would otherwise be?

A I believe it is.
Q Apparently the focus, as 1 get it, and I could be
mistaken in this case, on the years 2007 and 2008 that -- and

you're familiar with the Bradley wage deduction policy during

that period of time?

A Yesﬁ

0 And it's different now in 2009?

A Yes.

Q Explain to the Court what the drive-off policy was and
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why you had it?

A The drive-off policy was in each location there was a
different setup with the pumps and the visibility by the cashier
or the manager of those pumps. And where, where the cashier had
a hard time seeing a license plate, either front or back or a
temporary tag, we posted that with a, with a prepaid sign which
forced the employee -- or the customer to come into the store
and pay first.

The policy was never to authorize a pump a until you
had the plate number in one, one manner or another. Now some
stores have been designed to face the car, either in or out, so
that it was easier for the cashier or the employees there to see
that license plate.

As far as the drive-off was concerned, if they had a
license plate we took the license plate and ran it through the
Department of Motor Vehicles and sent that person a letter. And
we found that probably half the reported drive-~offs with license
plates were falsified. That's why this urgency on getting the

license plate.

Q Falsified by whom?
A By that employee.
Q In other words they just write down whatever number

came up?
A Sure. And, and there are times, as the lady said,

that it gets busy and they might write down the wrong license
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plate but I've worked in these stores. I wrote down every

license plate.

0] You've personally --

A Personally.

Q —= had that job?

A I have.

Q Are you familiar with the statute at issue here, this
8-4.1057

A Somewhat.

Q You've read it a number of times?

A Yes.

Q And you've seen the four, arguably five, when you add

on the tax one in (a), those exceptions to the statute?

A Yes.

Q And has it been -- what kind of an effort have vyou
made since settlement in this case to comply with those four
exceptions?

A Well, that's where these authorization forms were
generated with the people in our company that set policy and
with our legal advisors with --

Q And --

A -=- and in order to comply with the settlement
agreement.

Q And have you followed for example the correspondence

between me and Amanda Neal where T've said for -- this section
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about authorized deductions looks pretty clear on its face to
me. I mean, I can read, and it says that we can do what we're
doing. Explain to me why I'm wrong and have you ever seen her
or anybody else explain why I'm wrong?

A No, I haven't.

0 Now are there occasions where situations can slip
thorough the cracks despite your efforts to keep that from
happening? |

A Sure. With the number of employees we have, the
different departments, things happen. We make mistakes,
everybody make mistakes.

Q Do you have system set up to keep the mistakes to an
absolute minimum?

A We hope sO.

Q And with respect to those mistakes, have you ever seen
any reason why they couldn't be resolved either through the
employee contacting you and talking to you about it, or the
employee going to the Department of Labor or the employee f£iling
a lawsuit if nothing else worked? Would that resolve
everything?

A Yes, we would. And in addition to that, I think, is
Ms. O'Neal or Ms. Neal referred to 35 cases and I believe all
put two of those were resolved with the Department of Labor and
that was from an employee coming back and say —— I don't feel

that this right or going to the Department of Labor and we've
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resolved those.

We would sit down and analyze the situation again, in
some cases we'd have legal counsel, and then several of us,
including Mr. Schlueter would make the determination as to what
to do.

Q And have you ever felt that you -- there was any need
for this litigation to help you take care of the problems that
were brought your attention?

A No.

0 Now I think you alluded in your examination with

counsel to the change that took place in February 20097

A Yes.
Q And can you explain that, what's your new policy?
A Well, because of this case and the difficulties in

policing this and the fact that we felt that people were
stealing it or borrowing until the next paycheck, that we had to
adopt a new policy. And one that has been tried in the industry
or has come up recently is to pick a limit for a shortage, a
reasonable shortage, and then terminate that employee with no
deduction.

Q and there -- so at this point if there is a loss or
shortage that's unexcused, you can't find any other explanation
other than the employee, then if the loss over $10 and they're
not giving them the opportunity to cover the shortage, they are

just fired?
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A That's right. We suspend them when the shortage is
discovered until i1t's properly investigated, and if we can't
find a reason or give them the benefit of the doubt then they
are terminated.

0 And has that policy been effective?

&

Yes. We've eliminated 95 percent of our shortages.

Q And why do you think that has been the case?

A People don't want to lose their job and they know that
they can't borrow anymore or take the money until their next
paycheck.

Q You'd think that was a lot of -- previously there was
lot of, I'm going to take it now and pay it back, ten days later
or I'm going to take it, they'll deduct it from my salary and
then I'11 be even and I got to use the bank of Calkins to get by
for two weeks?

A I think that's what's, what has happened.

Q What was the percentage approximately of the workforce
in 2000, 2008 that had wage deductions for losses or shortages
in excess of say $100 a year?

A Well I, I couldn't, I couldn't begin to give you a
percent. However I believe that compared to the total number of
people that work for this company every year, it's very small.

Q There's been a claim in the pleadings that hasn't been
made here today, but somehow or another this wage deduction area

is a profit center for Bradley. Is there any truth in that?
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A Absolutely not. It costs us more to terminate a
person because of a shortage than it takes to retrain and find
that next employee.

Q 1 identified one of the -- as an example for your good
faith in this area, the fact that you returned money in advance
of the 90 days that you are allowed, if you learn that the
police are going to not file a case, say after 30 days. Is that
your policy?

A Our policy on a shortage that has a police case number
and an active investigation, we have a head of loss prevention
for our two companies. And he provides us a report and we meet,
meet once a week to discuss the status of that held check per
the 90 days.

We go through every one and then we make the
determination whether the 90 days is up and needs be release and
even if a police, a policemen calls and says "We're not going to
pursue this case," that check is released; that's our policy.

Even if the employee calls and says "The police is not
actively investigating this anymore, I need my check, ™ we go to
the district manager and have him go to that police department,
whether it be in Sterling or Fort Collins or Longmont and verify
that they will not further pursue this case and that check is
released.

Q and the practice of bringing to the attention of the

various police departments situations where you believe that

L
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there is some possibility of theft, haé that generated
restitution in the 50- to $70,000 area for Bradley in the lést
year?

A We are presently receiving restitution from cases
brought and employees charged and convicted I think in the
neighborhood of 70 some thousand dollars right now.

Q Can you give me a single example of any time in the
last two, there, four years where anybody at Bradley has
purposefully or knowingly failed to comply with 8-4.1057?

A Well, I know of one instance that I discovered after
our February lst policy of an employee being asked to pay it
back and he did pay it back. And when I found out through Mr.
Schlueter and Amanda Neal, he was immediately paid back because
that's a violation of our policy.

I also this morning saw the exhibit that said money
was deducted because of a burglary. I'm not familiar with that
but I can tell you emphatically that we do not make deductions
for burglaries or robberies or never did. 2nd so if someone did
it, they made a mistake or they didn't understand the policy.
But those are the kiﬁd of things that sometimes slip up.

o) Outside of those accidental and mistaken situations
are you aware of anyone at Bradley purposely flouting 8-4.105 or
is the corporate policy to do everything that you can to be in
compliance with 8-4.105?

A Yes. We strive for that all time.

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

112

MR. RAPSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Cross (sic)?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHRISTIAN:

Q You're always trying to comply with 8-4.105, no matter
what; 1is that correct, sir?

A Yes. |

Q All right. Why don't you follow the law as the
Department of Labor sees 1t?

A Because my attorney advised me that they don't believe
that's the law.

Q Okay. Now is there any, any doubt in your mind what
this lawsuit was about back 200172

A No.

Q You understand that the lawsuit is all about making
the Bradley Petroleum stop making deductions from paychecks for.
shortages, burglaries, robberies, et cetera, correct?

A Not for burglaries, robberies, et cetera.

Q The lawsuit in 2001 was all about stopping Bradley
Petroleum from making illegal deductions from paychecks, right?

A Making deductions from paychecks.

Q All right. And you agreed that the Court would have
continuing jurisdiction so that Bradley would cease making
deductions from wages for mathematical errors, shortages of cash

or product, customer drive-offs, robberies, burglaries, losses
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caused an employees violation of company procedures, incorrectly
processed credit card charges, bad checks from the customers,
stop payment fees due to lost or destroyed employee raycheck
and/or for stock lock changes.

MR. RAPSON: Objection, Your Honor; this is
argumentative, as --

THE COURT: I didn't hear a question.

MR. CHRISTIAN: They —--—

THE COURT: I heard a —-- 1f the question was does the
settlement agreement say this, then the agree -- then the
appropriate objection is that the object =-- that the document

speaks for itself.
MR. CHRISTIAN: Let me rephrase.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Did you agree in the settlement
agreement when you said the parties agree that the Court shall
have continuing jurisdiction to ensure that Bradley complies
with the terms of this agreement and cease making deductions for
all of those things?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, the document does speak for
itself. What he agreed to is --

THE COURT: The doc --

MR, RAPSON: -- evident in the document.

THE COURT: The document speaks for itself.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Well —-

THE COURT: Sustained.
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these employees; is that right?

A That's right.

Q Do you think taking mon -- most of these people make
close to minimum wage, correct?

A No. Whatever you mean you mean close, they don't make

minimum wage.

Q They make less than minimum wage?

A More.

0 All right. Between seven and ten $10 an hour, would
you say?

A Seven and $12 an hour.

Q Would you say that taking 20 to 30 --
A Actually 7.50 to $8 an hour or $12 an hour.
Q Okay. Would you say that taking the 30 to $40 out of

that person's paycheck is punishing them?

A Yes, I would to a degree. But you also have to
understand that any company, any -- this courthouse has to have
policies and regulations. We -— our people show up at eight

o'clock in the morning. They know that they can't be short and
the equipment, the technology today provides them with a way not
to be short.

o) Well since February of 2009, you've decided not to
take deductions for shortages anymore, right?

A That's right.

Q Is that because I caught you?
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MR. CHRISTIAN: Well =~-
THE COURT: His signature is on the document.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Since 2007 you agree with me that
Bradley Petroleum is making deductions from wages for shortages
of cash or product, right?

A Yes.

0 And --

A But legally.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We'll see --

Q (By Mr. Christian) And since 2007 you would --

MR. RAPSON: I'd ask that that be struck, Yoﬁr Honor.
THE COURT: Yeah. It =-- I didn't hear him say "We'll

¥

see, " okay?

Q (By Mr. Christian) And this is -- you would agree
that basis of the settlement of this case was to get Bradley
Petroleum to stop making illegal deductions for cash, product,
et cetera?

A And to make our policies legal.

Q All right. And since the time of the settlement
agreement you have been told that your policy is illegal by the
Colorado Department of Labor and me, right?

A Well, I believe you say that. I haven't -- haven't
heard the Department of Labor say that. They just didn't agree

with what our legal counsel advised us.

Q And you're saying that you don't really want punish
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A When did you catch me?
Q I caught =--
THE COURT: What did you -~
Q (By Mr. Christian) =- you in 2008 -~
THE COURT: You, counselor, you didn't do anything.
Shall we talk, shall we —- do we need to go over that again?
MR. CHRISTIAN: Mister --
THE COURT: This is not a contest between you and Mr.
Calkins.

Q (By Mr. Christian) Mr. Calkins, would you agree with
me that your policy has changed since February in 2009 because
the Court ordered you to do an audit of deductions?

A I wouldn't say completely. I'd say our poliéies have
evolved and changed since this settlement agreement in 2003.

0 And it's changed to what extent?

A To try and not do anything illegal and live within our
settlement agreement. That's where the authorization forms came
from.

Q Do you remember making, as part of the agreement, a
specific agreement that you would not -- that you would
eliminate a release that asked for an employee to make a waiver
of their rights under the Colorado Wage Act?

A No, I don't remember that.

0 And you agree with me that there has been 1300

deductions in 2007 and 2008 for over $52,0007?
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A I don't know that.

Q Bradley Petroleum has made $52,000 that might have
gone into an employee paycheck?

A Well, I think Mr. Schlueter agreed with that amount.
T'm not familiar with it. But he would know more about that
than I would.

Q But, that, that stays with Bradley Petroleum and Save-
O-Mat, correct?

A That what?

0 That money stays with Bradley Petroleum and Save-O-
Mat, correct?

A Yes.

Q Now, you said our policy as to thefts has worked.
You've received restitution?

A You mean the latest policy?

0 Well, is that always been the policy that once you
suspect someone of theft that you file a police report,
determine if the police make a finding of probable cause and
then if a case is brought or if there is a plea that then you

are awarded restitution?

A Yes.

Q And that has worked, it sounds like, correct?

A Well I've done that since I started the company in
1975.

Q And your testimony is that you think most of the time
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there's been these shortages, it's really been due to theft, you
just couldn't prove it?

A Well T don't —— I wouldn't say it's all theft. I
think there is some theft involved and I think because of our
new policy that there's borrowing going on too, until the next
paycheck.

Q Which is theft, right? 1 mean you aren't allowing
them to borrow the money from you, correct?

A Right.

Q All right. So the question again is and I believe
this was your testimony that the vast majority of the shortages
that occur, you really believe occur due to theft?

A I can't say the vast majority. I don't know what the
amount is. The only time that I know it's theft was when they
admit that they stole the money and they're convicted and then
they pay restitution. That's the only time that I know.

Q Aand you suspect the majority of shortages are actually .
due to theft, not negligence?

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor --—

THE WITNESS: I don't know how to --

MR. RAPSON: =- this has been asked and answered.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. What was that objection, Mr.
Rapson? |

MR. RAPSON: Tt's been asked and answered. He's asked

the same guestion --
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THE COURT: Yes.

MR. RAPSON: ~--~ several times.

THE COURT: And continued to ask the same question
over and over again. It doesn't really give me any more
information to make a decision. So let's move on to something
else.

Q (Ry Mr. Christian) Are you going to find the person
who the deduction made from a burglary and repay them the money
taken from their check?

A I certain would.

Q Are you going to terminate the Save-0-Mat
representative that made the illegal deduction from Ms. Builta,
B-u-i-1~t-a's paycheck?

A I don't know. I'd have to =-- you know, there are a
lot of things that enter in to what a ~- what 1f she was the one
that burglarized it. I don't know that from that statement. I
haven't seen her file. Was her boyfriend in there and he
burglarized it? I don't know.

There are a lot of circumstances that can come up and
without being able to investigate that and look at it, I can't
make that determination.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have no further questions.

THE COURT: Redirect -- recross?

MR. RAPSON: Yes, Your Honor.

/77
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RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. RAPSON:

Q Mr. Calkins, you already identified this $52,000
figure as the amount of money that was deducted Safeway (sic)
and Bradley for the last two years or roughly that amount. I
think it's amount that came from Mr. Schlueter. How does that
figure compare to the administrative costs of operating this
wage loss system and all the associated time and everything else
is involved in it? How would you dquantify that investment?

A Very small.

Q The 52,000 very small compared to the --

A Compared to the costs of lawsuits, of trying to hire
new people. If you figure $5,000 a person and our company, I
believe Mr. Schlueter said last, last week that we issued 1300
hundred paychecks to 1300 different employees. 1I'd say it's
very small.

Q So the $52,000 is very small compared to the kind of
efforts it took to monitor this program?

A Right.

MR. RAPSON: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

You can step down Mr. Calkins, thank you.

Next witness?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge, can I ask for a clarification?

You say that you have a settlement conference this afternoon
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which means at noon, we're done, right?

THE COURT: That's what it means and then we at -- at
noon we stop this hearing, so I can do my other business of the
day. And then we will reset this hearing for whatever remains
to be done with it.

That's what I was saying at the beginning of the
hearing. I don't want anybody shortening their presentation or
not giving me all of the evidence they think I néed to make a
decision because of time constraints. Unfortunately today's
hearing is subject to Bertuzzi's law; it is what it is.

MR. CHRISTIAN: May I have a moment, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure. Get me the calendar.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge --

THE COURT: Get me the calendar now.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Just let me inquire. We have -- and I
don't think this is necessary because again my position is that
you don't need to parse out each individual claim. I wanted to
give you a flavor of that.

We have certain individuals available via phone and I
appreciate that the Court's order in permitting me to do that
and we have other individuals that could be here at a later
date. These individuals have signed also affidavits and I could
make an offer of proof as to what these individuals have said to
us but it is, it is essentially the same thing the Ms. Anderson‘

has said and I don't think it's necessary that I call 1300
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people to say the same thing.

THE COURT: No. I don't either. I told you, you can
use representative witnesses.

However having said that I'm not, not willing to take
affidavits, since Mr. Rapson can't cross-examine a piece of
paper. I don't think that's fair. I don't think on the other
hand that -- I'm not going to require you to call 1300 people to
go through it a line at a time.

The documents that have been submitted were admitted
without objection and are clearly, are clearly business records
of Bradley Petroleum. I mean there is no guestion about that
but to -- if you want additional -- I guess what I'm saying a
nicely as I know how is I'm not going to tell you how to run
your case.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I understand.

THE COURT: You decide, you and Mr. Killmer have to
decide what's -- if you have other evidence if you want to put
on and even then Mr. Rapson's still got an opportunity to
present other evidence if he chooses to do so. We -- we're
efficient by having him examine Mr. Calkins during your part of
the case. But it doesn't mean he hasn't got other evidence he
wants to put on.

I mean, my suggestion, quite frankly, gentlemen, is we
get the calendar out here and see when we can have you come

back.
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MR. CHRISTIAN: I guess that's cutting to the chase.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, may I make suggestion?

THE COURT: Sure, Mr. Rapson.

MR. RAPSON: You know clearly we are not going to
finish today so I think that Your Honor's idea is good one.

But I have another suggestion too that I'd like the
Court and counsel to consider and that is it seems to me that
the one really, really, really critical legal issue that =- the
determination of that could go a long ways towards narrowing
this case and making it go way, or causing it to settle or
whatever, and that the determination from this Court as to
whether or not the authorizations that we've been taking under
that part (d) are legal or not.

THE COURT: You want me to rule on that?

MR. RAPSON: A —=

THE COURT: Because I'll do it. Right now if you want
me to.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I think if you ruled on the
jurisdictional issue and on whether the deduct --

THE COURT: I already ruled on that in my earlier --
earlier order.

MR. RAPSON: I'm asking --

THE COURT: If you want -- if you're asking me for a

ruling, Mister —-- on whether those document -- whether the old
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docs, and new docs and so forth fit within the parameter of 8-
4,105(1)(d), I'm prepared to do that.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes.,.

MR. RAPSON: Based on -- I guess I see the direction
this is going --

THE COURT: You asked for it.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I think it is important to
this to case to know —- to get a legal ruling on that.

But I also think it's important, I've filed three
other motions and it's important to get a ruling on those and I
haven't seen them, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I'm not even sure what motions

those are, Mr. Rapson.

MR. RAPSON: One was that -- and these were filed by
back in July. One was a motion in limine and one -- and the
other two were motions to dismiss. The motion to dismiss was --

THE COURT: I did rule on the -- I ruled on those.

MR. RAPSON: They never came up on Lexis-Nexis. Is

that that (indiscernible) --

THE COURT: Well, I've got -- if I -- I thought I'd
entered an order on that.

MR. RAPSON: Well, counsel haven't seen it, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Well, that's okay. Then that might be my,

my fault. Just a minute. Just let me get it called up here. I
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have to do it that way. Just a minute.

Let me put it this way. I have that order ready rule
on -—- I have that order in a position to rule on and I thought I
had already entered it and in fact it was my intention to enter
it before you got here today --

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: ~- and if I didn't do that, that's my
error.

All right. One of the thing I did I ruled on
continuing jurisdiction, that I had it. I denied your motions

to dismiss.

MR. RAPSON: I also filed a motion to dismiss the two
individuals because --

THE COURT: And I've Jjust denied that as -- I'm
prepared to deny that as well. They signed the agree —=- they
signed the agreement as individuals.

I can -- you know, if you want me to read -- I can go
a copy of the order off my desk and read it to you.

MR. RAPSON: No, I =--

THE COURT: I mean, I'm embarrassed. I thought that I
had that I had entered that order. In fact I'll enter it this
afterncon if I haven't.

MR. RAPSON: We can wailt.

THE COURT: It would be —-

MR. RAPSON: We can wait and read that, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: All right.

MR. RAPSON: What about the motion in limine?

THE COURT: I denied, I denied your motions.

MR. RAPSON: On the attorneys' fees too?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. RAPSON: And okay.

THE COURT: O©Oh no, we granted that. I granted the
motion in limine on the attorneys' fees. I'm sorry.

MR. RAPSON: Okay. Would that also be going out on
Lexis-Nexus. |

THE COURT: Yeah. I mean as I said I have a copy of
the order sitting on my desk and I thought that I had entered
it; that's my fault. As I said usually I'm more on top of my
game than that. 1It's been a busy week. My intention was and --
was to have that order entered before you got here. So that we
knew what field we were playing on and that is absolutely and
utterly my fault if I didn't get that done. That order is ready
to go out.

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: And my reasoning behind each order -—- each
motion —=—

MR. RAPSON: Okay.

THE COURT: =-- each of those motions will be set forth
in the order.

MR. RAPSON: Thank you.
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THE COURT: But that's shorthorn (sic) what we've

ldone. And if, again if you want me to rule on --

MR. RAPSON: Well, I think so, Your Honor. I think we

THE COURT: All right.

MR. RAPSON: =-- need to know.

THE COURT: Okay. Here --

MR. RAPSON: It doesn't mean that we will necessarily
accept Your Honor's ruling, but --

THE COURT: Ch, Mr. Rap --

MR. RAPSON: ~—- I mean you know what =--

THE COURT: Mr. Rapson, have you noticed how many
times I've said during this hearing "when this case gets
appealed”?

MR. RAPSON: Right.

THE COURT: Not if this case appealed.

MR. RAPSON: No, I think it would be helpful to ~-

THE COURT: I mean I, it's =-=-

MR. RAPSON: -- the parties and maybe it might help a
settlement or whatever to =--

THE COURT: Quite frankly, I can -- I -- this is one
of those cases as a judge I'm a speed bump on the road to
justice. I understand that.

But let's talk about 8-4.105. With all due respect, I

do not think that the documents that you -- that your clients
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were using complied with the law.

T do not think that they were drafted in bad faith.
Let's start with that. All right. I think that the Defendants
relied on the advice of counsel, which I believe was incorrect
as to compliance, but I'm not finding that what the Defendants
did was in and of itself in bad faith. I am finding that those
documents did not comply with 8-4.105(d).

And let's talk about two reasons for that. The first
one is the one that's been brought up in this hearing and in
fact the one that I brought up when I cross —-- when I asked a
question of Mr. Schlueter. There's eight =-- to comply with 8-
4.105(1) (d), an authorization must be revocable, or revocable. '
It has to be revocable.

There is nothing on these documents that say they are
revocable. Indeed they are not -- they are considered —-— they
are treated as if they are irrevocable, both by the company and
by the employee. It's —-- once I've signed it, that's it. And
guite clearly the statute requires that those documents be
revocable. There was no information given to the employees that
they are revocable, nor is there any information on the document
itself that says you can revoke this at any time. It's that
simple. I don't need to go any farther than that. This
document simply didn't comply with the law.

With all due respect they were -- almost seemed to be

sort of an attempt to meld 8-4.105(1) (d) and 1(c) sort of
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because they were quasi=-theft documents too, but they're not --
they don't == they don't fit that either clearly. But they
don't comply with (d).

I'1l tell you the other reason that I doubt that those
documents complied with (d). With all due respect, I know what
the -- I can read what the legislature wrote in this statute and
I'm going to read it. T usually don't read all of statutes but
I want to read it for a purpose.

"Any deduction not listed in paragraph (a), (b), or

{(c) of this (1) which is authorized by an employee, if

such authorization is revocable, including but not

limited to deductions for hospitalization and medical
insurance; other insurance; savings plans; stock
purchases; voluntary pension plans; charities; and
deposits to financial institutions.”

With all due respect to the Defendant, I don't think
the legislature meant to include in that section cigarettes,
candy bars, and diet soda. It's clearly talking about
financial, either instruments, or from monies being placed
toward what might be called "investments™ for the employees.

We're not talking about sundries, which is what the
issues are here or cash. And I know that the statute says "but
not limited to", legislatures write that way. But I just don't
find -~ I cannot find that that's -- that that statute was

intended to cover the kinds of things that are being dealt with
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here.

With all due respect to the Defendants, and the
Defendants have run a business that has benefited Colorado in a
whole lot of ways for a whole of years; I'm not disputing that.
But the stuff they're talking about here is the cost of doing
business and to take that out on your employees is unfair.

So I haven't decided —-- made a decision on what we're

going to do or whether I'm going to grant a remedy but if you

want -- but I just interpreted that statute for you. And I
specifically find that because the stat -- the documents, the
old docs and the new docs did not deal with revoc -- were not on

their face or by explanation for the employees, revocable, they
did not comply with the statute.

And I'm not even getting into the fact that under case
law, the Department of Labor's interpretation of things like
this is supposed to be given great weight. I don't need to do
that.

And I would suggest, with all due respect again, not
that it makes —-- not it changes my mind, but Bradley has decided
since February of 2009 simply not to use these documents.
Whether they're legal or not, it's easier if they don't use
them. Maybe tougher on employees, but that's life too.

So that's my ruling, gentlemen. I'll get that written
order out this afternoon. Again, I'm humiliated that I didn't

get it out -- no, I'm -- as I said, it's sitting on my desk and
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I'd really thought that'd entered it. Even I make mistakes with
Lexis-Nexus, but I'll get it out to you this afternoon.

ILet's take a look at —-- can you get me the calendar?
Let's take a look at when we can reschedule to come back. As I
said it's going to be a bit dicey finding time, guys. I've got
a -- I'm starting a three week jury trial on Monday.

How much time do we think we need and I'm not, I'm not
holding anybody's feet to the fire, it's just more a matter of
trying to figure out what day works.

MR. RAPSON: Your Honor, I think it was actually

helpful to have the Court's ruling on that issue because it now

THE COURT: Are we now thinking we may need much less
time because we did before?

MR. RAPSON: Yes, exactly. We can't -- and also, I
mean, really the Court made two indications that I think they're
very important from our point of view. One is the Court's ruled
against on the authorization but the Court's also ruled in our
favor on the good faith. So I won't need to call --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. RAPSON: Wait a sec -- I've got a number of
witnesses used here, who are —- who are prepared to testify
about good faith and ~--

THE COURT: Okay. Let me put it to you this way.

MR. RAPSON: I don't think I need to do that.
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THE COURT: I wish Bradley hadn't kept doing this over
time and had to keep going toe-to-toe with the Division of
Labor.

Having said that, with all due respect and I'm not
picking on either Mr. Hilbert or Mr. Rapson, lawyers make
mistakes. Judges do too. But I don't find that there was any
bad faith involved. No one had ever -- as I look at the case in
retrospect it might have been nice if someone had asked if we --
someone had asked the Court to interpret that statute before
now. It might have saved everybody a whole lot of brain injury,
but it didn't.

So let's see, assuming that my trial only takes as
long as it's supposed to —-— it's a construction case, so we'll
see -- we're looking at the week of October 12th, although the
12th is a holiday since we still celebrate Columbus Day in
Colorado. How about Wednesday the 14th of October at nine
o'clock? I can give you pretty much the rest of the day that
day.

MR. RAPSON: That works, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Work for everybody?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. We'll resume at when -- we'll
resume Wednesday October 1l4th at nine o'clock in the morning.

T will get the order on those pending motions to you

today. Again my =-- I'm embarrassed. I will issue a written
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ruling on my interpretation of eight—four -~ 8-4.105(1) (d).

It'll be short but I'1l issue it.

time for appealing that ruling, and
will not run until we complete this
I'1ll enter a written ruling so that

-- coming from for that.

And, but there won't

All right.

-— the
I'11l put this in the order,
But

hearing. All right?

it's clear where we're going

Gentlemen, thank you very much. I appreciate

everybody keeping their tempers in check. Let's remember that

we need to do that. All right.
MR. RAPSON: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you, gentlemen.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Have a good weekend.

THE COURT: We're in recess. Thank you.

(Proceedings concluded 12:07 p.m.)
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DENVER, COLORADO; MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2008

-00o0-

(Call to Order of the Court at 10:49 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. 01 CV 5947, Okamoto versus
Bradley Petroleum. Entries of appearance, please?'

MR. CHRISTIAN: Good morning, Your Honor. Lee
Christian appearing for the Plaintiff.

MR. HILBERT: And Otto Hilbert on behalf of the
Defendants.

THE COURT: This matter i1s on for a status conference
this morning. Mr. Hilbert, have you had a chance to read the
last motion for continued court supervision filed by the
Plaintiff?

MR. HILBERT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Have any response to that?

MR, HILBERT: We, we have addressed each of the
claimed shortages and we're continuing to do so with Mr.
Christian.

Additionally with respect to each of those that have
gone before the Department of Labor they've been resolved to the
Department of Labor's satification. I have various
correspondences from Amanda Neal. She's dealing with Mark
Schluder at Bradley Petroleum. And any inguires that Mr.

Christian has of me I get the file, research it, figure out if
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any payment 1s owed and make such payment.

THE COURT: I have a question for you Mister --

MR. HILBERT: Yes.

THE COURT: -- inquiry -~ Mister -- what 1is about the
law that your clients don't get?

MR. HILBERT: I don't know.

THE COURT: Well you can tell them that they better
start stopping. And in fact I want you -— I'll tell you what we
are going to do. Mister —-- how, how is Bradley told its
employees about these orders? What has it done to make this,
this case and the orders about it known to its employees. In
other words, what have they done to say we can't do what we're
doing? Tell me about that, I want to hear that.

MR. HILBERT: They have been advised of the law and,
and, Your Honor --=

THE COQURT: No, no, no. Not what Bradley's done. 1
want to know what they've told their employees.

MR. HILBERT: Well --

THE COURT: I want to know what notice they've given
their employees that they can't do this?

MR. HILBERT: What they've, what they've told their
employees 1is that they've changed the employment forum, Your
Honor, so that shortages, drive-offs, cannot be deducted.

THE COURT: Then why do they keep doing 1it?

MR. HILBERT: Well, they -- honestly, Your Honor, I
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haven't found one where they have. I know that Mr. Christian's
files differ from my mine but when, as we go through these and I
have examples of the ones in his latest motion and
correspondences to me.

A perfect example is a Mr. Munoz (ph) who allegedly
was underpaid. There was a case filed against him for theft.
There was a judgment against him in Bradley Petroleum's favor
for $1,806.50. The checks were held in accordance with the law.
He ultimately, Your Honor, was then paid after the 90 days,
despite the fact that Bradley Petroleum prevailed against him in
a criminal case and has restitution for $1800.

THE COURT: Well then Mr. Christian, how come you're
telling me there was no case filed against Mr. Munoz?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Judge, this is the first I've learned
of this response regarding Mr. Munoz. Mr. Munoz would be the
exception rather than the rule.

Judge, this has been going on for going on 30 years.

I think the only reason that Bradley Petroleum even looks into
these files and tries to comply with the law is because you are
supervising this case.

THE COURT: Well, I'm going to keep supervising it.
You don't have to worry about that, Mr. Christian. The mere
fact that there continue to be allegations and with all due
respect to Mr. Hilbert, where he admits they have to go to -=-

when he is admitting that they continue to have to go the
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Department of Labor to resolve stuff, it means that Mister -—— it
means that Bradley doesn't get it.

MR. HILBERT: I, I ——

THE COURT: I mean somebody doesn't get it.

MR. HILBERT: Respectfully, Your Honor, I disagree.

It means that there 1s a contest, that's true. But it
—-— Mr., Munoz is a perfect example of where the contest is
resolved. He's been paid.

I have a number of others too that I'l11l go through for
you. I understand you've got a trial here, but I have not found
one of the people that Mr. Christian alleges was underpaid or
was charged for drive-offs or was charged for shortages. I have
not been able to verlify any of those people being underpaid.

Another perfect example, Your Honor, is Eric Glimmer.
Mr. Christian alleges that he was underpaid. He was not. We
have cashed checks from Mr. Glimmer on April 28th, of '08 for
179.52, 159.52.

And, and so Your Honor, and another one where Mister,
Mr. Christian alleges that there were deductions with respect to
a Lisa Hughes. Our research indicates that Mrs. Hughes was
repaid for her uniform deposit, was repaid $20 for a shortage
deduction and Your Honor, she was on salary but worked more
hours than if -~ if you did the analysis of her salary, she was
not paid minimum wage. So Bradley Petroleum paid her more than

her salary because she worked harder.
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So you, you know, the fact there's, there's obviously
a contention here, Your Honor, that Bradley's not acting in good
faith and I really =--

THE COURT: I'm going to ==

MR. HILBERT: =-- take umbrage with that. We're trying
hard. There's a lot of turn-over. There's a lot of velocity in
this business but we are trying hard to make sure that we are in
compliance with that order.

THE COURT: Nobody's, nobody except Mr. Hilbert has
uttered the words "bad faith", including me and that's not
necessarily what I said. I said I don't understand why Bradley
continues to not comply with the law. That doesn't necessarily
mean that it's -- there's somebody in Bradley's headquarters
who is in charge of being venal.

MR. HILBERT: What I'm saying =--

THE COURT: And just -- let me finish --

MR. HILBERT: I'm sorry, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -~ Mr. Hilbert. What I don't -- and so I
don't care why it's happening. I Jjust care that people continue
to allege it and that's what worries me.

It tells me that even if there is no deliberate bad
faith on the part of Bradley, I still have substantial concerns
that somehow the corporation or its minions don't get it, that
they are not —-—- that the people on the ground who have to

enforce this rule, these rules at the point of attack are still
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doing the same old stuff. Pardon me, I almost got in trouble
there. And that’'s the problem I have Mr. Hilbert. I'm not
saying you haven't resolved problems. I, I -- that's
commendable. The guestion is why do they keep coming up?

and I understand that there's a contention with some
of this stuff but when you're telling me that people get
reimbursed for de -~ for things and they've resolved it through
the Department of Labor, it means someone's still filing a
complaint. And if there is -- I'm glad they resolved to the
happiness of the Department of Labor. I'm not the Department of
Labor and I'm not going to give up —— this case up for the time
being.

I'11l tell you what would me a whole lot happier is if
somewhere in the -- and you know this wasn't to start with,
because it got transferred here.

MR. HILBERT: Right.

THE COURT: I don't know why there hasn't been an
order requiring Bradley to inform its employees of stuff that
Bradley can't do. 1In other words, why isn't there a notice on
the notice board at every Bradley Petroleum station saying that
we can't deduct stuff from your paycheck.

MR. HILBERT: There is.

THE COURT: Is there?

MR. HILBERT: Yes.

THE COURT: COkay. Is that true, that true, counsel?
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MR. HILBERT: It's part of our settlement.

MR. CHRISTIAN: I think it is part of the settlement.
I, T don't know if they are in compliance --

THE COURT: Have you seen a copy of -=

MR. CHRISTIAN: -- or not.

THE COURT: == the notice?

MR. CHRISTIAN: I have not, Judge. And I don't know
if they —-- they're required by law to post the Colorado Wage Act
poster. I don't know if that's what we are dealing with, but I
agree with Your Honor. It just keeps coming up.

I'm certain that there's under-reporting. Most of
these individuals have less than a high school education, and
they probably don't even know what the Department of Labor is
and they probably just expect that when the deductions are made,
they have to live with them. 5o —-

THE COURT: Is the only thing that's posted that
standard Colorado Wage Act poster, Mr. Hilbert? Is that what
they've got?

MR. HILBERT: Yes. There's nothing that has been
specifically tailored to this case. But we're --

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. HILBERT: But the settlement agreement requires
that we post that in each of our places and we have.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HILBERT: But their employment agreement says
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10

that, you know, we have to abide by the law and deductions

and --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR, HILBERT: == and shortages =--

THF, COURT: Yeah. Okay. And it tells them
specifically that they can't be -- does it say that we can't
deduct for shortages, we can't -- does it say that in the

employment agreement?

MR. HILBERT: I can't —-

THE COURT: I bet it doesn't.

MR. HILBERT: I can't specifically say that.

THE COURT: Okay. Because that would make me happier.

I want to see, I want the two of you to talk about
some form of notice that can be given to Bradley's employees
because maybe that'll stop this. The employees need to know
what there rights are and the Colorado Wage Act poster does not
~- is not specific enough given the issues in this case that
continue to be alleged.

What we are going to do is we are going to set this
case over for about 90 days, and when you come back I want to
see some proposal for some kind of notice to be given to the
employees either by mail or as an attachment to the employment
contract or to be posted along with the Wage Act form about --
that deals with the specifics that are barred by this case.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Your Honor, if I must also request
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that Bradley do an audit of their books to determine all the
miscellaneous deductions that have taken place since the
beginning of 2007, with notice to me as to whether the
individual -- what they were for and what the individuals --
whether they have been paid for those, and so that I can --

Rather than the individual having to go to the
Department of Labor about this, I would like to know what has
occurred in the last two years at Bradley Petroleum as far as
miscellaneous deductions that occurred, that have occurred and
what they've done about them if anything.

Miscellaneous deductions is an entry that I notice on
paychecks going to the Department of Labor and that's why we've
come back here. 1It's an entry just like a tax line or FICA (ph)
and they are almost always a leap --

THE COURT: I think that's a reasonable request given
the history of this case. Now I don't know that they can
complete that in 90 days.

MR. CHRISTIAN: That's -- we may want six months
Judge.

THE COURT: Well let's just -- I'm going to order it.
I'11 order it no later than six months to be produced and I'll
want a status report in 90 days on how they are doing with it.

If you'd draft up an order, Mr. Christian, outlining
what we've talked about today --

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: -~ and submit it to me.

Mr. Hilbert, I'd appreciate it if you would approve
that to form. I know you won't approve it as to content but I
would appreciate it if you would approve it as to form, please.

MR. HILBERT: Certainly, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And then I'll ~- that order will be nun
pro tunc today. Everybody knows, I, I —-- you guys have been in
here enough, it will take you at least ten working days after
you file it. It will probably take seven to ten working days
after you file it, Mr. Christian, for it to reach my desk but
I'11 sign it nun pro tunc today. All right?

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank vyou, Your Honor. Thank you for
your time.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. HILBERT: Do we want to set a time for that
hearing?

THE COURT: ©Oh, yeah. I'm glad one of us is awake,
too bad it isn't me, Mr. Hilbert. I'm -- I'm already moving on
to my next --

THE CLERK: Do we need a hearing in 90 days or a

hearing ==

THE COURT: No. No. I want a status conference, just
what we are doing here. Just the three -- we're just going to
talk.

MR, HILBERT: Okay.

Western Deposition and Transcription, LLC
1400 16th Street, Suite 400
Denver, CO 80202
303.292.9400




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

13

THE COURT: All right. And Mr. Hilbert, it would help
me if at the time that you come back -- for example you were
able to deal with two or three, two or three of the people that
are mentioned in today's motion. If you could just give a
status report. I'll take a written status report. I'd like to
have some idea of how Bradley processes these when they get the
complaints. All right?

MR. HILBERT: I'll address each of them.

THE COURT: Again, because it wasn't my case to start
with and --

MR. HILBERT: Certainly.

THE COURT: ~-- that would help me.

All right, 90 days what's that February. Wow, no
January. Oh good, I'm duty judge that week. How about Thursday
the 15th of January at one o'clock in the afternoon? We can do
that?

MR. HILBERT: I'm out of town that --

MR. CHRISTIAN: I'm as well, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. That's too bad. That's my
duty week, it easy, easy to set that week. January 21lst at one
o'clock?

MR. HILBERT: Fine with me, Your Honor.

MR. CHRISTIAN: What time, Your Honor?

THE COURT: At 1:00, 1:00 p.m.

MR. CHRISTIAN: That would be fine.
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THE COURT: All right. January 21lst at one ofclock.

Thank you, gentlemen. I appreciate you're coming over here this

morning.

MR. HILBERT: Thank you for taking us during your
trial.

THE COURT: That's all right.

MR. CHRISTIAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank the lawyers, there the ones,
actually you should thank the jury but that -- we won't be able

to do that. All right.

(Proceedings concluded at 11:03 a.m.)
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